
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Gwasanaethau 
Democratiadd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Gwener, 9 Rhagfyr 2022 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol Hybrid - Siambr y Cyngor, Swyddfeydd 
Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr/O Bell ar Dydd Iau, 15 Rhagfyr 2022 am 10:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 

 
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    

 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   5 - 22 
 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 30 06 22 

 
4.  Adroddiad Perfformiad Chwarter 2 2022-23   23 - 86 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


   
 
Gwahoddedigion: 
 
Cynghorydd Huw David – Arweinydd 

Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie – Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar 
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams – Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau 
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell - Aelod Cabinet – Addysg 
Cynghorydd John Spanswick - Aelod Cabinet – Cymunedau 
Cynghorydd Neelo Farr – Aelod Cabinet – Adfywio 
Cynghorydd Rhys Goode - Aelod Cabinet - Llês a Chenedlaethau Dyfodol 
 
 
Mark Shephard - Prif Weithredwr 
Carys Lord  - Pennaeth Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid 
Lindsay Harvey - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Claire Marchant - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles 
Janine Nightingale - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau 
Kelly Watson - Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi 
Corfforaethol 
 
Alex Rawlin - Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Materion Cyhoeddus   
 
 

5.  Cyflwyno Cynllun Taliad Costau Byw   87 - 96 
 Gwahoddwyr: 

Cynghorydd Hywel Williams – Aelod Cabinet - Adnoddau 
 
Carys Lord - Pennaeth Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid 
Deborah Exton – Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid 
 
Helen Rodgers - Rheolwr refeniw 
 

6.  Ailddatblygu Neuadd y Dref Maesteg   97 - 108 
 Gwahoddwyr: 

 
Cynghorydd John Spanswick - Aelod Cabinet Cymunedau 
Cynghorydd Neelo Farr – Aelod Cabinet Adfywio 
 
Janine Nightingale - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Cymunedau 
Kelly Watson - Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi 
Corfforaethol 
 
Delyth Webb – Rheolwr Grwp Adfywio Strategol 
Julian Thomas - Arweinydd Tîm Prosiectau a Dulliau Adfywio 
Laura Willcox – Prif Swyddog Adfywio   
Claire Hamm – Arweinydd Tîm Cadwraeth a Dylunio 
Eilish Thomas - Rheolwr Cyllid – Rheoli Ariannol a Chau 
 

7.  Adroddiad Interim y Panel Ymchwil a Gwerthuso Cyllideb  
 

109 - 116 

8.  Casgliadau/Argymhellion  
 

 

9.  Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith  117 - 164 



 
10.  Materion Brys    

 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 
Sylwer: Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei gynnal fel cyfarfod hybrid Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei 
recordio i'w drosglwyddo trwy wefan y Cyngor. Os oes gennych unrhyw gwestiynau am hyn, 
cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643147 / 643148. 
 
 

Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
H T Bennett 
F D Bletsoe 
P Davies 
RM Granville 

S J Griffiths 
M L Hughes 
M Jones 
RL Penhale-Thomas 

T Thomas 
G Walter 
A Williams 
AJ Williams 



This page is intentionally left blank



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

1 

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL A 
GYNHALIWYD O BELL TRWY TIMAU MICROSOFT, DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022, AM 
09:30 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd   – Cadeirydd  

 
H T Bennett F D Bletsoe JPD Blundell P Davies 
J Gebbie W R Goode RM Granville S J Griffiths 
M L Hughes M Jones RL Penhale-Thomas JC Spanswick 
T Thomas G Walter A Williams AJ Williams 
HM Williams    

 
 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Deborah Exton Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid dros dro 
Laura Griffiths Rheolwr Grŵp Cyfreithiol a Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Lindsay Harvey Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Rachel Keepins Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Meryl Lawrence Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Craffu 
Claire Marchant Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles 
Jessica Mclellan Swyddog Craffu 
Janine Nightingale Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau 
Zak Shell Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth 
Mark Shephard Prif Weithredwr 

 
1. ETHOL IS-GADEIRYDD 

 
PENDERFYNWYD: Ethol y Cynghorydd Alex Williams yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor 

Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol am y Flwyddyn Gyngor. 

 
2. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Dim 
 

3. DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB 
 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd Heidi Bennett fuddiant personol yn yr adroddiad ar Alldro 
Cyllideb Refeniw 2021-22 a buddiant sy’n rhagfarnu yn yr adroddiad ar yr Enwebiad i 
Banel Craffu’r Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus. 
 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd Paul Davies fuddiant personol sef bod ei bartner yn gweithio 
i’r gwasanaeth Prydau yn y Cartref yng Nghyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 
 

4. CYMERADWYO COFNODION 
 

 
PENDERFYNWYD:  Cymeradwyo Cofnodion cyfarfodydd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 

Chraffu Corfforaethol dyddiedig 1 Rhagfyr 2021, 12 Ionawr 
2022 a 2 Mawrth 2022 fel cofnod gwir a chywir. 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

2 

5. GALW PENDERFYNIAD Y CABINET I MEWN: GWASANAETH AILGYLCHU A 
GWASTRAFF AR ÔL 2024 
 
Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd adroddiad gyda’r pwrpas o alluogi’r 
Pwyllgor i ystyried penderfyniad y Cabinet ar 14 Mehefin 2022 mewn perthynas â’r 
adroddiad ar y Gwasanaeth Ailgylchu a Gwastraff ar ôl 2024. 
 
Cadarnhaodd, yn unol â Rheol 18 o Reolau Trosolwg a Chraffu yng Nghyfansoddiad y 
Cyngor, fod 3 Aelod o'r Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu, a Chadeirydd Craffu, wedi gofyn 
am benderfyniad Gweithredol a wnaed gan y Cabinet ar 14 Mehefin 2022 i'w alw i 
mewn. 
 
Dywedodd bod y Pwyllgor wedi'i argymell i ystyried penderfyniad y Cabinet ar 14 
Mehefin 22 ynghylch y Gwasanaeth Ailgylchu a Gwastraff ar ôl 2024 ac i benderfynu a 
oedd yn dymuno:  

i) cyfeirio'r penderfyniad yn ôl i'r Cabinet i'w ailystyried, gan nodi'n 
ysgrifenedig natur ei bryderon; neu 

ii) penderfynu peidio â chyfeirio’r mater yn ôl i’r Cabinet. 
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelodau a oedd wedi llofnodi’r Galw i Mewn i siarad am y 
rhesymau dros y Galw i Mewn. 
 
Dywedodd yr Aelodau mai’r prif resymau dros y Galw i Mewn oedd: 
  
- Cyflwynwyd y contract tymor byr fel yr unig opsiwn heb unrhyw drafodaeth ynghylch 

hyfywedd opsiynau eraill megis dod â’r gwasanaeth yn fewnol fel mesur dros dro a 
allai o bosibl ganiatáu i’r Awdurdod Lleol deilwra’r gwasanaeth i’r hyn y gallai’r 
ddarpariaeth fod yn y dyfodol. . Gallai'r opsiwn hwn fod wedi bod yn rhatach ac yn 
llai aflonyddgar, ac eto nid oedd wedi'i ystyried gan y Cabinet. 

 
- Nid oedd anawsterau cytundebol posibl y penderfyniad i allanoli gwasanaeth gyda'r 

awdurdod i brynu lleoliad gwaith presennol Kier wedi cael eu hystyried yn briodol. 
Pryderon ynghylch bod y contractwr yn dibynnu ar weithredu'r lleoliad gwaith y 
byddai'r Awdurdod yn berchen arno ac ymholiadau ynghylch pwy fyddai'n atebol am 
unrhyw fethiannau, o ystyried ei oedran. 

 
- Rhesymeg prynu hen leoliad a hen gerbydau yn hytrach na pheiriannau amgen 

mwy newydd neu osod nwyddau ar gontract allanol, a phrydlesu cerbydau ynni 
effeithlon, allyriadau isel neu hyd yn oed cerbydau trydan newydd sbon.  

 
- Y gost refeniw ychwanegol o £75,000 y flwyddyn ar gyfer yr Olew Llysiau 

Hydrogenedig (HVO). Cydnabuwyd yr angen i leihau allyriadau carbon ond nid 
oedd yn glir o'r Papur ai cyfran y Cyngor oedd y £75,000 neu ai dyna'r cyfanswm y 
byddai'r Cyngor yn talu hanner ohono.  
 

- Nid oedd unrhyw sôn am gost yn yr adroddiad i'r Cabinet, ac eithrio'r HVO, ac felly 
nid oedd cost yr ymarfer caffael yn hysbys. Pethau anhysbys eraill oedd 
amcangyfrif o gost y contract dros y ddwy flynedd, a allai’r contract fod â chymal i’w 
ymestyn y tu hwnt i 2026 neu’r elw y byddai disgwyl i’r contractwr ei wneud.  

 
- Roedd y contract diwethaf a ddyfarnwyd i Kier ar gyfer casglu yn cynnwys gwallau 

megis dim darpariaeth ar gyfer casglu gwastraff glanweithiol a arweiniodd at gynllun 
retro gyda bagiau porffor yn cael eu rhoi ar waith a oedd yn achosi problemau i 
drigolion. Nid oedd unrhyw ddarpariaeth yn y contract ar gyfer glanhau biniau 
gwastraff bwyd mewn ardaloedd cymunedol a oedd yn golygu nad oedd biniau 

Page 6



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

3 

gwastraff y preswylwyr wedi'u glanhau mewn tair blynedd ac nid oedd unrhyw 
randdeiliad i'w glanhau. Roedd angen i'r Pwyllgor Craffu sicrhau mewnbwn yr holl 
Aelodau i weithredu fel Cyfaill Beirniadol.  

 
Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau: 
 
- Croesawyd cwestiynau a'r broses graffu. Eglurodd mai'r unig benderfyniad a wnaed 

oedd ceisio tendrau ar gyfer y contract dwy flynedd interim. Nid oedd unrhyw 
benderfyniad wedi’i wneud ar sut y gallai’r contract edrych yn y dyfodol, boed 
hynny’n fewnol neu’n gwmni hyd braich ond bod yr opsiynau hynny wedi’u cynnwys 
yn y Papur. Ailadroddodd mai dechrau'r broses ydoedd ac nid fait accompli. 

  
- Mewn perthynas â'r gwrthwynebiad nad oedd unrhyw opsiynau eraill wedi'u 

hystyried, dywedodd fod yr holl opsiynau wedi'u trafod cyn penderfyniad y Cabinet. 
Roedd amryw o resymau pam mai contract tymor byr dwy flynedd oedd yr opsiwn 
cyflymaf, hawsaf a rhataf a’r cyngor proffesiynol oedd mai dyma’r opsiwn gwerth 
gorau. Cyfeiriodd at y cyfnod ansicr a bod targedau Llywodraeth Cymru ar 
gasgliadau a methodoleg ar ôl 2026 yn anhysbys.  
 

- Mewn perthynas â cherbydau, dywedodd fod y rhai presennol yn dal â pheth bywyd 
ar ôl ynddynt a'u bod yn gerbydau pwrpasol. Roedd yn cydnabod y gallai'r cerbyd 
pwrpasol newid ar ôl 2026 yn dibynnu ar y math o gasgliad neu wasanaeth ar yr 
adeg honno. Felly, y cynnig oedd i bethau aros yr un fath ar gyfer 2024 i 2026 gyda 
mân newidiadau yn bosibl ar gyfer ardaloedd fel y Felin Wyllt gyda chasgliadau 
cymunedol a gyda thrafodaethau ar werth y cerbydau. Parhaodd gan ddweud 
byddai'r newid a'r her wirioneddol ar ôl 2026.  

 
- Mewn perthynas â'r pryder nad oedd unrhyw ddadansoddiad cost a budd wedi'i 

wneud, dywedodd ei fod yn cael ei gynnal fel rhan o'r broses dendro. Dywedodd fod 
yn rhaid ceisio tendrau i weld beth oedd ar gael tra, ochr yn ochr, ystyriwyd 
opsiynau eraill gan gynnwys yr hyn y gellid ei wneud i ddod â'r gwasanaeth yn 
fewnol. Dywedodd fod adnoddau'n denau iawn yn y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau ac 
felly, mae'n debygol y byddai angen dod ag adnoddau i mewn i gynorthwyo gyda'r 
gwasanaeth ac ystyried yr holl opsiynau. 

 
- Mewn perthynas â chostau caffael, nododd fod y cronfeydd wrth gefn  o £300,000 

wedi'i glustnodi ar gyfer caffael contract y dyfodol. Fodd bynnag, mae'n debygol mai 
dim ond canran fechan ohono fyddai'n cael ei wario gan fod caffael yn cael ei 
wneud yn fewnol ar hyn o bryd.  

 
- Er y byddai ychydig bach o arian yn cael ei wario ar hyn o bryd, roedd yn cydnabod 

y byddai angen symiau mwy yn y dyfodol naill ai i gaffael contract newydd neu i 
gefnogi’r gwaith sydd angen ei wneud i edrych ar atebion mewnol, naill ai’n 
uniongyrchol neu trwy gwmni hyd braich.  

 
- Mewn perthynas â'r HVO, eglurodd fod y £75,000 ychwanegol i'w rannu'n gyfartal 

rhwng Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a'r contractwr.  Cydnabu ei fod 
yn benderfyniad ynghylch a oedd hynny'n werth am arian ac y gallai fod opsiynau 
eraill. Fodd bynnag, dim ond saith mlynedd oedd i gyrraedd sero-garbon net gyda 
bron i 30,000 tunnell o garbon i'w arbed eto i gyrraedd y sefyllfa honno. 

 
Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau: 
 
- Ategwyd mai pwrpas yr adroddiad oedd ymarfer casglu gwybodaeth gan fod angen 

tystiolaeth dda a chadarn i seilio penderfyniadau arni. Dywedodd mai dim ond drwy 
brofi’r farchnad y gellid gwneud hynny i weld pa ddiddordeb a dderbyniwyd mewn 

Page 7



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

4 

casglu gwastraff am y cyfnod o ddwy flynedd rhwng 2024 a 2026. Roedd y 
rhesymau dros yr estyniad byr, hy dim targedau ailgylchu Llywodraeth Cymru yn y 
dyfodol, cyfrifoldeb cynhyrchwyr, cynlluniau dychwelyd blaendal a mathau o 
gerbydau, a oedd wedi bod yn destun Pwyllgor Craffu ym mis Gorffennaf 2021 yn 
parhau i fod yn ddilys oherwydd ansicrwydd ar ôl 2026 ynghylch a pha olwg a 
fyddai ar y casgliad. 

 
- Cydnabu y gallai unrhyw benderfyniadau a chontractau caffael gael eu herio ac felly 

rhybuddiodd yr angen i gadw'n unol â chyfraith caffael. Dywedodd hefyd fod angen i 
Lywodraeth Cymru roi eglurder ynghylch yr ansicrwydd ynghylch yr hyn y disgwylir 
iddo gael ei gasglu i lunio’r contract yn y dyfodol.  

 
Y Prif Weithredwr 
 
- Eglurodd bod y penderfyniad a wnaed yn flaenorol yn fwriad i ymestyn y contract 

gyda Kier am ddwy flynedd, a oedd wedi bod yn opsiwn yn y contract presennol, yn 
enwedig o ystyried yr ansicrwydd ynghylch targedau ailgylchu Llywodraeth Cymru, 
yr angen i symud tuag at gerbydau llai dibynnol ar diesel a chyfrifoldebau 
cynhyrchwyr. Daeth i’r amlwg yn 2021 bod Kier yn symud allan o’r farchnad a bod 
amserlenni wedi pennu bod yr opsiynau’n fwy cyfyngedig. 

 
- Dywedodd nad oedd y Cyngor yn gallu pennu sut beth fyddai contract hirdymor yn y 

dyfodol a fyddai'n gofyn am ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus a phroses hir a chymhleth. 
Felly, roedd yr adroddiad a baratowyd yn seiliedig ar gaffael contract tymor byr. 
Roedd posibilrwydd y gellid dod â'r gwasanaeth yn fewnol, er y byddai'n dal i 
ddefnyddio'r un cerbydau a'r un fethodoleg am y cyfnod hwnnw o ddwy flynedd. Yr 
hyn oedd yn cael ei drafod oedd cyfnod interim yn unig. 

 
- Mewn perthynas ag ôl 2026, cytunodd fod angen llawer o waith i ddeall beth fyddai 

ei angen i gynyddu targedau ailgylchu. Pwysleisiodd fod Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn 
parhau i fod yn un o’r awdurdodau sy’n perfformio orau yng Nghymru o ran 
ailgylchu ac o ran cost a chasgliadau a fethwyd.  

 
- Eglurodd bod y cerbydau a ddefnyddiwyd yn bwrpasol i fodloni'r fethodoleg ac na 

ellid eu prynu na'u prydlesu oddi ar y silff. Roedd angen eu dylunio a'u caffael, ac 
nid oedd hynny'n gost-effeithlon ar gyfer cerbydau newydd, am gyfnod o ddwy 
flynedd, pan allai'r fethodoleg newid ymhen ychydig flynyddoedd. Y cyngor oedd 
bod gan y cerbydau presennol ddigon o fywyd ar ôl ynddynt. Roeddent wedi'u 
cyflwyno fesul cam gydag oedran y cerbydau tua chwech neu saith mlwydd oed. 
Felly, roedd yn synhwyrol defnyddio'r peiriannau a'r offer presennol. 

 
- Mewn perthynas â chost tanwydd HVO a'r rhagolygon ar gyfer dewisiadau eraill, 

dywedodd fod yn rhaid gweithredu a thynnodd sylw at y cyngor o ran lleihau carbon 
oedd bod hon yn gost isel iawn o ran y canlyniad lleihau carbon o gymharu â rhai 
o’r penderfyniadau anoddach eraill y gallai fod angen eu gwneud dros y pum 
mlynedd nesaf, os yw’r awdurdod i gyrraedd y targedau lleihau carbon erbyn 2030.  

 
- Nid oedd yn teimlo bod yr adroddiad yn dioddef o ran manylion ac opsiynau. Roedd 

yn cydnabod bod yr adroddiad wedi'i gynllunio fel Summary ac nad oedd unrhyw 
ddiffyg manylion wedi bod yn fwriadol i atal gwybodaeth rhag cael ei datgelu. 
Amlygodd fod yr adroddiad yn dod ag argymhellion gerbron y Cabinet yn seiliedig 
ar wybodaeth a chyngor proffesiynol. Ailadroddodd fod opsiynau eraill wedi'u 
hystyried a chafodd y pwyllgor eu hatgoffa o adroddiad i'r Pwyllgor Craffu ym mis 
Gorffennaf 2021 lle'r ymdriniwyd â rhai o'r opsiynau eraill yn fanwl. 

 

Page 8



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

5 

Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd a'r Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a 
Chymorth Cynnar mai rôl y Cyngor oedd symud busnes yn ei flaen. Amlygodd baragraff 
9.5 o'r adroddiad gwreiddiol a dywedodd fod y Cabinet wedi awdurdodi Swyddogion i 
ddod ag argymhelliad yn ôl yn y dyfodol ar sut y byddai'r gwasanaeth yn cael ei redeg. 
Cododd hefyd fater y cynnydd yng nghostau gyrwyr a oedd yn oblygiad pellach i'w 
ystyried.  
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd unrhyw Aelod o'r Pwyllgor a oedd wedi Galw i Mewn y 
penderfyniad i ofyn cwestiynau neu roi sylwadau.   
 
Amlygodd yr Aelodau mai'r rhesymeg y tu ôl i'r Galw i Mewn oedd yr angen am eglurder 
i'r cyhoedd ar sut yr oedd arian yn cael ei wario er eu budd hwy. Er ei bod yn bosibl bod 
penderfyniadau wedi'u gwneud yn y cefndir, roedd angen egluro'r rhain yn gyhoeddus.  
 
Nododd yr aelodau mai dim ond yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor ac o ganlyniad i'r Galw i 
Mewn y gwyddys beth oedd cost caffael, sef hyd at £300,000.   
Gofynnodd yr aelodau beth fyddai amcangyfrif o gost y contract a faint o elw y disgwylid 
i gontractwr ei wneud. Yn ogystal, pa fath o gontractwr fyddai'n ei gymryd ar gontract 
dwy flynedd a beth fyddai'n digwydd pe na bai neb yn dod ymlaen i gyflenwi'r contract.  
 
Eglurodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau fod £300,000 o gronfeydd wrth gefn wedi'u 
clustnodi ar gyfer y broses dendro caffael yn y dyfodol ac nad oedd yn swm a fyddai'n 
cael ei wario ar y broses bresennol sy'n cael ei wneud yn fewnol.  
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr fod y gronfa wrth gefn a glustnodwyd yn seiliedig ar y 
ffaith nad oedd yn hysbys pa opsiwn fyddai'n cael ei gymryd. Yr opsiwn o gontract tymor 
byr dwy flynedd oedd y rhataf o ran caffael oherwydd bod y contract eisoes wedi’i 
ysgrifennu ac yn cael ei ddefnyddio gan staff caffael mewnol a chyfreithiol. Pan 
ddefnyddiwyd adnoddau mewnol, nid oedd hyn fel arfer yn cael ei nodi mewn adroddiad 
Cabinet. Pe bai’n cael ei benderfynu yn y dyfodol, er enghraifft, y byddai’r gwasanaeth 
yn cael ei gyflwyno’n fewnol, yna byddai’r gost caffael yn llawer uwch. Byddai hyd at 70 
o ffrydiau gwastraff yn hytrach na’i wneud drwy gwmnïau a oedd eisoes â’r mathau 
hynny o gaffaeliadau ar waith. Eglurodd felly, nad oedd £300,000 yn cael ei wario ar 
gaffael y contract interim a fyddai'n gost fechan yn seiliedig ar y contract a'r fethodoleg 
bresennol. 
 
Mewn perthynas â phwy fyddai'n debygol o weithredu'r contract interim, dywedodd fod 
profion marchnad meddal wedi awgrymu bod rhywfaint o ddiddordeb. Roedd yn 
cydnabod y byddai rhywfaint o elw gan eu bod yn gwmnïau masnachol. Amlygodd fod 
cost yr holl gontractau cludiant presennol wedi cynyddu'n sylweddol ac felly rhagwelwyd 
y byddai'r gost yn uwch beth bynnag fo'r fethodoleg. Fodd bynnag, pwrpas mynd i'r 
farchnad ac edrych ar y dewisiadau eraill oedd penderfynu ai'r costau oedd y gwerth 
gorau am arian.  
 
Holodd yr aelodau a oedd y posibilrwydd o ddod â'r gwasanaeth yn fewnol o 2024 
ymlaen wedi'i ystyried ac a allai fod yn bosibilrwydd o hyd. 
  
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr y gallai fod yn opsiwn ond nad oedd yn hysbys. 
Dywedodd ei bod yn synhwyrol comisiynu cefnogaeth ar gyfer dichonoldeb i benderfynu 
a fyddai'n realistig ac ymarferol. Yn y tymor hwy, o 2026, roedd dod â'r gwasanaeth yn 
fewnol yn opsiwn a fyddai'n cael ei ystyried yn llawn. Fodd bynnag, teimlai fod y tendr ar 
gyfer y contract dwy flynedd interim yn bwysig er mwyn osgoi sefyllfa lle nad oedd 
unrhyw ddarpariaeth a dim gwasanaeth. Nid oedd yr Awdurdod wedi cael gwasanaeth 
mewnol ers 2003 ac o ganlyniad, nid oedd ganddo y seilwaith na'r staffio mwyach. 
Byddai angen rhoi ystyriaeth ofalus i'r rhaglen waith a'r buddsoddiad y byddai ei angen i 
ddod ag ef yn ôl yn fewnol. Ailadroddodd mai'r argymhelliad i'r Cabinet oedd mynd allan 

Page 9



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

6 

am gaffaeliad am gontract dwy flynedd neu fentro bod y contract yn dod i ben a bod 
mewn argyfwng. 
 
Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau fod yr amserlen yn fyr iawn. Dangosodd 
ymchwil gan awdurdodau eraill fod y broses i ddod â'r gwasanaeth yn ôl yn fewnol wedi 
cymryd o leiaf dwy flynedd. Tynnodd sylw at y 76 o wahanol ffrydiau gwastraff a'r 
adnoddau a'r amserlen gyfyngedig iawn a fyddai'n ei gwneud bron yn amhosibl eu 
cyflawni yn y llai na dwy flynedd sy'n weddill. 
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol fod adroddiad 
wedi'i gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor Craffu ym mis Gorffennaf 2021 a oedd yn archwilio'r estyniad 
dwy flynedd arfaethedig ar y pryd gyda Kier a bod cwestiynau wedi'u gofyn ynghylch dod 
â'r gwasanaeth yn fewnol. Roeddent wedi ymrwymo i ddod â'r mater yn ôl i'r Pwyllgor 
Craffu i archwilio'r holl opsiynau yn llawn ond nid am gyfnod uniongyrchol y ddwy 
flynedd.  
 
Parhaodd i ddweud y byddai'n benderfyniad mawr ac yn ddarn mawr o waith i ddod â'r 
gwasanaeth yn fewnol ac y byddai ar gwantwm hollol wahanol i'w gymharu â chaffael. 
Amlygodd ei bod yn synhwyrol defnyddio'r cerbydau presennol yn enwedig o ystyried yr 
ansicrwydd presennol.  
 
Nododd yr Aelodau fod y contract yn y dyfodol wedi bod yn destun Craffu yn 2021 a 
fyddai wedi rhoi tair blynedd i edrych ar y potensial o ddod â'r gwasanaeth yn fewnol. 
Nodwyd hefyd bod Swyddogion wedi tynnu sylw at y diffyg staff ar gyfer caffael a holwyd 
a oedd y Pwyllgor yn cael gwybod bod cost caffael yn fach iawn gan ei fod yn digwydd 
yn fewnol.   
 
Eglurodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol fod dwy agwedd ar 
wahân. Un oedd y caffael ar gyfer yr estyniad - ymarfer caffael sengl gyda staff yn eu lle 
i'w gynnal. Roedd y dewis arall yn golygu dod â 76 o ffrydiau cyflenwi unigol yn fewnol a 
chadarnhaodd nad oedd ganddo y staff ar gyfer hynny.  
 
Holodd yr Aelodau pa un ai oedd modd cyflawni’r swm o waith sydd ei angen i ddod â’r 
gwasanaeth yn fewnol ymhen pedair blynedd heb dîm yn ei le yn realistig ai pheidio, ac 
a oedd y gost o brynu’r fflyd yn ôl yn hysbys gan fod y Cabinet wedi rhoi awdurdod i 
Swyddogion wneud y penderfyniadau hynny.   
 
Eglurodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau fod gwahaniaeth rhwng 2024 a 2026 a bod 
opsiwn realistig i ddod â’r gwasanaeth yn ôl yn fewnol ar ôl 2026.  
 
Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol nad oedd union 
gost prynu'r fflyd yn hysbys ond cadarnhaodd fod y contract a oedd yn darparu'r opsiwn i 
brynu'n ôl yn cynnwys rhai costau dangosol. Roedd yn debygol y byddai proffil fflyd 
amrywiol ond bod arwydd o gost y cerbyd fesul math o gerbyd.  
 
Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch oedran y fflyd, cadarnhaodd y byddai'r cerbydau tua 
chwech i chwech mlwydd a hanner ar ddiwedd y contract. Cadarnhaodd fod rhai 
contractwyr casglu gwastraff yn rhedeg y cerbydau am hyd at 10 mlynedd er nad oedd 
yn argymell gwneud hynny gan y byddai'r gost o gynnal a chadw cerbydau hŷn yn uwch 
ac yn peri risg o broblemau gyda dibynadwyedd. Dywedodd ei fod yn gyfforddus yn 
rhedeg cerbydau am tua wyth mlynedd a hanner fel disgwyliad rhesymol. Nid oedd y 
cerbydau'n gwneud llawer o filltiroedd ond efallai mai rhai o'r problemau a ragwelwyd 
fyddai angen newid byrddau defnyddwyr, breciau a chydwyr fel mater o drefn ond nad 
oeddent yn arbennig o ddrud. Yn ogystal, roedd yna bosibilrwydd o rai materion gerbocs 
ond, cadarnhaodd y gallent fynd yn gyfforddus am ychydig flynyddoedd yn fwy ac y 
byddai'n gwneud synnwyr economaidd da ar ffracsiwn o'r gost o brynu'n newydd.  

Page 10



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

7 

 
Parhaodd gan ddweud bod y farchnad cerbydau allyriadau isel iawn yn datblygu ac 
roedd prynu cerbydau casglu gwastraff allyriadau isel iawn bron ddwywaith cost yr hyn 
oedd yn cyfateb i gerbydau diesel. Dywedodd fod rhai cerbydau hydrogen yn cyrraedd y 
DU ac er bod cerbydau trydan ychydig yn fwy cyffredin, roeddent yn tueddu i weithio’n 
dda mewn ardaloedd casglu yng nghanol y ddinas ond y byddai problemau gyda’r pellter 
sydd ei angen i deithio i ardaloedd y cymoedd ac i fynd i Abertawe ar gyfer tipio 
gwastraff. Felly, roedd angen amser ar y farchnad i ddatblygu a theimlwyd mai'r ffordd 
fwyaf synhwyrol o brynu amser oedd defnyddio'r cerbydau presennol.  
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol er bod modd llogi 
cerbydau sbwriel, roedd y cerbydau ailgylchu yn rhai pwrpasol ac nid oeddent ar gael 
oddi ar y silff. Roedd cyfluniad yr adrannau yn cyd-fynd â'r tunelleddau a'r deunyddiau a 
gynhyrchwyd gan Ben-y-bont ar Ogwr. 
 
Mewn perthynas â chost tanwydd, eglurodd mai £75,000 oedd y cyfanswm ac y byddent 
yn edrych i drafod i rannu'r gost honno gyda Kier. Cyfeiriodd at gynlluniau lleihau carbon 
eraill a wnaed yn y gorffennol a dywedodd, am tua £30,000, bod bron i 1,000 tunnell o 
ostyngiad mewn carbon yn ymddangos yn werth da ac y byddai gostyngiad yn diogelu'r 
amgylchedd ar gyfer cenedlaethau'r dyfodol. Mewn perthynas â'r tanwydd sy'n deillio o 
lysiau hydrogenedig, dywedodd ei fod yn ddeunydd glanach a'i fod yn llosgi llai o 
ocsidau nitraidd na thanwydd diesel. Dywedodd ei bod yn hysbys bod ocsidau nitraidd 
yn achosi i bobl ddatblygu problemau a chlefydau anadlol. Roedd y budd amgylcheddol 
yn drech na'r swm cymharol fach o arian y bwriedir ei wario.  
 
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad, cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau 
Cymunedol y byddai'r contractwr newydd yn rhedeg ac yn cynnal a chadw'r cerbydau ac 
yn eu gweithredu dan eu trwydded eu hunain.  
 
Mewn perthynas â beth oedd y gost ar gyfer trosglwyddo staff Kier yn 2024 gyda'r 
potensial i wneud hynny eto yn 2026, dywedodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - 
Gwasanaethau Cymunedol er y gallai fod yn deg gofyn beth fyddai cost caffael, byddai 
trosglwyddo staff yn digwydd rhwng y contractwr presennol a'r contractwr newydd felly ni 
fyddai cost uniongyrchol yn weladwy. Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd a'r Aelod Cabinet 
dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar nad oedd unrhyw gost i 
drosglwyddo TUPE. Byddai gweithiwr yn trosglwyddo o fod yn gyflogai o un sefydliad i 
fod yn un o'r llall.  
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd unrhyw Aelodau eraill o'r Pwyllgor a oedd wedi llofnodi'r Galw 
i Mewn i siarad ag yna gwahoddodd unrhyw Aelodau eraill o'r Pwyllgor i ofyn eu 
cwestiynau. 
 
Nododd yr aelodau fod contractau rheoli gwastraff yn ymddangos yn llai proffidiol i'r 
sector masnachol a gofynnwyd am sicrwydd o gynllun wrth gefn i sicrhau hirhoedledd 
gwasanaeth pe bai contractwr tymor byr yn rhoi'r gorau i wasanaeth.  
 
Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr fod Kier wedi bod yn gyhoeddus ynghylch gadael y 
farchnad ond cadarnhaodd eu bod wedi ymrwymo dan gontract i ddarparu'r gwasanaeth 
tan 2024 ac nad oedd unrhyw arwydd eu bod yn peidio bwriadu gwneud hynny. Y 
rheswm dros gaffael y contract tymor byr oedd er mwyn sicrhau bod dewis arall ar waith 
yn 2024. Dywedodd fod darpariaethau y gallai awdurdodau lleol eu gwneud mewn 
sefyllfaoedd o argyfwng, lle nad oedd, er enghraifft, unrhyw fodd o ddarparu'r 
gwasanaeth drwy'r drefn arferol.  
 
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch a oedd strategaeth risg ffurfiol ar gyfer y 
penderfyniad i gaffael contract tymor byr am y cyfnod o ddwy flynedd, cadarnhaodd y 

Page 11



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

8 

Prif Weithredwr fod yr asesiad risg wedi bod yn rhan o wneud yr argymhelliad i'r 
Cabinet. Un o'r risgiau oedd y cynnydd mewn costau, yn debyg i gontractau eraill yn 
ymwneud â cherbydau. Risg bosibl arall oedd na fyddai neb yn cynnig am y contract ond 
amlygodd y bu profion marchnad meddal. Yr arwydd oedd bod diddordeb mewn 
darparu'r gwasanaeth gan y byddai'n gymharol syml, gan ddefnyddio'r un cerbydau a 
methodoleg. Yn dilyn yr asesiad risg, roedd mynd ar drywydd contract tymor byr yn cael 
ei weld fel y dewis lleiaf o risg o'i gymharu â rhuthro model mewnol a oedd yn cael ei 
ystyried yn fwy o risg.  
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am sicrwydd y byddai ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus yn cynnwys 
amrywiaeth o fesurau. 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr nad oedd angen ymgynghori â'r cyhoedd lle cedwid y 
fethodoleg i raddau helaeth yr un fath. Fodd bynnag, pe bai'r gwasanaeth yn symud yn 
fewnol neu os byddai'r targedau gan Lywodraeth Cymru yn golygu y byddai'n rhaid 
newid y fethodoleg er mwyn darparu ar gyfer hynny, byddai angen ymgynghoriad, creu 
cysylltiadau a chasglu gwybodaeth gyhoeddus gynhwysfawr. 
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol, pan oedd y 
gwasanaeth yn cael ei newid yn flaenorol, bod llawer o ymgynghori wedi bod gydag 
amrywiaeth o ymarferion ymgysylltu a sicrhaodd y byddai hyn yr un peth pe bai'r 
gwasanaeth yn newid.  
 
Mynegodd yr aelodau bryderon ynghylch yr amserlen, cost a gwerth am arian a, gyda 
chostau byw cynyddol, holwyd a fyddai'n synhwyrol archwilio opsiynau eraill ochr yn 
ochr â phrofi'r farchnad i gael gwerth am arian yn y pen draw.  
 
Amlygodd y Prif Weithredwr y cyfnod cyfyngedig o amser hyd at 2024 a bod yr opsiynau 
yn gymharol gyfyngedig; naill ai i gaffael contractwr allanol i ddarparu’r gwasanaeth neu, 
gyda digon o amser, o bosibl yn dod ag ef yn fewnol ond nid oes unrhyw staff na 
seilwaith i redeg y gwasanaeth yn fewnol wedi bod mewn lle ers 2003. Roedd yn 
debygol y byddai contractwyr yn dod i mewn gyda chostau uwch oherwydd natur y 
farchnad lle'r oedd cerbydau a thanwydd ynghlwm. Teimlwyd mai'r caffaeliad oedd yr 
opsiwn hawsaf, lleiaf costus a lleiaf peryglus. Y farchnad fyddai'n pennu'r gost ac yna 
byddai angen asesu a oedd yn werth am arian tra, ochr yn ochr ag ystyried yr opsiwn o 
ddod â'r arian yn fewnol.  
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol fod y farchnad 
wastraff fel arfer wedi bod yn farchnad hynod gystadleuol. Er ei bod yn debygol y byddai 
cynnydd mewn costau, oherwydd prinder gyrwyr a phrisiau tanwydd, roedd mynd allan i 
dendr fel arfer yn dod â gwerth gorau. Cyfeiriodd at y sefyllfa yn y diwydiant adeiladu o 
fod yn wahanol a'u prisiau'n cynyddu amryfal ond gan fod mwy o alw nag y gellir ei 
gyflawni, nid yw'r farchnad yn gystadleuol sy'n effeithio ar y gost. Yn y sector gwastraff, 
roedd nifer y cyflenwyr a'r contractwyr wedi bod yn eithaf cyson. Felly, er ei bod yn 
debygol y byddai codiadau cost materol sylfaenol yn achosi i holl gostau'r cynigwyr 
gynyddu, nid oedd yn pryderu na fyddai cystadleurwydd i gyflawni gwerth gorau yn cael 
ei effeithio. 
 
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch cynaliadwyedd ac argaeledd HVO, cadarnhaodd y 
Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol mai HVO oedd y cam nesaf o 
danwydd sy'n deillio o lysiau. Cyfeiriodd at fersiynau blaenorol tebyg lle'r oedd 
cerbydau'n defnyddio braster sglodion a oedd yn troi'n fath o diesel. Dywedodd fod 
technoleg a gwyddoniaeth wedi datblygu a bod y broses bellach wedi'i mireinio gyda 
thanwydd llawer uwch. 
 

Page 12



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

9 

Mewn perthynas â'r cyflenwad, cadarnhaodd nad oedd yr union darddiad yn hysbys ac y 
byddai'n destun trafodaeth gyda Kier. Dywedodd ei bod yn ymddangos bod cyflenwad 
digonol a helaeth o HVO ond tynnodd sylw at y ffaith mai cam interim oedd HVO a 
fyddai'n darparu budd mawr ar gyfer buddsoddiad cymharol fach. Byddai'n lleihau 
carbon drwy roi'r gorau i losgi tanwydd ffosil ac yn ychwanegu at y problemau sy'n 
gysylltiedig ag ocsid nitraidd ond cadarnhaodd na fyddai'r awdurdod yn ymrwymo iddo 
pe na bai cyflenwad digonol.   
 
Cadarnhaodd  Aelod Cabinet dros Les a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol ei fod wedi gofyn i 
Swyddogion geisio caffael HVO drwy’r opsiwn mwyaf cynaliadwy, megis o gnwd 
gwastraff, i geisio cyflawni cymaint o effaith ar yr economïau ac arbediad ar garbon.  
 
Mynegodd yr aelodau bryderon bod risg cost y cynnig caffael dwy flynedd yn cael ei 
danamcangyfrif gan gyfeirio at yr Awdurdod Cystadleuaeth a Marchnadoedd yn 2017, a 
edrychodd ar faint o amser a gymerodd i gwmnïau gwastraff adennill costau fel rhan o 
gaffael a ddaeth i'r casgliad ei fod yn isafswm o bum mlynedd. Er y gallai cwmnïau fod 
yn fodlon cynnig am y contract dwy flynedd, gallent godi eu costau, a oedd fel arfer yn 
cael eu lledaenu dros bum mlynedd i ddwy flynedd, a thrwy hynny gynyddu eu cynigion 
ar gost afresymol i'r Cyngor. Felly anogodd yr Aelodau gynllun wrth gefn cadarn i liniaru 
yn erbyn y risg gymharol uchel o fod mewn sefyllfa lle nad oedd ateb cost-effeithiol ar 
gael. 
 
Cydnabu'r Prif Weithredwr fod cwmnïau fel arfer yn gwneud elw ar ôl pum mlynedd a 
dyna pam fod contractau gwastraff fel arfer am saith mlynedd. Fodd bynnag, yr hyn a 
sefydlwyd drwy brofion marchnad feddal oedd bod y contract a gafodd ei gynnig yn un 
gweddol syml i gwmnïau sydd eisoes yn y farchnad ei ddarparu gan ei fod yn 
defnyddio’r un fethodoleg, yr un cerbydau a throsglwyddo’r staff a oedd eisoes yn ei 
ddarparu. . Credai y byddai cystadleuaeth gan na fyddai angen i gwmnïau gymryd golwg 
hirdymor na buddsoddi symiau mawr i wneud elw yn y tymor dwy flynedd.  
 
Mewn ymateb i'r ymholiad ynglŷn â'r cynllun wrth gefn, cadarnhaodd unwaith y byddai 
unrhyw gontract yn cael ei allanoli, bod risgiau'n codi ond bod risg drwy allanoli i 
ddarparwr allanol neu, yn yr un modd, risg drwy ddod â'r gwasanaeth yn fewnol. Nid 
oedd yn credu bod trydydd opsiwn nad oedd yn cario lefel o risg a chadarnhaodd felly 
bod angen rheoli'r risg yn y modd mwyaf effeithiol.  
 
Mewn perthynas â’r ffaith nad oedd modd lledaenu’r costau sefydlu dros nifer o 
flynyddoedd a bod y gost yn sylweddol uwch, dywedodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - 
Gwasanaethau Cymunedol fod y costau sefydlu mawr fel arfer yn fuddsoddiad cyfalaf 
mawr mewn cerbydau sy’n gysylltiedig â’r contract a cynllunio llwybr. Eglurodd y byddai'r 
contractwr yn cael 99% o'r fflyd sydd ei angen ac y byddai disgwyl iddo ddefnyddio'r un 
tua 200 o lwybrau a sefydlwyd eisoes. Felly, er bod costau wedi codi, ni fyddai'n rhaid i'r 
contractwyr wneud y buddsoddiad ymlaen llaw y byddai'n rhaid ei dalu yn ol fel arfer. 
 
Holodd yr Aelodau, gan fod Kier yn gadael y farchnad, a oedd yn bosibl iddynt 
adnewyddu eu contractau presennol i'r awdurdod fel rhan o'r trosglwyddiad ac i'r 
awdurdod barhau gyda bron yr un gwasanaeth ag yr oedd Kier yn ei gynnig. 
 
Ailadroddodd y Prif Weithredwr fod yna gyfuniad o wahanol gaffaeliadau, rhai yn ffrydiau 
gwastraff, rhai meddalwedd a rhai llwybrau. Fodd bynnag, ochr yn ochr â’r caffael, roedd 
elfen o ddichonoldeb i’w wneud i symud ymlaen, er enghraifft, yr opsiwn mewnol yn 
achos y caffaeliad yn aflwyddiannus neu’n annerbyniol ond hefyd wrth baratoi ar gyfer 
2026. Efallai bod y ddadl newyddiad yn addas ar gyfer rhai cytundebau ond, roedd yn 
amau ei bod i bob un.   
 

Page 13



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

10 

Cynigiodd yr aelodau ei bod yn werth edrych ar y farchnad fel rhan o'r cynlluniau wrth 
gefn o ystyried y risg o naill ai gynnig uchel neu ddim cynnig. 
 
Holodd yr Aelodau ynghylch y posibilrwydd y gallai'r gwasanaeth ddirywio ac a fyddai'r 
contract yn amlinellu safonau clir y mae angen eu bodloni ac, os na chânt eu bodloni, a 
oedd posibilrwydd y byddai cosbau neu sancsiynau'n cael eu defnyddio os nad oedd 
ansawdd y gwasanaeth yn cael ei gynnal. 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol y byddai hyn yn 
cael ei gynnwys yn y contract. 
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelodau at adroddiad ar yr opsiynau a risgiau o symud ymlaen gyda'r 
contract newydd ar ôl 2024, a aeth i Bwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Pwnc 3 yn 2021 a 
holwyd pa argymhellion a wnaed a sut yr oeddent wedi'u hymgorffori yn adroddiad y 
Cabinet. Ymhellach, roedd yr adroddiad yn nodi bod y Bwrdd Rheoli Corfforaethol 
(CMB) wedi ystyried yr hyn a allai fod yn gyraeddadwy a bod ei gyflenwi o fewn yr 
amserlen a bod y rheini wedi bod yn drafodaethau mewnol gydag un opsiwn a ffefrir 
wedi'i gyflwyno i'r Cabinet. Gofynnodd yr Aelodau a ellid rhoi'r holl opsiynau i'r cyhoedd 
a'u rhoi i'r Pwyllgor eu hystyried. Gofynasant hefyd a oedd yr Aelod Cabinet yn fodlon y 
byddai proses dendro gystadleuol yn y cyfnod byr o amser sydd ar gael neu a oedd risg 
o orfod derbyn y tendr uchaf oherwydd mai dyma'r unig opsiwn i ddarparu gwasanaeth 
gwastraff. 
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau at baragraff 3.5 o adroddiad y Cabinet a 
oedd, meddai, yn crynhoi'r sefyllfa bresennol; y byddai 'cyfnod y contract interim tymor 
byr yn caniatáu amser i ddatblygu'r model casglu gwastraff cymhleth yn y dyfodol ar ôl 
2026, gan gynnwys penderfyniadau allweddol ynghylch sut y darperir y gwasanaeth, ar 
adeg pan fyddai llai o ansicrwydd. Byddai hyn yn sicrhau bod y gwasanaeth mwyaf cost-
effeithiol a thechnoleg arloesol yn cael eu defnyddio, sy'n hollbwysig os yw'r Cyngor am 
gyflawni ei uchelgais o fod y gwasanaeth ailgylchu a gwastraff gorau yng Nghymru. 
Bydd y Cyngor yn gweithio ar y contract interim ac yn defnyddio'r amser hwn ar yr un 
pryd i edrych ar yr holl opsiynau darparu gwasanaeth sydd ar gael, gan gynnwys 
trefniant cytundebol newydd neu ddod â'r gwasanaeth yn ôl yn fewnol, o bosibl trwy 
drefniant hyd braich.' Ailadroddodd nad oedd y penderfyniad wedi'i wneud eto a 
chroesawodd fwy o drafod a chraffu yn y dyfodol. 
 
Eglurodd fod yr holl opsiynau yn cael eu hystyried ar hyn o bryd ac na fyddent yn aros 
tan 2024. Dywedodd pe byddai cynigion anghystadleuol neu gynigion eithafol yn 2024, 
efallai y byddai angen cyflymu'r broses o ddod â'r gwasanaeth yn ôl yn fewnol gan y 
byddai'r prisiau ar gael bryd hynny. Ailadroddodd fod yna waith arall yn digwydd ochr yn 
ochr i sicrhau bod mwy nag un opsiwn ar gael.  
 
Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr, ar adeg y Pwyllgor Craffu yn 2021, mai'r opsiwn clir a 
ffefrir oedd estyniad dwy flynedd i gontract presennol Kier. Aeth y papur i CMB ym mis 
Rhagfyr pan ddaeth yn amlwg bod Kier yn symud allan i'r farchnad ac felly roedd 
amserlen gyfyngedig i ystyried opsiynau eraill. Cadarnhaodd y gellid rhannu fersiwn o'r 
hyn a gyflwynwyd bryd hynny ond cadarnhaodd mai dim ond dau opsiwn oedd mewn 
gwirionedd; caffael rhywun ar wahân am y tymor o ddwy flynedd neu, ochr yn ochr, 
ceisio dod ag ef yn fewnol ond gyda'r holl gafeatau a eglurwyd eisoes.  
 
Cadarnhaodd yr Aelodau y byddai'n ddefnyddiol gweld modelau parhad gwasanaeth 
CMB, y gwnaethant eu hystyried a'u gwrthod o blaid yr opsiwn a ffefrir ganddynt i'r 
Cabinet ei gymeradwyo.  
 
Roedd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol yn cofio argymhelliad y 
Pwyllgor Craffu ym mis Gorffennaf 2021 sef nad oedd y Pwyllgor yn cefnogi'r estyniad 

Page 14



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

11 

dwy flynedd gyda Kier o ystyried yr holl ansicrwydd ac argymhellodd edrych ar gaffael i 
sicrhau gwerth gorau. Ar y pryd, cyfeiriad y Cabinet oedd parhau gyda'r estyniad, am yr 
holl resymau a gyflwynwyd yn yr adroddiad. Fodd bynnag, gan nad oedd Kier am 
ymestyn, argymhelliad y Pwyllgor Craffu i fynd allan ar gyfer caffaeliad tymor byr oedd yr 
hyn a oedd yn cael ei ddilyn yn awr.  
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd Aelodau'r Pwyllgor, i ddweud a oedd yn fodlon â'r ymatebion, 
ac a oedd yn dymuno:  

 

a) Cyfeirio’r penderfyniad yn ôl i’r Cabinet i’w ailystyried, gan nodi’r rhesymau 
a’r rhesymeg dros y cais; 

neu 
b) Penderfynu peidio â chyfeirio’r mater yn ôl i’r Cabinet. 

 
Roedd nifer o Aelodau'n parhau'n anfodlon â'r adroddiad a gofynnwyd am ei gyfeirio'n ôl 
i'r Cabinet gydag argymhellion. Mynegasant fod angen i'r Cabinet fod yn glir eu bod yn 
ystyried opsiynau eraill ar gyfer y cyfnod o ddwy flynedd a'u bod yn anghyfforddus gyda'r 
dirprwyo i Swyddogion pan oedd cost prynu'r offer yn ôl yn parhau i fod yn anhysbys.  
 
Dywedodd Aelodau eraill eu bod yn teimlo'n dawel eu meddwl bod yr Aelod Cabinet 
Cymunedau a Swyddogion yn canolbwyntio ar edrych ar werth gorau a gwasanaeth 
gorau ac felly'n cefnogi'r adroddiad ond, yn seiliedig ar baragraff 9.5 o'r adroddiad a 
dderbyniwyd gan y Cabinet a ddywedodd, '…model gwasanaeth gwastraff y dyfodol, 
comisiynu cyngor arbenigol os oes angen ac adrodd yn ôl i'r Cabinet ar y model 
gwasanaeth newydd fel y'i datblygwyd', argymhellodd bod unrhyw gyngor arbenigol ac 
unrhyw brosesau comisiynu yn adrodd yn ôl i'r Pwyllgor Craffu i'w hystyried cyn mynd i'r 
Cabinet.  
 
Amlygodd yr Aelodau bwysigrwydd craffu, ansawdd a chwestiynau manwl a oedd yn 
atgyfnerthu gwerth craffu cyn gwneud penderfyniadau corfforaethol. Heb ymgysylltu â 
chraffu, roedd amwysedd, diffyg gwybodaeth a dealltwriaeth a oedd wedi arwain at 
anfodlonrwydd.   
 
Cynigiwyd y dylai'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol gymryd perchnogaeth o'r 
contract gwastraff.  
 
Roedd peth pryder hefyd am amseroldeb y broses a'r risg o golli amser gwerthfawr drwy 
gyfeirio'r mater yn ôl i'r Cabinet. 
 
Eglurodd y Cadeirydd pe bai'r penderfyniad yn cael ei wneud i gyfeirio'r mater yn ôl i'r 
Cabinet bod rheidrwydd cyfansoddiadol arnynt i ymgynnull o fewn 7 diwrnod gwaith i 
ailystyried.  
 
PENDERFYNIAD:  Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth fanwl gyda Swyddogion a’r Pwyllgor 
Gwaith, cytunodd y Pwyllgor drwy fwyafrif na fyddai’n cyfeirio’r mater yn ôl i’r Cabinet i’w 
ystyried ymhellach ond i anfon adroddiad i gyfarfod Cabinet yn y dyfodol yn argymell y 
canlynol: 
 

a) Bod unrhyw ystyriaeth i'r contract Gwastraff yn y dyfodol yn cael ei chyflwyno 
i'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol ar adeg briodol er mwyn galluogi 
craffu cyn gwneud penderfyniad a sicrhau mewnbwn effeithiol i unrhyw 
benderfyniad sydd i ddod.  Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor i hyn gynnwys unrhyw 
gyngor arbenigol a gomisiynir ar gyfer model gwasanaeth gwastraff y dyfodol, 
cyn cyfeirio at y Cabinet, fel y crybwyllwyd ym mharagraff 9.5 o adroddiad y 
Cabinet; 

Page 15



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

12 

 
b) Bod mesurau wrth gefn yn ogystal ag edrych yn ddyfnach ar opsiynau posibl 

eraill ar gyfer darparu gwasanaethau gwastraff yn cael eu hystyried a'u trafod 
yn llawn ac yn agored wrth symud ymlaen; 

 
Bod yr opsiynau eraill a ystyriwyd er mwyn i'r Cabinet allu dod i'r penderfyniad presennol 
ar gyfer contract gwastraff tymor byr o 2024 i 2026, yn cael eu cyhoeddi i'r cyhoedd er 
mwyn sicrhau didwylledd a thryloywder llawn. 
 

6. ALLDRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW 2021-22 
 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid yr adroddiad gyda'r bwriad o 
roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor am berfformiad ariannol refeniw’r Cyngor am y 
flwyddyn a ddaeth i ben ar 31 Mawrth 2022.  
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid a'i thimau am yr 
adroddiad cynhwysfawr a gwahoddodd gwestiynau neu gyfraniadau'r Aelodau. 
 
Nododd yr aelodau yr effaith a gafodd Covid-19 ar y gyllideb, yn gadarnhaol ac yn 
negyddol, a holwyd pa mor hawdd oedd hi i weithio gyda Llywodraeth Cymru ynghylch 
cyllid ychwanegol a pha mor effeithiol y bu.  
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid mai'r flwyddyn ariannol 
ddiwethaf oedd yr ail o'r gronfa caledi ac felly bod y systemau a'r prosesau sydd mewn 
lle i hawlio'r arian eisoes wedi hen sefydlu erbyn adeg yr hawliadau llynedd. Ar gyfer 
2021-22, hawliwyd y cynnydd mewn gwariant yn fisol a hawliwyd incwm a gollwyd bob 
chwarter i helpu gyda materion llif arian. Roedd y broses dalu hefyd wedi bod yn 
gyflymach yn ystod 2021-22 nag yn y flwyddyn flaenorol wrth i Gynghorau addasu i'r 
system.  
 
Dywedodd fod Llywodraeth Cymru yn craffu ar hawliadau ond pe bai unrhyw 
ymholiadau'n codi, byddent yn cael eu hanfon yn ôl i gael eglurhad a bod arian yn cael 
ei ryddhau cyn gynted â phosibl ar ôl yr eglurhad. Yn ogystal, os oedd un elfen o 
hawliad yn cael ei chraffu, roedd elfennau eraill yr hawliad yn cael eu talu yn y cyfamser 
ac nid oeddent, felly, yn effeithio'r hawliad cyfan. Roedd y broses wedi gwella wrth i 
gynefindra â'r systemau wella.  
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am gefndir ynglŷn a faint o arian cyfalaf wrth gefn a ddelir a 
chadarnhad pam fod cronfeydd mor fawr yn cael eu dal. 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y cronfeydd wrth gefn wedi 
codi ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn ddiwethaf wrth i swm sylweddol o arian ddod drwodd ar 
ddiwedd y flwyddyn nad oedd modd ei wario'n effeithiol ac effeithlon felly roedd wedi'i 
gario ymlaen. Cadarnhaodd fod hynny'n un peth y gellid ailddefnyddio cronfeydd wrth 
gefn ar ei gyfer.  
 
Yn ogystal, roedd swm mawr wedi'i symud i'r cronfeydd cyfalaf wrth gefn i ychwanegu at 
yr arian gan Lywodraeth Cymru. Amlygodd, yn enwedig yn y rhaglen gyfalaf, gostau 
cynyddol wrth i gostau deunyddiau godi ac wrth i gadwyni cyflenwi gael trafferth, a oedd 
wedi effeithio ar gostau. Yn ogystal, roedd y costau sy’n gysylltiedig ag agenda 
datgarboneiddio 2030 a rhaglen moderneiddio ysgolion Band B yn gweld costau uwch 
felly roedd yn ddoeth rhoi rhywfaint o arian o’r neilltu i sicrhau y gellid anrhydeddu’r 
ymrwymiad i’r rhaglen honno. Dywedodd fod rhywfaint o wariant ar gynlluniau sy'n 
ymwneud â phriffyrdd a meysydd chwarae wedi'i gymeradwyo yng nghyfarfod diwethaf y 
Cyngor a chadarnhaodd fod rhywfaint o'r arian wrth gefn i helpu i ariannu rhai prosiectau 

Page 16



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

13 

seilwaith mawr boed yn cael eu hariannu'n unigol neu gyda rhywfaint o arian cyfatebol 
gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  
 
Mewn perthynas â chostau yswiriant, nododd yr Aelodau fod y gyllideb net a osodwyd ar 
£1.3 miliwn wedi codi i alldro gwirioneddol o £2.84m a holwyd natur ac achos y costau, 
pa un ai oedd llawer o hawliadau bach neu nifer o hawliadau mawr ac ai mewnol neu 
allanol oeddynt. 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid bod gostyngiad wedi bod yn y 
blynyddoedd blaenorol a blwyddyn gyntaf y pandemig ond gyda chynnydd sylweddol y 
llynedd. Mae'n bosibl bod dwy flynedd o hawliadau wedi'u gweinyddu yn y flwyddyn a 
arweiniodd at alw yn y system. Cadarnhaodd y byddai'r sefyllfa'n cael ei dadansoddi a'i 
monitro'n ofalus i ddeall a oedd yn mynd i fod yn sefyllfa hirdymor y byddai angen ei 
lliniaru neu a oedd y galw yn y system wedi lleddfu.  
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau i wybodaeth gael ei darparu i'r Pwyllgor ar natur yr hawliadau yn 
dilyn y dadansoddiad.  
 
Nododd yr Aelodau fod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol blaenorol wedi cael 
gwybod y byddai cronfa o £1,000,000 i dalu am y taliadau na ddisgwylir iddynt gael eu 
cynnwys drwy gyllid Llywodraeth Cymru o ganlyniad i'r pandemig. Gyda Covid-19 ar 
gynnydd eto, holodd y Pwyllgor a fyddai unrhyw arian arall yn cael ei gadw o fewn 
Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr i ddarparu cymorth i gyfarwyddiaethau eraill pe bai 
angen.  
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid bod dyraniad cyllideb 
sylfaenol o £1,000,000 o fewn y gyllideb eleni oherwydd daeth yn hysbys bod y gronfa 
caledi yn mynd i ddod i ben yn y flwyddyn ariannol gyfredol. Dim ond mewn perthynas 
ag offer amddiffyn personol yr oedd ymrwymiad yn ei erbyn. Cadarnhaodd fod rhai 
ymrwymiadau tymor byr eraill yn erbyn y gronfa wrth gefn a bod y Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol - Addysg a Chefnogi Teuluoedd yn gwneud llawer o waith mewn ysgolion i 
sicrhau monitro a chefnogaeth. Fodd bynnag, roedd y galw ar y gyllideb sylfaenol yn 
isel.  
 
Holodd yr Aelodau ynghylch natur y gorwariant a'r cynnydd sylweddol mewn costau 
cyfreithiol gofal plant ac a oedd angen ei ystyried ar gyfer dyraniad yn y dyfodol.  
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y pwysau o ganlyniad i 
gynnydd mewn achosion gofal plant cymhleth lle bu'n rhaid i lawer o waith gael ei roi ar 
gontract allanol i Gwnselydd. Cadarnhaodd ei fod yn cael ei fonitro'n agos. 
 
Amlygodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd a'r Aelod Cabinet dros Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a 
Chymorth Cynnar gyfrifoldebau'r awdurdod fel Rhieni Corfforaethol a bod y cynnydd 
oherwydd nifer y plant mewn achosion llys a oedd angen mewnbwn arbenigol.  
Dywedodd ei bod yn disgwyl i'r gost gynyddu oherwydd y cynnydd sylweddol yn 
anghenion cymhleth pobl ifanc. Fodd bynnag, roedd am roi sicrwydd i'r Aelodau y 
byddai'r Cyngor yn gwneud ei orau glas i gefnogi'r bobl ifanc hynny. 
 
Holodd yr Aelodau, gan gyfeirio at baragraff 4.3.1 o'r adroddiad yn ymwneud â'r ymarfer 
ail-dendro, a oedd cynnydd mawr pellach mewn contractau tacsis a bysiau mini yn cael 
ei ragweld.  
 
Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol dros Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd fod 
pwysau chwyddiant yn mynd i fod yn anodd eu rheoli. Ar y cyd â Chymdeithas 
Cyfarwyddwyr Addysg Cymru, roeddent yn gweithio'n agos gyda darparwyr trafnidiaeth 
ynghylch y pwysau gyda'r cynnydd mewn costau tanwydd i gynnal y gofyniad statudol i 

Page 17



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

14 

ddarparu cludiant o'r cartref i'r ysgol ar gyfer dysgwyr cymwys. Fodd bynnag, 
rhagwelwyd cynnydd sylweddol ac roedd y contract newydd yn debygol o ddenu 
cynnydd pellach a oedd yn mynd i fod yn heriol. 
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau ynghylch y bwriad i gyflwyno adolygiad Llywodraeth Cymru ar 
deithio dysgwyr, beth oedd parodrwydd yr awdurdod ar gyfer derbyn yr adroddiad, gan 
ystyried ei gynnwys a sut roedd yr awdurdod yn mynd i ymateb.  
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol dros Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd fod yr 
Arweinydd wedi ysgrifennu at yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg a'r Gymraeg i ofyn am 
ddiweddariad. Dywedodd fod polisi cludiant o'r cartref i'r ysgol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi 
dod yn agosach at ddisgwyliadau Llywodraeth Cymru dros y pum mlynedd diwethaf. 
Tynnodd sylw at y berthynas dda a ddatblygwyd dros y ddwy flynedd ddiwethaf gyda 
Llywodraeth Cymru a’r gobaith oedd, pe bai newidiadau sylweddol yn dilyn yr adroddiad, 
y byddai Llywodraeth Cymru yn rhannu’r cynigion gyda Chyfarwyddwyr yn gynnar a 
chyn cyhoeddi.  
 
Gofynnodd yr aelodau a oedd arian adran 106 wedi'i gynnwys yn y ffigurau wrth gefn ar 
gyfer addysg neu a oedd yn cael ei gadw yn rhywle arall gan gydnabod ei fod yn swm 
sylweddol o arian.  
 
Eglurodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid eu bod yn gronfeydd refeniw wrth gefn a oedd 
wedi'u sefydlu a bod cyllid adran 106 ar wahân. Cawsant eu cynnwys yn y cyfrifon ac yn 
y datganiad o gyfrifon ond ni chawsant eu dal yn y cronfeydd wrth gefn a glustnodwyd. 
 
Holodd yr aelodau sut y byddent yn gwybod faint o arian oedd yn cael ei ddal o gyllid 
adran 106 ar gyfer pob Cyfarwyddiaeth. 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid nad oedd yr arian yn cael ei dderbyn fesul 
Cyfarwyddiaeth gan y gallent fod ar gyfer maes penodol i ddarparu ystod eang o 
wasanaethau megis maes chwarae, mannau chwarae, ysgol, ac ati. Cadarnhaodd y 
byddai mwy o fanylion yn y datganiad o gyfrifon ac y byddai'r cyfrifon drafft yn cael eu 
cyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio ym mis Gorffennaf ond yn y cyfamser, 
gallai ddod â rhai manylion ynghyd. 
 
Cadarnhaodd yr Arweinydd fod pryderon ynghylch chwyddiant costau cludiant o'r cartref 
i'r ysgol a meysydd eraill o bwysau chwyddiannol yn cael eu codi gyda Chymdeithas 
Llywodraeth Leol Cymru (WLGA) ac y gellid eu hadlewyrchu wrth bennu cyllideb 
Llywodraeth Cymru. 
 
Mewn perthynas â chyllid adran 106, dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau fod y 
Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygu yn arfer derbyn adroddiadau rheolaidd gyda'r rhestr o holl 
gytundebau 106. Cydnabu ei bod yn bwysig i bob Aelod weld a bod yn ymwybodol o ba 
gytundebau oedd o fewn eu wardiau, y nifer a'r amserlenni ar gyfer eu gweithredu. 
 
Nododd yr aelodau y chwyddiant enfawr mewn olew, disel a phetrol a gofynnwyd pa 
sgyrsiau oedd yn cael eu cynnal ar lefel WLGA a chydag undebau llafur ynghylch y 45c 
y filltir a staff cynorthwyol. 
 
Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd a’r Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a 
Chymorth Cynnar mai hi oedd llefarydd WLGA ar y gweithlu a bod costau tanwydd a 
chostau byw ar yr agenda ar gyfer cyfarfod nesaf Cyd-gyngor Cymru a sicrhaodd yr 
Aelodau bod y trafodaethau rhain yn cael eu cynnal.  
 
Yn ogystal, tynnodd sylw at y ffaith bod Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr eisoes yn talu staff ar 
gyfradd o 47 ceiniog y filltir uwchlaw cyfradd HMRC o 45 ceiniog y filltir. Roedd angen i'r 

Page 18



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

15 

Cyngor fod yn glir ynghylch sut yr oedd am gynnal y sefyllfa a nododd fod angen i 
HMRC a Llywodraeth San Steffan hefyd weithredu ar y mater. 
 
Mewn perthynas ag asesiadau traffig cyffordd, holodd yr Aelodau a fyddai digon o 
asesiadau ond nid y gallu i weithredu eu canfyddiadau oherwydd diffyg cyllid, boed yn 
refeniw neu'n gyfalaf. 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol dros Gymunedau fod dyraniad eleni o £3.5 
miliwn yn y rhaglen priffyrdd i fynd i'r afael â nifer o faterion, gan gynnwys ailarwynebu 
ffyrdd, gwella cyffyrdd a goleuadau stryd. Dywedodd fod gan y Cabinet uchelgais y 
byddai'n rhan o raglen gyfalaf dreigl ac felly, na fyddai unrhyw asesiadau'n cael eu 
gwneud yn ofer; byddai'r prosiectau'n cael eu gweithredu ond ar sail blaenoriaeth. 
 
Mewn perthynas ag Atodiad 3, Monitro Cyllideb Refeniw – Alldro Diwedd Blwyddyn, 
nododd yr Aelodau y byddai pwysau chwyddiant sylweddol yn effeithio ar y 
gwasanaethau a ddarperir a gofynnwyd a oedd disgwyl unrhyw gefnogaeth bellach gan 
lywodraeth ganolog.  
 
Yn ogystal, nododd yr Aelodau y gyfres o ymrwymiadau maniffesto a wnaed gan y 
weithrediaeth ac y gallai pwysau chwyddiant effeithio'n sylweddol ar gyflawni'r rheini. 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau a oedd hyder y byddai'r Cabinet yn cyflawni ymrwymiadau'r 
maniffesto ar amser ac o fewn y gyllideb; yn arbennig, a allent gyflawni eu hymrwymiad i 
ddarparu prydau ysgol am ddim i bob plentyn ysgol gynradd erbyn mis Medi 2023.  
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y codiad cymorth refeniw 
wedi bod yn un unwaith ac am byth ac yn gwbl ddigynsail. Cydnabu'r pwysau 
chwyddiant a wynebwyd ac ailadroddodd y trafodaethau a oedd yn cael eu cynnal gyda 
WLGA a Llywodraeth Cymru ar eu heffaith debygol a cheisio ei fesur ledled Cymru. 
Roedd yn ansicr a fyddai rhagor o arian yn dod, ond roedd data'n cael ei goladu i geisio 
dylanwadu ar sefyllfa'r setliad ar gyfer y flwyddyn nesaf. 
 
Roedd yr Arweinydd yn cydnabod bod cyflwyno prydau ysgol am ddim yn faniffesto 
allweddol i’r weithrediaeth a Llywodraeth Cymru a chadarnhaodd fod Llywodraeth 
Cymru wedi bod yn glir y byddent yn darparu’r cyllid i’w ddarparu ac ar gyfer cyflwyno’r 
terfyn 20mya ar ffyrdd. Cydnabu'r anawsterau a wynebwyd oherwydd y cynnydd mewn 
chwyddiant a'r argyfwng costau byw a oedd yn ei gwneud yn anodd rhagfynegi cyllid 
ond cadarnhaodd fod Llywodraeth y DU hefyd yn cael ei lobïo am gyllid.  
 
Amlygodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg bwysigrwydd ymrwymiad y maniffesto gan na 
ddylai unrhyw blentyn fod yn llwglyd wrth fynychu’r ysgol. Cadarnhaodd y byddai'r fenter 
yn dechrau ym mis Medi gyda dull graddol o weithredu gyda disgwyl i bob plentyn ysgol 
fabanod gael prydau ysgol am ddim erbyn 2023. Roedd yn cydnabod bod y gyfradd 
chwyddiant afresymol wedi golygu bod oedi bach i blant ysgol iau ond roedd disgwyl 
prydau ysgol am ddim i bob plentyn oed ysgol gynradd erbyn 2024 yn unol â tharged 
Llywodraeth Cymru.  
 
Parhaodd fod tua phum ysgol yn y fwrdeistref a oedd angen offer a lle ychwanegol i allu 
darparu'r prydau ysgol am ddim ac roedd y costau cynyddol a'r oedi wrth gynllunio yn 
golygu y byddai oedi hyd at 2024 ond tynnodd sylw at y ffaith ei fod o fewn darpariaeth 
tymor y Cyngor hwn.  
 
Cydnabu’r Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau’r oedi wrth gyflawni ymrwymiad y maniffesto 
i gynyddu buddsoddiad mewn priffyrdd oherwydd cynllunio ac adnoddau ond 
cadarnhaodd y byddai hynny a’r buddsoddiad hir-ddisgwyliedig mewn mannau chwarae 
i’w gweld yn fuan.   
 

Page 19



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

16 

Cadarnhaodd yr Aelod Cabinet Adnoddau fod 121 o ymrwymiadau maniffesto ar 
wahanol gamau o'u gwireddu. Mewn perthynas â phrydau ysgol am ddim, dywedodd fod 
prosiect gwerth £2 filiwn i baratoi'r ceginau i gyflwyno'r fenter. Roedd yn sicr y gallai 
ddechrau ym mis Medi 2023 ac roedd yn gobeithio y byddai Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
helpu i wireddu’r uchelgais. Parhaodd ei fod yn fenter wych a fyddai'n cael ei chyflwyno 
cyn gynted â phosibl. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
 
 Nododd y Pwyllgor yr adroddiad a gofynnodd am y canlynol: 
 

- Darparu gwybodaeth am natur a ffynhonnell hawliadau yswiriant yn 2021-22. 
Darparu gwybodaeth yn dangos y Cronfeydd Refeniw Wrth Gefn a ddelir gan y 
Gyfarwyddiaeth.   
 

7. ENWEBIAD HYRWYDDWR RHIANTA CORFFORAETHOL 
 
Cyflwynodd y  Swyddog Craffu  yr adroddiad, a oedd yn gofyn i'r Pwyllgor enwebu un 
Aelod fel ei Hyrwyddwr Rhianta Corfforaethol i gynrychioli'r Pwyllgor fel gwahoddiad i 
gyfarfodydd Pwyllgor Rhianta Corfforaethol y Cabinet. 
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd enwebiadau, ac yn dilyn hynny 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:  Enwebu'r Cynghorydd Amanda Williams i gynrychioli'r 

Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol fel Aelod 
Gwahoddedig i gyfarfodydd Rhianta Corfforaethol Pwyllgor 
y Cabinet. 

 
8. ENWEBIAD I BANEL CRAFFU'R BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS 

 
Cyflwynodd y  Swyddog Craffu yr adroddiad, a oedd yn gofyn i'r Pwyllgor enwebu tri 
Aelod i eistedd ar Banel Craffu'r Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus. 
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd enwebiadau, ac yn dilyn hynny: 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:  Bod y Cynghorwyr Simon Griffiths a Freya Bletsoe yn cael 

eu henwebu gan y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 
Corfforaethol i eistedd ar Banel Craffu'r Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus, a cheisio un enwebiad pellach 
yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 
Corfforaethol ym mis Gorffennaf. 

 
9. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y BLAENRAGLEN WAITH 

 
Cyflwynodd yr Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Craffu'r Blaenraglen 
Waith Cychwynnol amlinellol ddrafft arfaethedig yn Atodiad A i’r Pwyllgor i’w drafod a’i 
ystyried, gan ofyn am unrhyw wybodaeth benodol a nodwyd gan y Pwyllgor i’w 
chynnwys yn yr eitemau ar gyfer y ddau gyfarfod nesaf, gan gynnwys y gwahoddedigion 
oedd yn dymuno bod yn bresennol, a gofynnodd i'r Pwyllgor nodi unrhyw eitemau 
pellach i'w hystyried ar y Blaenraglen Waith  o ystyried y meini prawf dethol ym 
mharagraff 4.6 a gofynnodd i'r Pwyllgor nodi y byddai'r Blaenraglen Waith  ar gyfer y 
Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu Pwnc yn cael ei hadrodd i gyfarfod o COSC, yn dilyn 
ystyriaeth yng nghylch mis Gorffennaf o gyfarfodydd SOSC. 
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelodau at yr Asesiad Perfformiad Corfforaethol a oedd yn nodi nifer o 
risgiau corfforaethol, megis materion gweithlu, deddfwriaeth newydd yn gosod gofynion 

Page 20



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 30 MEHEFIN 2022 

 

17 

ar wasanaethau, pwysau chwyddiant ar ddarparu gwasanaethau a materion caffael yn y 
dyfodol a materion rheoli asedau. Cynigiwyd y dylid ailymweld â'r Flaenraglen Waith yn 
dilyn craffu ar yr Adroddiad Perfformiad yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor ym mis 
Gorffennaf. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:                  Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried a chymeradwyo'r Blaenraglen 

Waith ddrafft, yn amodol ar ystyried unrhyw bynciau 
posibl a allai gael eu cynnig yn dilyn craffu ar Berfformiad 
y Cyngor yn erbyn ei ymrwymiadau ar gyfer adroddiad 
Blwyddyn 2021-22 yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor ym mis 
Gorffennaf. 

10. EITEMAU BRYS 
 
Dim 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 12:45 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



    

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

15 DECEMBER 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

QUARTER TWO PERFORMANCE 2022-23 

1. Purpose of report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with an overview of the Council’s 
performance against the Corporate Plan commitments in quarter two of 2022-23. This report 
should be viewed in the context of it being the final year of the current Corporate Plan.  The 
format of this report and the supporting dashboards are in the process of review in line with 
the drafting of the new Corporate Plan and Performance Framework.    

 

2.        Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objectives under 

the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-   

• Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the county 
borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions 
for all people in the county borough.  
 

• Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient – taking steps 
to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council 
and its services. Supporting individuals and communities to build resilience, and enable 
them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and independent lives. 

 

• Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources (financial, physical, ecological, 
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and 
support the creation of resources throughout the community that can help to deliver the 
Council’s well-being objectives. 

3.    Background 
 
3.1     In March 2022 the Council published its Corporate Plan 2018-23, reviewed for 2022-2023. It 

included 31 commitments and 36 performance indicators to measure the progress for this 
financial year.    

 
3.2 As part of the Performance Management Framework, monitoring of the commitments and 

performance indicators is carried out quarterly through four directorate dashboards. These are 
monitored regularly by Directorate Management Teams and reported quarterly to both the 
Corporate Performance Assessment (CPA) Panel, consisting of Cabinet, Corporate 
Management Board, Heads of Service and Scrutiny Chairs, and to the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (COSC).  

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4



    

3.3 The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC) has a role in monitoring and 
scrutinising progress on the delivery of the Council’s well-being objectives to deliver efficient 
services.    

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 

Summary of Performance on Corporate Commitments 
 
4.1     Data collected for quarter 2 returns shows performance as follows: 

 

 Summary of Performance Indicators 
 
4.2 An analysis of Corporate Plan indicators is set out in paragraphs 4.5 and 4.6.  An analysis of 

other indicators used to support the delivery of the Corporate Plan is set out in paragraphs 4.7 
and 4.8.  Targets have been set for most indicators, though for 2022-23 in some instances 
where there remains ongoing uncertainty around the Covid-19 pandemic a numerical target 
could not be set.  In these instances, targets are set as ‘establish new baselines’ or 
‘benchmarking’.  It is recommended that for 2022-23, COSC take into account the continuing 
impact of Covid-19 when assessing Council performance.   

 
4.3 Targets set in the Corporate Plan published in March 2022 have been reviewed and revised 

where appropriate to consider year end performance 2021-22.  Revised targets were approved 
by Council and published in October 2022, and these are the targets against which quarter 2 
performance is being judged.     

 
4.4 At year end an overview of the Corporate performance position will be provided on all the 

indicators, including corporate plan, service performance and national indicators.  National 
indicator comparisons will be included where they are available.  Overview information about 
commitments and indicators is set out in Directorate dashboards attached as Appendices A 
to D.  The latest version of the Corporate Risk Register, as presented to the Governance and 
Audit Committee in November 2022, to show context of risk is attached at Appendix E.   

 
 Summary of Corporate Plan Indicators 
 
4.5 Of the 36 indicators identified for the Corporate Plan, 24 can be compared against their 

target, and 12 indicators cannot be given a RAYG status as there is either no data or no 
target set.  Performance for quarter 2 for the 24 indicators is set out below:   

Status Meaning  

Q2 Performance 

Number Percentage 

BLUE Complete 0  0% 

GREEN 
Progressing as planned and according to designated 
time, budget and desired outcomes 

18  58.1% 

AMBER Issues that could delay progress 12 38.7% 

RED Significant issues 1  3.2% 

Page 24



    

 

 
4.6 Trend data is available for 22 of the 36 Corporate Plan indicators and performance compared 

with last year is as follows:   
 

 
 Other performance indicators 
 
4.7 When assessing corporate performance, Directorates measure additional service indicators   to 

support the delivery of the Corporate Plan.  Of the 68 indicators identified as part of the CPA 
process, 35 can be compared against their target, and 33 indicators cannot be given a RAYG 
status as there is either no data (28) or no target set (5).  Performance for the 35 indicators is 
set out below:   

 

Status Definition 

Q2 Performance  

Number Percentage 

GREEN 
On target or better AND Performance has improved 
compared to last year (or performance is at maximum 
and cannot be improved on) 

8  33.3% 

YELLOW On target  6  25% 

AMBER Target is within 10%  3  12.5% 

RED Target is missed by 10% or more 7  29.2% 

Performance Indicators (Trend) 

Trend at Q2 

Number Percentage 

 
Performance has improved compared to last year. 12  54.55% 

 Performance has been maintained (this includes 

those at maximum) 
1  4.55% 

 

Performance has declined BUT within 10% of the 
last year 

5 22.7% 

 

Performance has declined by 10% or more 
compared to previous year 

4  18.2% 

Status Definition 

Q2 Performance  

Number Percentage 

GREEN 
On target or better AND Performance has improved 
compared to last year (or performance is at 
maximum and cannot be improved on) 

11 31.4% 

Page 25



    

 
4.8 Trend data is available for 34 of the 68 Corporate Plan and service plan indicators and 

performance compared with last year is as follows:   
 

 
 Summary of Sickness Absence 
 
4.9 For 2022-23, the focus continues to be on trying to reduce sickness across the organisation.  

There are no individual directorate targets.  Staff wellbeing measures are in place. At quarter 
2, cumulative days lost per FTE were 5.89 compared with 5.16 days for the same period last 
year, a 14.1% increase.  All areas, especially Social Services and Wellbeing and Education 
and Family Support experienced increased sickness levels. The ratio of long-term and short-
term absence remains the same as it was at quarter 2 last year, long-term 79% and short-
term 21%, providing further evidence of a return to pre-pandemic absence levels.   

 
 Self-Assessment 
 
4.10 As the Council moves towards a self-assessment approach, its performance framework and 

reporting will provide a more holistic view of Council performance.  For this quarter, the 
dashboards include oversight of financial information, risk, workforce planning, procurement 
and recommendations from external regulators.  This is an evolving process which will be 
further refined in 2022-23.  The self-assessment for 2022-23 will be completed and presented 
to the Governance and Audit Committee, before being submitted to Council for approval, in 
line with the requirements of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021.     

  
5.  Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 Monitoring the Council’s performance against its Corporate Plan forms part of the Council’s 

Performance Management Framework. 
 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications  

YELLOW On target  8  22.9% 

AMBER Target is within 10%  4  11.4% 

RED Target is missed by 10% or more 12  34.3% 

Performance Indicators (Trend) 

Trend at Q2 

Number Percentage 

 
Performance has improved compared to last year. 17  50% 

 Performance has been maintained (this includes those 

at maximum) 
1  2.94% 

 

Performance has declined BUT within 10% of the last 
year 

6 17.65% 

 

Performance has declined by 10% or more compared 
to previous year 

10  29.41% 

Page 26



    

6.1  The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty and the 
impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the preparation of this 
report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the impact of strategic decisions, 
such as the development or the review of policies, strategies, services and functions. This is 
an information report, therefore it is not necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment 
in the production of this report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable 
equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
7. Well-being Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications   

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered when writing this report.  It is 

considered there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of the 

well-being goals / objectives as a result of this report.   

8. Financial implications 

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 The Committee is recommended to note the Council’s performance in 2022-23, as at quarter 

2. 
 
 
Mark Shephard  
Chief Executive 
2 December 2022 
 
Contact Officer: Kate Pask 

Corporate Improvement Officer 
 
Telephone:  (01656) 643516 
Email:   kate.pask@bridgend.gov.uk. 
 
Postal address: Corporate Performance Team 

Chief Executive Directorate 
Civic Offices, Angel Steet, 
Bridgend 
CF31 4WB 

 
Background documents:   None 

Page 27

mailto:kate.pask@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

 CHIEF EXECUTIVE – PERFORMANCE Q2 

• Significant ‘in year’ pressures and increased demand for some services, for example homelessness and human resources , creating issues with capacity, resilience and ability 
to meet our required service standards. 

• Greater financial uncertainty about future years funding making planning to deliver sustainable services more difficult, pay awards and inflationary costs well in excess of 
budgeted amounts. 

Commitments 2022-23 
RAG – current progress against 
commitment 

 All Indicators (incl. Finance and sickness PIs) Corporate Plan Indicators 

Q2 2022-23 Directorate 
Commitments to delivering 
Wellbeing Objectives 

Total Blue Red Amber Green Performance vs Target Trend vs Q2 2021-22 Performance vs Target 
Trend vs Q2 2021-22  
(Excluding finance) 

Wellbeing Objective One – 
Supporting a successful 
sustainable economy 

1    1 

 

 
 

 

Wellbeing Objective Two –  
Helping people and 
communities to be more 
healthy and resilient 

2   1 1 

Wellbeing Objective Three –  
Smarter use of resources 

4    4 

Finance  Risks 

 Revenue Budget 

• The net revenue budget for the Directorate for 2022-23 is  
£22.515m. 

• The current year-end projected outturn is £21.857m with a 
projected under spend of £658,000. 

Capital Budget 

• At Q2 the capital budget for the Directorate for 2021-22 is 
£5.049m, with total expenditure of £934,000 and no foreseen 
under or overspend to planned budget. 

Efficiency  Savings 

 
Additional financial information is provided in the Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 – Quarter 2 Revenue Forecast report presented to Cabinet on 
18 October 2022. 
 

Savings (£000) 2022-23 
% 

2022-23 

Savings Target  £48 100% 

Likely to be achieved £48 100% 

Variance £0 0% 

Oversight of corporate risks are collectively undertaken and managed by the Corporate Management Board (CMB).  The Corporate risk 
register can be found as Appendix E and should be viewed in the overall context of the performance of this dashboard to understand 
the risks. Some are Council wide whilst others focus on specific directorates.   
 
Workforce - The labour market remains very challenging in many disciplines, including social care. Some measures have been 
implemented to seek to mitigate and treat the risks including use of the new market supplement policy, an enhanced grow your own 
programme for both apprentices and graduates and more innovative practise around things like international recruitment. However, out 
of necessity, while clearly undesirable, the use of agency staff remans high in some areas and vacancies impact on the capacity of the 
organisation to deliver all of its objectives and can lead to an impact on wellbeing and increased pressure on the depleted number of 
staff in work.  
 
Suppliers - The Council has a procurement strategy and procurement processes in place to try to mitigate supplier failure. When 
tendering for services the Council requires contingency arrangements to be in place to allow for the eventuality of supplier failure (for 
example in the case of refuse and recycling collection contracts). The Council also seeks to shape the market where possible to avoid 
over reliance on single suppliers (for example in social care).  Where appropriate contract conditions are included to ensure the 
contractor has the appropriate level of security required for the service they provide. This will differ depending on the nature of the 
service and the legal requirements applicable. Services are also doing more to work with suppliers to ensure early dialogue when 
suppliers are under financial pressure. However, currently most procurement exercises are coming in higher than the budget/estimates, 
often requiring re-tendering and therefore additional work, and causing pressures on allocated budgets for services and capital 
development. 
 
Budget – the budget for the current year remains under significant pressure due to the impact of inflation across the services, in 
particular energy and commodity costs, the pay rise agreed for this year and the cost of living situation. The budget is being closely 
monitored and reported to Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC). This pressure is also being 
evidenced in the capital programme in a number of ways including a reduction in the number of tenders being received for schemes, 
the cost of tenders being higher than anticipated and delays due to issues within the supply chain. 
 

1

1

2

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

WBO1 WBO2 WBO3 Other

2 2

1

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

1

1

1

>10% off

<10% off

On target

On target & improved

1 1

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

P
age 29



Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

Budget planning – the financial  pressures being experienced in the current year are predicted to continue into the 2023/2024 financial 
year and therefore are being brought into the budget planning process. At the current time, the late announcement of the draft financial 
settlement for the coming year is impacting on the budget planning process. The draft settlement is due to be announced on 13 th 
December 2022. 
 
Homelessness – the number of individuals and families presenting as homeless continues to be above the pre pandemic levels as a 
result of a change in Welsh Government guidance in this area. There is a shortage of suitable accommodation in the county borough. 
The service continues to work with the social and private landlords to address this matter, but this will take time to achieve. In the short 
term, the Council is working with V2C to bring some long-term void properties back into use and these properties are planned to be 
back in use by the end of this financial year.   

Consultation, Engagement & Involvement 

• Air quality consultation carried out by the Shared Regulatory Service (SRS) in relation to Park Street Bridgend County Borough 
Council. 

• A survey on the budget for 2023/2024 is being planned and will be launched at the end of Q3. The findings will inform the final 
budget proposals for the coming financial year. 

• A staff survey has been developed and will be circulated in the next quarter. This will engage staff and their responses will feed 
into the ongoing development of the strategic workforce plan. 

Implications of Financial Reductions on Service Performance and other Key Issues/challenges 

• The Chief Executives Directorate (CEXs) has a saving target of £48,000 in the current financial year and is on target to meet this requirement. The impact of the savings is anticipated to be minimal. 
• The service is showing underspends in a number of service as a result of staffing vacancies, which remain vacant despite having been advertised. Whilst this supports the overall financial position, it is 

putting teams that are already working at capacity, under additional pressure and will impact on the ability of teams to complete work in a timely manner. 

• The overall increased demand on services and the workforce challenges which mean that we are often operating with reduced capacity as many posts cannot be filled are creating some service 
performance issues. Forecasted financial reductions moving forward will be difficult to identify without further compromising service quality, which in turn has direct impact on other front-line services 
where the corporate support lies in the CEXs Directorate. 

• Specifically the current performance challenges include: 
• Homelessness indicators are ‘red’ or trending downwards. 
• Percentage of households threatened with homelessness successfully prevented from becoming homeless, quarter 2 position 12.4%, end of year target 30%, so achievement at risk.  Duty on local 

authorities brought in during the pandemic has brought unprecedented demand on social housing stock, and Welsh Government (WG) sets a high bar for acceptable solutions.   

• 168 Ukrainian refugees in Bridgend requiring long term housing has increased demand for homes.  
• Impact of the Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016 and a buoyant private sector market, has reduced the number of homes available to rent as landlords choose to pursue other options. 
• Directorate sickness has increased marginally, as measured by the number of working days or shifts per FTE lost due to sickness, quarter 2 performance is 3.5 days, year-end target is 7 days, but at 

the same time last year it was 3.2 days. 

• The overall Council position at quarter 2 is 5.9 days. 
• The majority of sickness in CEXs is long term at 74%. 
• Over 50% of all sickness relates to stress, anxiety and depression. 

• Significant recruitment and retention problems mean that vacancy levels are high in many services causing capacity issues but leading to increased pressure on those staff working and a fatigued and 
depleted workforce.   

• Increased demand for many services means that the design and resourcing of some services cannot easily cope.  
• Increased uncertainty in terms of service sustainability and  ongoing changes to work practices and environment.  

  

P
age 30



Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

Regulatory Tracker 

 

  

Report 
Issued 

Name of 
Audit/Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for Improvement Action in Q1&Q2 2022-23 
RAG (at 
end Q2) 

Open/Closed 

Oct 2022 
Audit Wales, Springing 
Forward -  Strategic 
Workforce Management 

R1 The Council needs to urgently develop its 
strategic workforce approach, embedding the 
sustainable development principle at its core, to 
enable it to address the significant workforce issues 
it faces. 

The development of a strategic workforce plan has not progressed as quickly 
as hoped. The Human Resources (HR) management structure is extremely 
lean and key strategic managers have been heavily involved in operational 
issues to support corporate priorities, particularly Childrens Services. Many of 
the RED activities are operationally linked to workforce planning 
It is anticipated this work will develop further during the early part of 2023. 

RED Open 

R2 The Council should develop a suite of strategic 
quantitative and qualitative measures to enhance its 
ability to understand the impacts and affordability of 
its workforce plans and actions. 

Workforce plans will need to be developed, which are aimed at getting the 
right people in the right place at the right time to deliver corporate priorities 
(wellbeing objectives).  These will need to be aligned to financial planning.  
The current budgetary pressures will impact on the ability to fully implement 
an effective workforce plan on a corporate wide basis. 

AMBER Open 

R3 The Council should also explore opportunities to 
benchmark its own performance over time and its 
arrangements with other bodies to provide a 
different dimension to its performance management 
data. Whilst also offering an insight to how other 
bodies are performing and discovering notable 
practice elsewhere. 

This work is ongoing with the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA).    

AMBER Open 

Aug 2021 
Audit Wales, Financial 
Sustainability 
Assessment 

P1 Accurate forecasting of expenditure  
Officers should provide full Council with its annual 
outturn to budget report to improve transparency 
and provide members with opportunities to compare 
and challenge budget to outturn. 

The final out turn report for 2021/22 was presented to both Council and the 
Governance and Audit Committee in June this year. 

BLUE Closed 

June 2021 

Audit Wales, Review of 
Arrangements to 
Become a ‘Digital 
Council’ 

P1 The Council could improve its Digital Strategy. 
A light touch review of the Digital Strategy was completed in 2022. A full 
review will be undertaken in 2023 when the digital priorities for the Council 
have been reaffirmed. 

AMBER Open 

P2 The Council should strengthen some governance 
arrangements to deliver the strategy. 

A Digital Transformation Board is now in place, consisting of representation 
from across all service areas. Updates from each Board meeting is fed back 
to Directorate Management Team (DMT) meetings and to the Corporate 
Management Board (CMB) on a quarterly basis.   

GREEN Open 

P3 - The Council should consider improving 
communication with staff / members to evoke the 
culture necessary to change. 

When the new Digital Strategy is agreed, it is proposed to launch the new 
strategy and then a regular update will be included in the staff newsletter. 
Work is also being done to develop an Extranet/Intranet to aid communication 
with employees that don’t have corporate ICT so that they can access via 
their own ICT equipment.  

AMBER Open 

P
age 31



Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

KEY: 

Overall performance judgement 

Status Descriptor 

EXCELLENT 
Very strong, sustained performance and practice 

GOOD 
Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement 

ADEQUATE and needs 
improvement 

Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects require 
improvement 

UNSATISFACTORY and 
needs urgent 
improvement Important weaknesses outweigh strengths 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Performance indicators 

Status Definition 

GREEN 
On target  or better AND Performance has improved compared to last year (or 
performance is at maximum and cannot be improved on) 

YELLOW On target  

AMBER Target is within 10%  

RED Target is missed by 10% or more 

Commitments 

Status Meaning  Descriptor  

BLUE Complete 
Project (or task within a project/plan) is completed and is no 
longer a priority.  

GREEN 

Progressing as planned 
and according to 
designated time, budget 
and desired outcomes. 

Actions completed within timescales, on budget and evidence 
of achieving desired outcomes 

AMBER 
Issues that could delay 
progress 

Task/action looks liable to go over budget 
Task/action agreed deadlines show slippage 
Task/action within 2 weeks of deadline - not started 
Risk or issue score increases (review required) 

RED Significant issues 
Task/action over budget 
Task/action agreed deadline breached 
Risk or issue score increases to critical or catastrophic 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Performance Indicators (Trend) Performance Indicator types 

 
Performance has improved compared to last year. CP Corporate Plan indicator 

 Performance has maintained (this includes those at maximum)   

 
Performance has declined BUT within 10% of the last year   

 
Performance has declined by 10% or more compared to previous year   

P
age 32



Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

WBO1: Supporting a successful sustainable economy 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.2.4 
Cross 
cutting 
commitment 

Providing the right infrastructure and support for business to 
overcome the impact of the COVID-19 situation by:  
• Deliver and implement the Corporate Procurement Strategy to 
boost the foundational economy (CED).  

Green 

Work is continuing with procurement strategies factoring in social value. The majority of tenders are 
weighted heavily on quality as opposed to price. Work is ongoing and strategies are starting to include 
premarket engagement events to work with the market on Covid recovery, Brexit and any potential 
barriers the tendering process brings to bidders. Lotting strategies are being considered to allow more 
small and medium sized enterprises (SME’s) to bid for work. Work is ongoing with our e procurement 
project and purchasing card holders are encouraged via Amazon Business to select local sellers. 

 

 

WBO2: Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.2.3  Work with households and partners to prevent people from becoming 
homeless, and support vulnerable people including rough sleepers, by 
providing a range of accommodation options reacting to the changing 
guidance from Welsh Government as part of the COVID-19 
response.  Aiming to support households to transition into long term 
solutions to prevent homelessness and escalation into statutory services. 
(CED) 

Green 

The housing service continues to work to Welsh Government policy requirement of an all-in 
approach and responds to daily homelessness presentations.  Working with partners the service 
provides a range of accommodation options to meets housing needs and works with the 3rd sector to 
provide housing related support to those in need.  Partnership working with the Registered Social 
Landlords (RSL’s) is taking place to secure additional capital funding from Welsh Government under 
the Transitional Accommodation Capital Programme to increase the supply of temporary 
accommodation. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 

Corp 
Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DOPS39 
CP 
WBO2 

The percentage of people 
presenting as homeless or 
potentially homeless, for 
whom the Authority has a 
final legal duty to secure 
suitable accommodation. 
Lower Preferred 

19.2% 30% 30% 4% 2.9% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 

Target Setting: WG has confirmed that the new guidance will remain in place and an ‘all in approach’ is 

expected of local authorities to ensure no-one is homeless. This continues to influence demand and response 

Performance: Homeless presentations continue to increase, there is a lack of permanent accommodation 

enabling earlier intervention and prevention in both the private and social rented sector.  The private rented 

sector is quite often out of reach of our clients as the local housing allowance rate is considerably lower than 

market rents.  More private tenants are leaving the sector and service notice on their tenants as a result. 

 

PAM/012 
(DOPS15) 
CP 
WBO2 

Percentage of households 
threatened with 
homelessness successfully 
prevented from becoming 
homeless 
Higher Preferred 30.5% 30% 30% 12.4% 8.4% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: WG has confirmed that the new guidance will remain in place and an ‘all in approach’ is 
expected of local authorities to ensure no-one is homeless. This continues to influence demand and response 
Performance: Welsh Government continued the covid emergency measure of the all-in approach meaning we 
have a duty to provide accommodation to all that present to the Authority.  This has resulted in 
unprecedented demand on social housing the stock of which has always been lower than demand, but this is 
particularly more so now. Since Covid-19, the private rented sector has become buoyant resulting in landlord 
selling properties or, increasing rents considerably above the amount most household we support can afford 
to pay, this is no longer a tenure considered suitable. The Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016 implemented on 
1st December 2022 has already resulted in landlords in the private rented sector selling their properties or, 
changing their use to holiday lets such as Air BnB. 

 

P
age 33

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1137&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1104&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4098&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4052&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4052&read=true


Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.2.4  Work with landlords to return empty properties back into use 
helping to increase the availability of housing for sale or rent 
in line with the empty property strategy. (CED) 

Amber 

Work on providing loans and grants to empty properties landlords continues but the new 
Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016, which places increased responsibility on the landlord 
and increased security for tenants is expected to have an impact going forward in 
relation to rental arrangements. Welsh Government is proposing a new Empty Properties 
Scheme (similar to previous Western Valleys Scheme), but Ministerial approval has not 
yet been given and further details are expected in the near future. 

27/10/2022: Quarter 2: To be 
identified when further details 
available from Welsh Government 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

21-22 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

PAM/045 
CP 
WBO2 

Number of additional dwellings created as a result of bringing 
empty properties back into use 
Higher Preferred 

3 7 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: Target Retained 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

PSR004 
(PAM/013) 
CP 
WBO2 

Percentage of private sector dwellings that had been vacant for 
more than 6 months at 1 April that were returned to occupation 
during the year through direct action by the local authority 
Higher Preferred 

4.89% 6% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: Target Retained 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

Other indicators linked to achieving WBO2 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

21-22 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

PAM/015 
(PSR002) 
Local 
WBO2 

Average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled 
Facilities Grant 
Lower Preferred 

282.12 
days 

322 days 322 days 
Awaiting 

data 
307.31 
days 

N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Target set to reflect internal and external 
factors currently in place 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

PSR009a 
Local 
WBO2 

The average number of calendar days taken to deliver a 
Disabled Facilities Grant for: a) Children and young people 
Lower Preferred 

421 days 472 days 472 days 
Awaiting 

data 
482 days N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Target set to reflect internal and external 
factors currently in place 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

PSR009b 
Local 
WBO2 

The average number of calendar days taken to deliver a 
Disabled Facilities Grant for: b) Adults 
Lower Preferred 

286.27 
days 

250 days 250 days 
Awaiting 

data 
328.48 
days 

N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Target set to reflect internal and external 
factors currently in place 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

  

P
age 34

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1119&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4239&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3922&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3922&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3961&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3961&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3906&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3920&read=true


Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

WBO3: Smarter use of resources 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.1  Work with the regional delivery group to identify and agree 
regional procurement frameworks fit for purpose to deliver 
economies of scale on common and repetitive spend. 
(CED) 

Green 

Work is still ongoing with the regional delivery group and the priority for this year is the re-tender 
of the food frameworks led by Caerphilly. For common and repetitive spend, where economies of 
scale is appropriate, national frameworks will continue to be utilised. There have been 6 Regional 
frameworks set up so far. The Authority will also continue to utilise the South East Wales 
Technical and Professionals Services Framework (SEWSTAPS) for specialist projects. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.2  Provide support to facilitate organisational and cultural 
change.  This will include workforce engagement; the 
development of new and existing employees; and 
enhancing skills capacity through investment in the 
corporate apprenticeship programme. (CED) 

Green 

The promotion of employee wellbeing is a priority and this integral to the management and 
development of the workforce. This can be evidenced in new policies and communications and 
will be part of the forthcoming staff survey. Opportunities exist for employees to develop skills in a 
range of areas as well as access qualifications. The Authority’s grow your own schemes are 
progressing well with further graduate opportunities being used to fill roles in key areas. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

21-22 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

CED28 
Local 
WBO3 

Percentage of staff participating in the staff survey 
Higher Preferred 33.04% 44.5% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: Target Retained 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

DOPS36 
CP 
WBO3 

The number of apprentices employed across the 
organisation 
Higher Preferred 

40 36 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: To increase the number of apprentices 
employed across the organisation 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

PAM/044 
Local 
WBO3 

Number of apprentices, excluding teachers, on 
formal recognised apprenticeship schemes within 
the authority during the year per 1,000 employees 
Higher Preferred 

14.06 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: To increase the number of apprentices 
employed across the organisation 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.3 
Cross 
cutting 
commitment 

Implement the planned budget reductions identified in 
the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), in 
particular for the 2022-23 financial year, set annual 
balanced budgets and establish long term financially 
sustainable solutions. (CED) 

Green 

The Chief Executive’s Directorate is currently projecting no shortfalls against any of the MTFS 
proposals for 2022-23. The net budget for the Directorate for 2022-23 is £22.515 million. 
Projections at Quarter 2 anticipate an under spend against this budget of £658,000. Future 
MTFS proposals and budget pressures are presented and considered at the Chief Executive’s 
DMT meetings on a regular basis. 

 

 

 

P
age 35

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1116&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1117&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4174&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4097&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4238&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1115&read=true


Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

 

P
age 36



Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

  

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No PI Description 

Annual indicator 
target  
22-23 
£’000 

Performance as at Q2 

Comments Red Amber Green 

£’000 % £’000 % £’000 % 

CED21 
CP feeder 
Local 
WBO3 

The value of proposed MTFS budget 
savings in the Chief Executive's 
Directorate   Higher preferred 

£48 £0 0% £0 0% £48 100% 

See WBO3.2.3 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.4 
Cross 
cutting 
commitment 

Adapt our ways of working to make better use of our 
assets and build on the technological progress 
accelerated by COVID-19. (CED)  

Green 

Work to adapt the Council’s way of working to make better use of assets and build on the technological 
progress accelerated by COVID-19 continues to make good progress, with a number of commitments 
now complete. Work is directed through the Future Service Delivery and Digitalisation boards and is 
aligned to ensure that the Council is able to realise the maximum impact of all developments. A new 
Flexitime Working Scheme has been implemented and a new Hybrid Working Policy is set to take 
effect from 31 October 2022. Both will be reviewed following an interim period. 

 

 

Other indicators linked to achieving WBO3 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

21-22 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 Target 
22-23 

Q2 position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

PAM/023 
(PPN009) 
Local 
WBO3 

Percentage of food establishments that meet food 
hygiene standards 
Higher Preferred 

97.38% 94% 94% 98.21% 97.29% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Target Retained 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

Other 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

CED22 
Local 
Other priority 

The number of working days/shifts per full time 
equivalent (FTE) Local Authority employee lost 
due to sickness in the Chief Executive's 
Directorate 
Lower Preferred 

7.08 
days 

No 
target 

N/A 3.55 days 3.27 days 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 

Target Setting: To improve performance 

Performance: The Directorate’s absence rate has seen a slight increase when 

compared with the previous year for 1 April to 30 September. Overall monitoring 

of absence levels is undertaken at the Directorate Management Team 

meetings, where there is a focus on compliance with policy and procedures. All 

longer-term absences are being managed in accordance with the absence 

 

P
age 37

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1108&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3972&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3972&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4162&read=true


Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

management policy and there continues to be a focus on supporting employees 

to manage their wellbeing. 

CHR002 
(PAM/001) 
Local 
Other priority 

The number of working days/shifts per full-time 
equivalent (FTE) local authority employee lost 
due to sickness absence (BCBC) 
Lower Preferred 

12.36 
days 

No 
target 

N/A 5.89 days 5.18 days 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: To improve performance 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

CORPB1 
Local 
Other priority 

Percentage of safeguarding e-learning 
(including workbook) completions (BCBC 
Overall) 
Higher Preferred 

76.65% 100% 100% 
data 

unavailable 
N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Mandatory training for all staff, therefore, target set at 100% 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

CORPB1c 
Local 
Other priority 

Percentage of safeguarding e-learning 
(including workbook) completions (Chief 
Executives Directorate) 
Higher Preferred 

98.40% 100% 100% 
data 

unavailable 
N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Mandatory training for all staff, therefore, target set at 100% 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

 

Sickness broken down by Service Area 

 
 QTR2 2021-22 QTR2 2022-23    

Unit 
FTE 

30.09.2022 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per 
FTE 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per FTE 

Cumulative 
Days per FTE 

2021-22 

Cumulative Days 
per FTE 2022-23 

Business Support  
33.20 27.00 4 0.79 52.18 5 1.57 3.98 2.64 

Finance, Performance & Change 
269.49 445.37 46 1.79 604.44 52 2.24 3.34 3.76 

Legal, HR & Regulatory Services 
100.62 96.20 16 0.96 137.00 19 1.36 2.90 3.30 

Chief Executive Directorate 
Total 404.31 568.57 66 1.48 793.62 76 1.96 3.27 3.55 

 

  

P
age 38

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3979&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3979&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4309&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4302&read=true


Appendix A  – Chief Executives Performance against Corporate Plan  – Q2 2022-23 

 

Sickness Absence by Reason 
 Chief Executive Directorate 

Absence Reason 
Q1 Number of 
FTE days lost 

Q2 Number of 
FTE days lost 

Total Number of 
FTE  Days Lost 

% of Cumulative 
days lost 

Cancer  0 0 0.00 0.00% 

Chest & Respiratory 24.97 12.98 37.95 2.65% 

Coronavirus COVID - 19 7.00 15.54 22.54 1.57% 

Eye/Ear/Throat/Nose/Mouth/Dental 33.70 28.00 61.70 4.30% 

Genitourinary / Gynaecological 1.00 4.28 5.28 0.37% 

Heart / Blood Pressure / Circulation 61.00 16.00 77.00 5.37% 

Infections 10.00 21.00 31.00 2.16% 

MSD including Back & Neck 11.50 26.04 37.54 2.62% 

Neurological 45.65 10.03 55.68 3.88% 

Other / Medical Certificate 48.51 8.00 56.51 3.94% 

Pregnancy related 24.00 7.00 31.00 2.16% 

Stomach / Liver / Kidney / Digestion 47.82 52.61 100.43 7.00% 

Bereavement Related 75.92 15.00 90.92 6.34% 

Other Mental illness  0 56.00 56.00 3.90% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression not work related 169.41 419.13 588.54 41.04% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression work related 80.00 102.00 182.00 12.69% 

Tests / Treatment / Operation  0 0 0.00 0.00% 

TOTALS 640.48 793.62 1434.10   

 
 

 

                          

 

72% 74%

28% 26%

21-22 22-23

Sickness Absence at Q2 -
Long Term / Short Term

STS

LTS

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

COMMUNITIES DASHBOARD – PERFORMANCE Q2 

Overall, the Directorate continues to perform fairly well and largely in line with budget. From the graphs and charts below it can be seen that the Directorate has 14 Corporate Commitments and currently 5 are 
classed as Amber and 9 are classed as Green. When compared to Q2 last year the Directorate has 4 more Green Commitments and has reduced from 2 Red to none. When we consider Performance Indicators 
against the 14 Commitments, some 7 are showing as red in Q2, there is a narrative against each one and an explanation in the pages that follow, demonstrating some circumstances are not within the Authority’s 
control. 
 
At Q2 the Directorate has a projected underspend of £526k.  This is largely due to a high volume of vacancies, some 33 existing in key managerial and professional services posts.  These include in Structural 
Engineers, Quantity Surveying, Transport Planning and Highway Engineers.  These posts have been advertised on a number of occasions, but it is clear that current market conditions are making these vacancies 
very challenging to fill.  As a result, it is becoming clear that the pressures of an increased workload, significant priority projects and the sustained delivery of high-quality visible front facing services, against this 
backdrop of an increasing number of staff vacancies, is having an impact on the resilience of the very lean staff resources. It is not possible to progress all projects in a timely fashion and continuous prioritisation 
of work is essential for delivery. Sickness levels in the Directorate have returned to pre-pandemic levels, however the numbers of staff absent through stress/anxiety/depression has increased. This will need to be 
monitored closely and the Directorate will continue to work with HR colleagues on addressing this issue. 
  
Key areas of focus for the teams continue to be the delivery of the front-line services and large capital projects.  These include the Maesteg Town Hall project, the regeneration of Porthcawl waterfront, including 
the Metro Link Bus facility, the sea flood defences and the progression of the Bridgend Town Centre Masterplan with the new Bridgend College facility as a catalyst, the progression of the Local Development Plan 
(LDP) to Examination in Public with PEDW in the spring of 2023 and the innovative energy schemes, including the Bridgend District Heat Network and the HyBont project. There are also a number of key documents 
being developed including the “Bridgend 2030” Decarbonisation Strategy and the Bridgend Biodiversity Resilience Plan.  Other major areas of work include progressing the options for the Waste Service Contract 
post 2024 and looking at switching corporate fleet to ultra-low emission vehicles.  Officers are also heavily engaged with Central Government on a number of large grant fund schemes, including the Community 
Renewal Fund, the Levelling up Fund and its successor the Shared Prosperity Fund.  All of which, if successfully secured, will have a major impact on regeneration and the economic recovery of the borough. 
 

Commitments 2022-23 
BRAG – progress against 
commitment 

 

All Indicators (incl. Finance and sickness PIs) Corporate Plan Indicators 
Q2 Directorate Commitments to 
delivering Wellbeing objectives 

Total Blue Red Amber Green Performance vs Target Trend vs Q2 2021-22 Performance vs Target 
Trend vs Q2 2021-22 
(Excluding finance) 

Wellbeing Objective One – 
Supporting a successful 
sustainable economy 

5   1 4 

    

Wellbeing Objective Two – 
Helping people and 
communities to be more healthy 
and resilient 

1    1 

Wellbeing Objective Three –  
Smarter use of resources 

8   4 4 

Finance Risks 

Revenue Budget 
• The net revenue budget for the Directorate for 2022-23 is  £29.851m. 
• The current year-end projected outturn is £29.325m with a projected 

under spend of £526,000. 
 
Capital Budget 

• At Q2 the capital budget for the Directorate for 2022-23 is £60.732m 
with total expenditure of £4.237m and no foreseen under or overspend 
to planned budget. 

 
 

 
Oversight of corporate risks are collectively undertaken and managed by the Corporate Management Board (CMB).  The 
Corporate risk register can be found as Appendix E and should be viewed in the overall context of the performance of this 
dashboard to understand the risks. Some are Council wide whilst others focus on specific directorates.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1

7

1

3

3

2

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

WBO1 WBO2 WBO3 Other

5

7

1

3

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

4

4

4

>10% off

<10% off

On target

On target & improved

4

2

1

3

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

P
age 41



Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

 

 

 

  

Efficiency  Savings 

Savings (£000) 2022-23  
% 

2022-23 

Savings Target  £150 100% 

Likely to be achieved £55 37% 

Variance £95 63% 

 

Additional financial information is provided in the Budget Monitoring 2022-23 – 
Quarter 2 Revenue Forecast report presented to Cabinet on 18 October 2022. 
 

Consultation, Engagement & Involvement 

 
There is significant consultation and engagement activities being undertaken by the Communities Directorate currently:- 
 

• Local Development Plan – Examination in Public – PEDW to commence in January 2023 

• PAC Consultation on the Hybont Project at Brynmenyn Industrial Estate 

• Public Consultation on the Councils draft 2030 Strategy and Action Plan 

• HR Consultation to commence on a restructure of the Planning Department 
 

Implications of Financial Reductions on Service Performance and other Key Issues/challenges 

 
With regard to the efficiency savings for 22/23 the Directorate has only currently achieved £55k to date and some £95k is still outstanding.  This is as a result of being unable to achieve savings in full from 
opening the new Pyle CRC site because of delays with Natural Resources Wales (NRW) granting an operating licence.  Also, the change in legislation regarding plastic food waste bags and an inability to 
procure a lower priced option.  These savings will now be made from within existing Directorate Budgets.  
 
The MTFS for 23/24 looks incredibly challenging.  In the Directors comments above it is recognised that a large number of vacancies across key managerial and professional services posts is having an impact 
on service delivery and the requirement to prioritise more often.  This will continue into the next financial year and is likely to result in difficult decisions being made around stopping services all together in order 
to deliver priority front line. 
 
 

Regulatory Tracker  

Report Issued 
Name of 
Audit/Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for Improvement Action in Q1&Q2 2022-23 RAG (at end Q2) Open/Closed 

Oct 2022 
Audit Wales, Springing 
Forward - Asset 
Management 

R1 The Council needs to ensure the sustainable 
development principle is driving and shaping its 
approach to all its assets as it develops its 
strategy during 2022. 

This is a key cornerstone of the Council’s 2030 Strategy and within 
its commitments and action plan are significant areas where 
management of the council’s assets should follow a sustainable 
approach in order to reach net zero by 2030. 

Green CLOSED 

R2 The Council should address as a priority its 
health and safety related statutory building 
compliance performance so that it is meeting its 
statutory duties relating to electrical, gas, 
asbestos, legionella, and fire risk testing. 

Corporate Landlord have increased capacity by appointing a 
compliance officer and Schools Surveyor.  In Q3 statutory 
compliance will have reached 90% for the first time.  A new 
Integrated Works Management Package (IWMS) is being procured.  

Amber OPEN 

R3 The Council should develop a suite of 
strategic quantitative and qualitative measures to 
enhance its ability to understand the impacts of its 
assets plans and actions as part of its strategy 
development during 2022. 

This is being undertaken as part of the review of the Self-
Assessment, Communities Business Plan and Asset Management 
Strategy and should be in place by April 2023. Amber OPEN 

R4 To strengthen its arrangements, during the 
next 12 months, the Council  
should explore how it can compare its data, 
arrangements, and the learning from other 
organisations, for example through existing 
professional networks. 

This is being achieved by the procurement of a new Integrated 
Works Management Package (IWMS).  Working with colleagues 
regionally in the CCR and specifically at Cardiff Council to assist 
with this. 

Green CLOSED 

P
age 42



Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

KEY: 

Overall performance judgement 

Status Descriptor 

EXCELLENT 
Very strong, sustained performance and practice 

GOOD 
Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement 

ADEQUATE and needs 
improvement 

Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects require 
improvement 

UNSATISFACTORY and 
needs urgent 
improvement Important weaknesses outweigh strengths 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Performance indicators 

Status Definition 

GREEN 
On target  or better AND Performance has improved compared to last year (or 
performance is at maximum and cannot be improved on) 

YELLOW On target  

AMBER Target is within 10%  

RED Target is missed by 10% or more 

Commitments 

Status Meaning  Descriptor  

BLUE Complete 
Project (or task within a project/plan) is completed and is no 
longer a priority.  

GREEN 

Progressing as planned 
and according to 
designated time, budget 
and desired outcomes. 

Actions completed within timescales, on budget and evidence 
of achieving desired outcomes 

AMBER 
Issues that could delay 
progress 

Task/action looks liable to go over budget 
Task/action agreed deadlines show slippage 
Task/action within 2 weeks of deadline - not started 
Risk or issue score increases (review required) 

RED Significant issues 
Task/action over budget 
Task/action agreed deadline breached 
Risk or issue score increases to critical or catastrophic 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Performance Indicators (Trend) Performance Indicator types 

 
Performance has improved compared to last year. CP Corporate Plan indicator 

 Performance has maintained (this includes those at maximum)   

 
Performance has declined BUT within 10% of the last year   

 
Performance has declined by 10% or more compared to previous year   

P
age 43



Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

WBO1: Supporting a successful sustainable economy 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.2.1  As part of regeneration to support the growth and prosperity 
of the county borough key developments are planned: • The 
redevelopment of town centres across the County Borough; 
including delivering the projects outlined in the Bridgend 
Town Centre Masterplan, including assisting in the relocation 
of Bridgend College to brand new building on the former the 
South Wales Police site in the town centre. Also, to complete 
the £8m redevelopment of Maesteg Town Hall, providing 
improved community facilities to include the town library, 
performance spaces, offering improved accessibility for 
visitors and creating jobs. • The regeneration of the Porthcawl 
waterfront including, a Placemaking Strategy, developing a 
new Metro Link bus facility and the development of the Salt 
Lake area for a mixed-use sustainable development of retail, 
housing and leisure and the redevelopment of the Grand 
Pavilion (COMM) 

Amber 

The development of a new College in Bridgend Town Centre 
is progressing at pace, with the pre-application consultation 
having completed and a planning application to be submitted 
imminently; demolition of the Cheapside police station is to 
begin shortly in the new year.  
 
The regeneration of the Porthcawl waterfront is progressing, 
with the commencement of the Aldi store development at 
Salt Lake and the work on cosy corner progressing well. Sea 
Defence work is coming to an end whilst the new Metro Link 
bus facility is about to begin.  
 
Whilst work to the Maesteg Town Hall buildings is 
continuing, the project will be delayed and officers are 
working with the contractor to bring the programme back on 
track. 

 
Continue regeneration work including:- 

• Determining the new Bridgend College 
Planning Application. 

• Progress the Shared Prosperity Fund 
Projects across the County. 

• Commission the Porthcawl Metrolink Tender 

• Complete the MTH Project by summer 23 

• Compete the Cosy Corner Project by March 
23 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.2.2  Create better town centres through improving property and 
the environment. Including seeking opportunities to work 
collaboratively with key stakeholders for mixed use 
developments which combine, live, work and social spaces to 
add vibrancy and promote conditions for growth and 
prosperity. (COMMM) 

Green 

Officers are working alongside local Registered Social Landlords (RSL’s) and key public and 
private sector partners to invest in the fabric of the town centres. This includes development at 
Sunnyside, relocation of Bridgend College to the town centre, completion of the Harlequin 
building in Porthcawl and commencement of the Aldi development at Salt Lake. These 
development sits alongside capital grants being offered via our transforming towns programme 
to businesses and landlords for investment in property across our high streets. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, 
PI Type, 

PAM / Local 
link to Corp 

Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year End 
21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DCO1.1.3i 
CP 
WBO1 

Number of vacant premises in 
town centres: Bridgend 
Lower Preferred 

78 benchmarking N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: To see the impact of the COVID -19 pandemic on retail 
centres & establish a new strategy for economic recovery. 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

DCO1.1.3ii 
CP 
WBO1 

Number of vacant premises in 
town centres: Maesteg 
Lower Preferred 

19 benchmarking N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: To see the impact of the COVID -19 pandemic on retail 
centres & establish a new strategy for economic recovery. 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

DCO1.1.3iii 
CP 
WBO1 

Number of vacant premises in 
town centres: Porthcawl 
Lower Preferred 

17 benchmarking N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: To see the impact of the COVID -19 pandemic on retail 
centres & establish a new strategy for economic recovery. 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

P
age 44

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1130&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1136&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3902&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3903&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3904&read=true


Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

PI Ref No, 
PI Type, 

PAM / Local 
link to Corp 

Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year End 
21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DCO1.1.3iv 
CP 
WBO1 

The number of vacant 
premises in town centres: 
Pencoed 
Lower Preferred 

8 benchmarking N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: To see the impact of the COVID -19 pandemic on retail 
centres & establish a new strategy for economic recovery. 
Performance: No Performance Comments 
  

 

DCO16.1 
CP 
WBO1 

Financial value of externally 
funded town centre 
regeneration projects 
underway/ in development 
Higher Preferred 

£14,200,000 £20,000,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: These projects should continue & complete within 2022/23 
Performance: No Performance Comments  

DCO18.11 
CP 
WBO1 

The number of visitors to town 
centres (annual footfall in 
Porthcawl). 
Higher Preferred 

2,716,863 2,716,863 1,358,431.50 1,607,261 1,589,255 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: To see the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on footfall & 
establish a new strategy for economic recovery. 
Performance: Against a background of a hot & dry summer, the period of 
Quarter 2 was one of uncertainty. In July, the Prime Minister resigned, and a 
new Prime Minister took office in September. Within days the death of Queen 
Elizabeth II plunged the country into a period of national mourning. In mid-
September, there was economic turmoil as the Governments mini budget led 
to The Bank of England implementing interest rates rises with many lenders 
subsequently withdrawing mortgage offers. Rising energy bills continue to 
worry consumers. Restaurants and takeaways, such as fish & chip shops, are 
seeing their own costs rising steeply combined with a fall in consumer 
demand. All of these issues have an impact on town centre footfall. In 
Porthcawl, the twice monthly street markets increase footfall by as much as 
4000 people on a market day. On the Saturday of the Elvis Festival footfall 
was up 4,000 on previous year. Demand for shop units in the town centre is 
high and there is a very low vacancy rate.  
  

 

DCO18.12 
CP 
WBO1 

The number of visitors to town 
centres (annual footfall in 
Bridgend) 
Higher Preferred 

4,537,984 4,537,984 2,268,992 2,374,211 2,332,180 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: To see the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on footfall & 
establish a new strategy for economic recovery. 
Performance: Against a background of a hot & dry summer, the period of 
Quarter 2 was one of uncertainty. In July, the Prime Minister resigned, and a 
new Prime Minister took office in September. Within days the death of Queen 
Elizabeth II plunged the country into a period of national mourning. In mid-
September, there was economic turmoil as the Governments mini budget led 
to The Bank of England implementing interest rates rises with many lenders 
subsequently withdrawing mortgage offers. Rising energy bills continue to 
worry consumers. Restaurants and takeaways, such as fish & chip shops, are 
seeing their own costs rising steeply combined with a fall in consumer 
demand. All of these issues have an impact on town centre footfall. In 
Bridgend, the monthly street markets continue to attract visitors to the town 
centre and an inaugural Food & Drink Festival in August increased footfall on 
the day by over 5000 on the previous week and exceeded 2019 levels. Since 
April, eleven new businesses have opened in the town centre. 
 
  

 

DCO21.01 
CP 
WBO1 

The number of visitors to town 
centres (annual footfall in 906,129 906,129 453,064.50 534,088 477,697 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: To see the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on footfall & 
establish a new strategy for economic recovery. 

 

P
age 45

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4124&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4022&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4141&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4142&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4300&read=true


Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

PI Ref No, 
PI Type, 

PAM / Local 
link to Corp 

Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year End 
21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

Maesteg) 
Higher Preferred 

Performance: Against a background of a hot & dry summer, the period of 
Quarter 2 was one of uncertainty. In July, the Prime Minister resigned, and a 
new Prime Minister took office in September. Within days the death of Queen 
Elizabeth II plunged the country into a period of national mourning. In mid-
September, there was economic turmoil as the Governments mini budget led 
to The Bank of England implementing interest rates rises with many lenders 
subsequently withdrawing mortgage offers. Rising energy bills continue to 
worry consumers. Restaurants and takeaways, such as fish & chip shops, are 
seeing their own costs rising steeply combined with a fall in consumer 
demand. All of these issues have an impact on town centre footfall. In 
Maesteg, businesses reported a fall in spend as the cost-of-living crisis 
deepened, although August still saw the towns highest footfall since March. 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.2.3  Through Employability Bridgend, work with individuals to 
improve their job opportunities and reduce economic 
inactivity. (COMM) 

Green 

Despite the economic situation which has seen a reduction in job seekers some of which are reluctant 
to look for work currently due to increased barriers to employment, Employability Bridgend are 
managing to exceed expected job targets at this point. There are unprecedented job vacancy levels 
making recruitment very challenging for employers in all sectors which has seen some major 
companies increase their pay levels per hour and offer better conditions to attract staff e.g., Amazon, 
Aldi which demonstrates the state of the labour market. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 

Corp 
Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DEFS82 
CP 
WBO1 

The number of participants in 
the Employability Bridgend 
programme going into 
employment. 
Higher Preferred 

556 347 173.50 213 354 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Continue to target those most in need of the services. Target dependent on 
funding agreements which are yet to be confirmed. 
Performance: The conversion rate of engaged clients who get into work is steady but there 
are less clients l engaged on Employability Bridgend as there are less people in the labour 
force and less job seekers than pre pandemic. There is also other support provision, in 
particular the mandatory job centre provision for claimants so there are less job seekers to 
engage. The engagement rate drives the amount of people we can place in employment. 

 

DEFS84 
Local 
WBO1 

The number of under-
employed participants leaving 
Employability Bridgend with 
an improved labour market 
position. 
Higher Preferred 

84 82 41 21 38 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Continue to target those most in need of the services. Target dependent on 
funding agreements which are yet to be confirmed. 
Performance: The NET project started late in early 2020 and then had to establish itself in the 
pandemic. It has struggled to retain staff who have moved to better paid and more secure 
work.  

 

Commitment 

P
age 46

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1131&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4188&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4190&read=true


Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.2.4  Providing the right infrastructure and support for business to 
overcome the impact of the COVID-19 situation by: • Supporting 
business start-ups • Supporting resilience of businesses (COMMS) 

Green 
The start-up business grant continues to offer support for start-up businesses.  To date in 
2022/23, 55 applications have been received and 23 businesses have been awarded 
funding.  The next round of the fund will close on 21st November 2022.    

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DCO18.08 
CP 
WBO1 

Number of start-up business 
Higher Preferred 

550 530 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: We will continue to promote and support new business start-
ups & focus on resilience 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.2.5  Improving the visitor experience to boost tourism in the wake of the 
COVID19 crisis by: • Enhancing the natural environment and act 
as host for the Valleys Regional Park Programme team. • Take 
forward the Cosy Corner project as part of the Visit Wales Tourism 
Attractor Destination Programme. (COMM) 

Green 

BCBC continues to host the VRP for the region. The Cosy Corner project has progressed on 
site. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year End 
21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DCO1.2.3 
CP 
WBO1 

Total annual expenditure by 
tourists 
Higher Preferred 

£225,140,000 £151,000,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: Target growth of 2% per year from 20/21 figure 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

WBO2: Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.2.2  Work in partnership with town and community councils, third 
sector and community groups to complete community asset 
transfers and develop long-term sustainable solutions to 
manage and maintain facilities / services. (COMM) 

Green 

The number of Community Asset Transfers (CATs) are as per target subject to continued staff 
resources within the Corporate Landlord and Legal Services being available. The Town and 
Community Council Fund was launched successful for 22/23. Three applications were received, and 
the decision was taken by Cabinet in July 2022 to award funding to two applicants. 

 

 

 

P
age 47

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1132&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4133&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1133&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3908&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1135&read=true


Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year End 
21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DCO16.8 
CP 
WBO2 

Number of Council owned 
assets transferred to the 
community for running 
Higher Preferred 

11 20 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: The target reflects planned transfers under the CAT 
programme for 2022-23 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

 

WBO3: Smarter use of resources 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.1.1  Fewer better buildings by disposing of or releasing 
surplus land and buildings to generate capital 
receipts and reduce our financial liabilities and 
improve those buildings which are retained. 
(COMMS) 

Green 

The disposals programme remains on target with the majority of disposals scheduled for Q3 and Q4 of the 
current financial year. A process of continuous asset review and challenge is ongoing to ensure capital 
receipts are generated and retained assets are enhanced to reduce operating costs. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, 
PI Type, 

PAM / Local 
link to Corp 

Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year End 
21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DCO16.9 
CP 
WBO3 

Realisation of capital 
receipts targets 
Higher Preferred £48,840 £3,775,000 £1,887,500 £0 £40,000 N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Projected disposal programme for 2022-23 
Performance: Capital receipts for the year remain on target with £3.5m guaranteed for Q3 
and the remaining £275,000 by targeted for completion end of Q4. The respective sales 
remain as anticipated. 

 

DCO19.02 
CP 
WBO3 

Percentage of full 
statutory compliance 
across BCBC 
operational buildings 
Higher Preferred 

64.4% 100% 100% 66.4% 66.4% 
 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: 100% compliance will always be the target that we aim to achieve 
Performance: Overall compliance performance continues to improve however progress has 
slowed as a result of a number of servicing contracts expiring at once during Q1 and being 
re-procured. Compliance across the Big-5 compliance items is up to 87.5% and set to break 
90% in Q3 for the first time. Additional officer support has been secured to assist with key 
compliance areas. Internal processes and procedures linked to the management of third-
party suppliers is under review to ensure timely delivery of contracted services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 48

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4026&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1111&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4027&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4226&read=true


Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.3  Implement the planned budget reductions 
identified in the MTFS, in particular for the 
2022-23 financial year, set annual balanced 
budgets and establish long term financially 
sustainable solutions. (COMM) 

Amber 

The current projection for the Communities Directorate Budget at Q2 is an anticipated 
underspend of 526K compared to the projected underspend of 459K at Q1. This is as a 
result of maximising the use of grant funding, income from fees, staff vacancy 
management and the reduction in the disposal fees for residual waste at the Materials 
Recovery & Energy Centre (MREC). The anticipated financial savings from the budget for 
22/23 were £160k. From this 65k has been achieved to date with 95K still outstanding. 
This will be resolved from within the Communities Directorates existing budgets. The 
Directorate is currently working corporately on the very challenging MTFS position for 
23/24. A number of difficult savings proposals and pressure bids have been submitted for 
consideration. The high number of vacancies, over 30, in the senior management and 
professional services structure still presents challenges for the Directorate in ensuring the 
delivery of high quality and sustainable front-line services. 

To continue to monitor budgets 
carefully into Q3, prepare MTFS 
proposals and look to maximise grant 
income, in addition to continuing to 
recruit to challenging vacancies. 

 

Performance Indicators 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.4  Adapt our ways of working to make better use of our 
assets and build on the technological progress 
accelerated by COVID-19. (COMM) Green 

The Future Service Delivery Board have worked proactively with key stakeholders and Trade Union 
(TU) representatives to ensure the future use of Ravens Court as an operational base is reviewed. The 
key decision to remove all bookable desks from Ravens Court has been made and actions are in 
motion to reduce the operational holding costs immediately whilst further review is undertaken of 
options for the asset. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.3.1  Invest £1.3m to install energy and cost saving 
technologies to reduce our energy consumption and 
CO2 emissions. (COMM) 

Green 
The final elements of the work are being completed and the suite of actions will be finished by 
November 2022. 

 

 

  

PI Ref No PI Description Annual target        
22-23 
 

£’000 

Performance as at Q2 Comments 

Red Amber Green 

£’000 % £’000 % £’000 % 

DCO6.1.1i 
CP feeder 
WBO3 

Value of planned budget 
reductions achieved 
(Communities)  

£150 £85 57% £20 13% £45 30% 
See comment under WBO3.2.3. 

P
age 49

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1109&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1122&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1124&read=true
http://diamond/pmf/pi/pi.asp?id=2688&read=true


Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 

Corp 
Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year End 
21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DCO20.01 
Local 
WBO3 

Annual Gas Consumption 
across the Authority - kWh 
Lower Preferred 

29,604,029 
Kwh 

Establish 
Baseline 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: The Pandemic has prevented accurate measuring during 2020-21. This 
baseline will be re-established under the carbon emissions measures & commission 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

DCO20.02 
Local 
WBO3 

Annual Electricity 
Consumption across the 
Authority - kWh 
Lower Preferred 

18,003,343 
Kwh 

Establish 
Baseline 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: The Pandemic has prevented accurate measuring during 2020-21. This 
baseline will be re-established under the carbon emissions measures & commission 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

DCO20.03 
Local 
WBO3 

Annual CO2 related to gas 
consumption across the 
Authority - kWh 
Lower Preferred 

Awaiting 
Data 

Establish 
Baseline 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: The Pandemic has prevented accurate measuring during 2020-21. This 
baseline will be re-established under the carbon emissions measures & commission 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

DCO20.04 
Local 
WBO3 

Annual CO2 related to 
electricity consumption 
across the Authority - kWh 
Lower Preferred 

Awaiting 
Data 

Establish 
Baseline 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: The Pandemic has prevented accurate measuring during 2020-21. This 
baseline will be re-established under the carbon emissions measures & commission 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.3.2  Implement a sustainable local area energy plan with 
a programme of work throughout the county borough 
to improve the carbon footprint for all residents, 
including schemes such as the: • Caerau Heat 
Scheme • Bridgend District Heat Network (BDHN) 
(COMM) 

Amber 

The Caerau heat scheme is currently being re-profiled due to a range of 
challenges with the proposed model. BDHN has been delays as a revised 
financial model is required following inflationary pressures and the increase in 
borrowing costs 

Continue to work on the BDHN project to 
look to implement in the summer of 23, 
when the financial model is reprofiled. 
Develop the Toolkit for the Caerau Heat 
Scheme has been agreed with funders. 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.3.3  Continue to exceed the national recycling targets and 
increase opportunities for reuse of materials by: • 
Operating the new community recycling centre and a 
reuse shop in Pyle • Recycling street scene waste, • 
Raising public awareness of how to reduce, reuse 
and recycle by using public campaigns and publicity. 
(COMM) 

Amber 

New community recycling centre works have been completed however 
environmental permit from NRW is still awaited and is required before opening. 
Reuse shop has now been opened at Maesteg CRC. Recycling of Street litter is 
going well with over 40% being recycled currently. Public campaigns are 
ongoing around food waste recycling, reminders on what to place in recycling 
containers, AHP and garden waste. Anti-dog fouling messages, and messages 
regarding the departments enforcement policy have also been promoted. 
Projects in areas where excess refuse is being presented continue to be carried 
out to assist with improving recycling rates. 

Community Recycling centre at Pyle 
works are complete and as soon as 
licence is granted will become 
operational. 

 

  

P
age 50

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4267&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4268&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4269&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4270&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1123&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1120&read=true


Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, 
PI Type, 

PAM / Local 
link to Corp 

Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DCO20.05 
CP 
WBO3 

Percentage of Street cleansing 
waste prepared for recycling 
Higher Preferred 

40.70% 40% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: Target increased as the contract has now been in place a year and 
improvements are being seen on performance 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

PAM/030 
CP 
WBO3 

Percentage of municipal waste 
collected by local authorities and 
prepared for reuse, and/or recycled, 
including source segregated 
biowastes that are composted or 
treated biologically in any other way 
Higher Preferred 

72.97% 70% 70% 72.25% 77.80% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Target increased in line with national target of 70% by 24/25. 
Performance: The higher figure of 77.80% on the previous year’s Q2 was in part due to a 
backlog of refuse stored at the MREC being transferred to energy to waste resulting in a higher 
amount of recycled bottom ash pushing the PI up. We also we were still seeing higher than 
average kerbside figures due to the pandemic at the time. 

 

PAM/030 a) 
CP 
WBO3 

Percentage of municipal waste 
collected by local authorities and 
prepared for reuse 
Higher Preferred 

1.24% 1% 1% 0.51% 1.17% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Target retained; reuse shop not yet open due to NRW delays 
Performance: Due to licencing delays by NRW of the crc, the reuse shop at Pyle has been 
unable to open which has affected this PI. 

 

PAM/030 b) 
CP 
WBO3 

Percentage of municipal waste 
collected by local authorities and 
prepared for being recycled 
Higher Preferred 

51.29% 47% 47% 50.99% 54.44% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Target increased taking into account reduced tonnages being presented. 
Performance: The high recycling PI in 2021-22 figure for Qtr2 – 77.80% is a backlog of refuse 
stored at the MREC being transferred to energy to waste meaning we had a higher amount of 
recycled bottom ash pushing the PI up. We were also still seeing higher than average kerbside 
figures due to the pandemic at the time. 

 

PAM/030 c) 
CP 
WBO3 

Percentage of municipal waste 
collected by local authorities as 
source segregated biowastes that 
are composted or treated biologically 
in another way 
Higher Preferred 

20.44% 20% 20% 20.76% 22.18% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Slight increase on 20/21 performance 
Performance: Compared to this year’s Qtr2 figures kerbside tonnages are decreasing –due to 
more people returning to the workplace. The food waste tonnage is also this year compared to 
last year which results in a lower composting PI.  The current cost of living crisis is likely to be 
having an impact too with people wasting less food and buying less products with packaging that 
needs recycling. 

 

PAM/043 
CP 
WBO3 

Kilograms of residual waste 
generated per person 
Lower Preferred 

131.65 
Kg 

131.65 
Kg 

65.83 
Kg 

30.36 Kg 65.75 Kg 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Working practices have changed with blended models of working meaning more 
people are working from home and producing more waste 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.3.4  Maintain and enhance the natural resources and biodiversity 
of Bridgend County Borough. (COMM) 

Green 
Review completed of Biodiversity and Ecosystems Resilience Plan, to be 
reported to Cabinet in the Autumn. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.3.5  Deliver the Corporate Decarbonisation Strategy - Bridgend 
2030 and associated action plan. (COMM) 

Amber 

The draft strategy has been presented to Cabinet and a 
consultation period took place.  

Report to Cabinet in December on the 
consultation outcomes and to approve the 
document and way forward as outlined in the 
action plan. 

P
age 51

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4274&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3924&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4271&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4272&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4273&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4131&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1105&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1181&read=true


Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Other indicators linked to achieving WBO3 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

PAM/010 
Local 
WBO3 

Percentage of highways inspected of 
a high or acceptable standard of 
cleanliness 
Higher Preferred 

98.53% 97% 97% 97.22% 98.6% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Targets Retained during pandemic recovery period 
Performance: No Performance Comments  

 

PAM/018 
Local 
WBO3 

Percentage of all planning 
applications determined in time 
Higher Preferred 

64% 80.1% 80.1% 60% 52% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Targets Retained during pandemic recovery period 
Performance: 1 Senior Planning Officer left the authority during this period 
causing a backlog of work which was distributed to existing staff. 

 

PAM/019 
Local 
WBO3 

Percentage of planning appeals 
dismissed 
Higher Preferred 

76% 66% 66% 34% 100% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Targets Retained during pandemic recovery period 
Performance: 3 appeals were decided in this quarter of which 1 was 
dismissed, 1 was allowed and 1 enforcement notice appeal was quashed. 

 

PAM/020 
Local 
WBO3 

Percentage of: Principal (A) roads in 
overall poor condition 
Lower Preferred 

3.88% 4.5% N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: Targets Retained during pandemic recovery period 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

PAM/021 
Local 
WBO3 

Percentage of: non-principal (B) 
roads in overall poor condition 
Lower Preferred 

2.06% 4.2% N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: Targets Retained during pandemic recovery period 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

PAM/022 
Local 
WBO3 

Percentage of: non principal (C ) 
roads in overall poor condition 
Lower Preferred 

6.88% 8.6% N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: Targets Retained during pandemic recovery period 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

PAM/035 
Local 
WBO3 

Average number of days taken to 
clear fly tipping incidents 
Lower Preferred 

2.65 
days 

2.50 
days 

2.50 
days 

2.90 days 2.08 days 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Targets Retained during pandemic recovery period 
Performance: Improvement on Q1 but still slightly higher than target due to 
staffing issues in the team and implementation of new reporting system. 

 

Other 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

21-22 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

CHR002i 
Local 
Other priority 

Number of working days per full time equivalent 
lost due to sickness absence (Communities) 
Lower Preferred 

11.33 days 
no 

target 
N/A 6.20 days  5.57 days 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Target retained 
Performance: No Performance Comments 
 
This is being monitored and working with HR on ways to 
reduce figure, but it is acknowledged that the large 
number of vacancies is having an impact on the wellbeing 
of existing staff in the communities directorate. 

 

CORPB1b 
Local 
Other priority 

Percentage of safeguarding e-learning (including 
workbook) completions (Communities Directorate) 
Higher Preferred 

65.55% 100% 100% 
data 

unavailable 
N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Target set at 100% corporately 
Performance: No Performance Comments 

 

P
age 52

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3923&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4117&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4118&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3916&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3917&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3918&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4126&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3980&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4301&read=true


Appendix B - Communities Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Additional Sickness Information by Service Area 

   
 QTR2 2021-22 QTR2 2022-23    

Unit 

 FTE 
30.09.2022 

Number of 
FTE days 

lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per FTE 

Number of 
FTE days 

lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days per 
FTE 

Cumulative 
Days per 
FTE 2021-

22 

Cumulative 
Days per 

FTE 2022-23 

Operations - 
Communities 

Services 

Cleaner Streets & Waste Contract 
Management 53.00 462.00 15 9.63 229.00 11 4.32 11.83 5.97 

Corporate Landlord 
113.95 420.26 72 3.25 463.20 74 4.06 6.76 7.11 

Economy, Natural Resources & 
Sustainability 64.92 190.00 15 2.75 120.19 11 1.85 3.71 2.81 

Highways & Green Spaces 
166.71 560.83 42 3.20 771.32 39 4.63 5.06 8.36 

Planning & Development Services 
33.35 5.00 2 0.14 3.00 2 0.09 0.14 1.13 

Strategic Regeneration 
13.81 25.00 2 1.76 1.00 1 0.07 3.86 2.78 

Communities Directorate Total 
449.24 1663.09 148 3.50 1587.71 138 3.53 5.54 6.20 

 

 

Sickness Absence by Reason 
 Communities Directorate 

Absence Reason 
Q1 Number of FTE 

days lost 
Q2 Number of FTE 

days lost 
Total Number of 
FTE  Days Lost 

% of Cumulative 
days lost 

 
 
  

 

Cancer 34.53 29.53 64.05 2.28% 

 

Chest & Respiratory 65.04 93.17 158.21 5.63% 

Coronavirus COVID - 19 37.00 11.58 48.58 1.73% 

Eye/Ear/Throat/Nose/Mouth/Dental 80.94 10.20 91.14 3.25% 

Genitourinary / Gynaecological 46.53  0 46.53 1.66% 

Heart / Blood Pressure / Circulation 11.68 1.00 12.68 0.45% 

Infections 59.19 73.70 132.89 4.73% 

MSD including Back & Neck 372.35 534.04 906.39 32.28% 

Neurological 50.91 151.46 202.37 7.21% 

Other / Medical Certificate 4.00 4.00 8.00 0.28% 

Pregnancy related  0 66.00 66.00 2.35% 

Stomach / Liver / Kidney / Digestion 79.08 163.55 242.63 8.64% 

Bereavement Related 0  4.59 4.59 0.16% 

Other Mental illness  0 0 0.00 0.00% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression not work related 225.13 268.88 494.01 17.59% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression work related 153.62 176.00 329.62 11.74% 

Tests / Treatment / Operation 0  0 0.00 0.00% 

TOTALS 1219.99 1587.71 2807.70   

 

 
 

 

82%
85%

18%
15%

21-22 22-23

Sickness Absence at  Q2   
Long Term / Short Term

LTS

STS

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  Q2 2022-23 

 

Education and Family Support - Performance Q2 2022-2023 
 

Commitments 2022-23 
BRAG – progress against 
commitment 

 

All Indicators (incl. Finance and sickness PIs) Corporate Plan Indicators 
Q2 Directorate Commitments to 
delivering Wellbeing objectives 

Total Blue Red Amber Green Performance vs Target Trend vs Q2 2021-22 Performance vs Target 
Trend vs Q2 2021-22 
(excluding Finance) 

Wellbeing Objective One – 
Supporting a successful 
sustainable economy 

6   1 5 

    

Wellbeing Objective Two – 
Helping people and 
communities to be more healthy 
and resilient 

1   1  

Wellbeing Objective  Three –  
Smarter use of resources 

3   1 2 

Finance 
 

High Corporate Risks 

Revenue budget 
 

• The net revenue budget for the Education and Family Support 
Directorate for 2022-2023 is £132.319m. 

• The current year-end projected outturn is £132.102m with a projected 
under spend of £217,000. 

•  

Capital budget 
 

• At Q2, the capital budget for the Directorate for 2022-2023 is £18.770m 
with total expenditure of £1.666m and no foreseen under or overspend 
to planned budget. 
 

Efficiency savings 
 

Savings (£000) 2022-23  
% 

2022-23 

Savings target  £68 100% 

Likely to be achieved £0 0% 

Variance £68 100% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Additional financial information is provided in the Budget Monitoring 2022-23 – 
Quarter 2 Revenue Forecast report presented to Cabinet on 18 October 2022. 

 
Oversight of corporate risks are collectively undertaken and managed by the Corporate Management Board (CMB).  The 
Corporate risk register can be found as Appendix E and should be viewed in the overall context of the performance of this 
dashboard to understand the risks. Some are Council wide whilst others focus on specific directorates.   
 
If risks have a residual (that is, post-mitigation) score of more than 15, they are not escalated for consideration as a corporate-
level risk 
 
The Education and Family Support Directorate (EFS) currently (as of November 2022) has 14 directorate-level risks.  
 
Following the most recent risk review, one of these risks has a residual (that is, post-mitigation) score of 16.  This risk will 
therefore now be escalated for consideration as a corporate-level risk. 
 
Risk reference EFS19 
 
If strategic or national initiatives are not delivered as planned (that is, the universal free school meal offer, and the 21st Century 
School Modernisation Programme) then there is a risk of reputational damage to the Authority. 
 

Consultation, engagement, and involvement 

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment consultation is ongoing and will close on 30 November 2022. 
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School Consultation – now closed. 
Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr consultation – now closed. 
Heronsbridge School consultation – now closed. 
Proposal to establish provision for pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) at Tremains Primary School – now closed. 
Proposal to establish provision for pupils with ALN at Ysgol Cynwyd Sant – now closed. 
 
 
 
 
 

1
1

1

1

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

WBO1 WBO2 WBO3 Other

3

1

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

1

1

1

>10% off

<10% off

On target

On target & improved

1

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

P
age 55

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/consultations/closed-consultations/tremains-primary-school-consultation/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/consultations/closed-consultations/ysgol-cynwyd-sant-consultation/


    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  Q2 2022-23 

 

  

Implications of financial reductions on service performance and other key Issues/challenges 

• Progression of catchment review and creation of Welsh-medium catchment areas as part of outcome one of the WESP. 

• Significant staffing challenges across services in particular the Catering Service, Communication and Relationships Team (CART) and special needs support assistants (SNSAs). 

• Challenges to implement Universal Primary Free School Meals (UPFSM) initiative provision in April 2023.  

• School-based counselling recruitment remains a significant challenge which has meant transition counselling has had to be put on hold and numbers of young people being able to receive a service is limited. 

• Uncertainty regarding ongoing Regional Integrated Fund (RIF) monies. 

• ‘Food and Fun’ Project for 2023 – still no firm expressions of interest so far from schools. 

• Demand for neurodevelopmental (ND) observations is high. 

• Demand for Early Help support continues to be high. Over 1,000 family referrals in Q1 and anticipated to be the same for Q2. 

• Permanent exclusions continue to cause some challenges for schools. 

• There has been a delay in construction of the Welsh-medium childcare scheme at Ogmore Valley, due to supply chain issues. Handover is currently programmed for 23 December 2022. 

• Communities Directorate resourcing issues are impacting on the design/development of approved capital schemes. 
 

Regulatory Tracker  

Report 
Issued 

Name of 
Audit/Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for Improvement Action in Q1&Q2 2022-23 
RAG (at 
end Q2) 

Open / 
Closed 

June 
2022 

HM Inspectorate 
of Probation, 
inspection of 
youth offending 
services in 
Bridgend 

1. The Chair of the Bridgend Youth Justice Service (BYJS) 
Management Board should: consider the membership of the 
board, to ensure that it is attended by representatives with 
the right level of seniority and put in place a plan to develop 
the board so that its members understand their role and 
responsibilities 

New Chair of Management Board (Corporate Director, Education and Family 
Support) in place. 
 
Membership reviewed but more work required to ensure appropriate seniority and 
consistent attendance. 
 
Management Board/BYJS staff development day planned for the Spring 2023. 

Amber Open 

2. The Chair of the BYJS Management Board should: review 
the format and purpose of the Bureau and ensure that it has 
the relevant information and input from the necessary 
agencies so that the out-of-court disposal meets the needs 
of the child. 

Awaiting Youth Justice Board (YJB) guidance as the Bureau model in Bridgend was 
identified as an area of good practice in a previous HMIP inspection. 
 
Once YJB guidance is in place (currently out to consultation), the Bureau model in 
Bridgend will be reviewed. 

Amber Open 

3. The BYJS Management Board should: make sure that the 
partnership has a multi-agency framework in place for 
children who are at risk of, or subject to, child exploitation 
and ensure that there are clear procedures for practitioners 
to follow. 

Regional strategy for child exploitation being developed and shared practice 
guidance will be produced in early 2023. 
 
However, there is a local authority screening process in place and referral 
arrangements to the national referral mechanism is in place. 

Amber Open 

4. The BYJS service manager should: improve the quality of 
planning and services to manage children’s safety and 
wellbeing 

Quality assurance peer audit and training on safety and wellbeing planning for all 
BYJS staff has been completed. 
 
The service now aligns the BYJS plan to children’s services planning. 

Green Closed 

5. The BYJS service manager should: review the quality 
assurance processes and improve the effectiveness of 
management oversight in all cases. 

A peer quality assurance group is in place and there is regular managerial oversight 
for BYJS assessments which is monitored via the Management Board performance 
framework report. 

Green Closed 

March 
2019 

Estyn, Inspection 
Report, March 
2019 

R1 Raise standards of literacy in primary schools 
Reporting is no longer possible as there have been significant changes to national 
reporting on educational outcomes/qualifications over the last few years.   This is now 
superseded by local strategy to improve standards of literacy in primary schools 

Amber Closed 

R2 Improve outcomes for post-16 learners in sixth forms 
Reporting is no longer possible as there have been significant changes to national 
reporting on educational outcomes/qualifications over the last few years.   This is now 
superseded by local strategy to improve outcome for post-16 learners. 

Amber Closed 

R3 Increase the pace of improvement in schools causing 
concern 

There are currently no schools causing concern. 
Green Closed 

R4 Strengthen the role of the Welsh Education Strategic 
Forum to ensure timely progress in delivering the priorities 
identified in the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 

There has been significant progress in developing the Welsh in Education Forum 
(WEF) following the approval of the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP). Green Closed 

P
age 56



    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  Q2 2022-23 

 

KEY: 

Overall performance judgement 

Status Descriptor 

EXCELLENT 
Very strong, sustained performance and practice 

GOOD 
Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement 

ADEQUATE and needs 
improvement 

Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects require 
improvement 

UNSATISFACTORY and 
needs urgent 
improvement Important weaknesses outweigh strengths 

 

 

Commitments 

Status Meaning  Descriptor  

BLUE Complete 
Project (or task within a project/plan) is completed and is no 
longer a priority.  

GREEN 

Progressing as planned 
and according to 
designated time, budget 
and desired outcomes. 

Actions completed within timescales, on budget and evidence 
of achieving desired outcomes 

AMBER 
Issues that could delay 
progress 

Task/action looks liable to go over budget 
Task/action agreed deadlines show slippage 
Task/action within 2 weeks of deadline - not started 
Risk or issue score increases (review required) 

RED Significant issues 
Task/action over budget 
Task/action agreed deadline breached 
Risk or issue score increases to critical or catastrophic 

Performance indicators 

Status Definition 

GREEN 
On target  or better AND Performance has improved compared to last year (or 
performance is at maximum and cannot be improved on) 

YELLOW On target  

AMBER Target is within 10%  

RED Target is missed by 10% or more 

Performance Indicators (Trend) Performance Indicator types 

 
Performance has improved compared to last year. CP Corporate Plan indicator 

 Performance has maintained (this includes those at maximum)   

 
Performance has declined BUT within 10% of the last year   

 
Performance has declined by 10% or more compared to previous year   

P
age 57



    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  
Q2 2022-23 

 
 

 

WBO1: Supporting a successful sustainable economy 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.1  Sustain the current good pupil 
performance at key stage 4. (EFS) 

Green 

While it is the responsibility of schools to review the progress of their learners, the improvement partners continue 
to work with all school leaders to ensure that effective evaluation and improvement processes are in place and 
maintained. We are aligning our monitoring processes with the Welsh Government school improvement guidance 
'Framework for evaluation, improvement and accountability', to review pupil progress at Key Stage 4 and Post-16. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DEFS152 
CP 
WBO1 

Percentage of all schools that 
have effective evaluation and 
improvement processes in 
place. 
Higher Preferred 

New 
22.23 

100.00% 100% 100% N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Alignment with Welsh Government guidance 268/2021, 'School 
improvement guidance: framework for evaluation, improvement and accountability and 
cognisant of changes to methods of assessment due to the pandemic. 
Performance: Improvement partners continue to work with all school leaders to ensure 
that effective evaluation and improvement processes are in place and maintained. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.2  Raise standards of literacy in primary 
schools. (EFS) 

Green 

While it is the responsibility of schools to review the progress of their learners, the improvement partners continue to 
work with all school leaders to ensure that effective evaluation and improvement processes are in place and 
maintained. We are aligning our monitoring processes with the Welsh Government school improvement guidance 
'Framework for evaluation, improvement and accountability', to review pupil progress at Key Stage 4 and Post-16. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.3  Improve outcomes for post-16 learners 
in school sixth forms. (EFS) 

Green 

While it is the responsibility of schools to review the progress of their learners, the improvement partners continue to 
work with all school leaders to ensure that effective evaluation and improvement processes are in place and 
maintained. We are aligning our monitoring processes with the Welsh Government school improvement guidance 
'Framework for evaluation, improvement and accountability', to review pupil progress at Key Stage 4 and Post-16. 

 

 

  

P
age 58

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1110&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4303&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1134&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1129&read=true


    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.4  Assess the impact of the Covid-19 
school closures on outcomes for 
learners and support schools to 
mitigate teaching and learning issues 
as a result of the pandemic (EFS) 

Green 

While it is the responsibility of schools to review the progress of their learners, the improvement partners continue to 
work with all school leaders to ensure that effective evaluation and improvement processes are in place and 
maintained. We are aligning our monitoring processes with the Welsh Government school improvement guidance 
'Framework for evaluation, improvement and accountability', to review pupil progress at Key Stage 4 and Post-16. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.5  Support schools to provide safe 
learning environments for all learners 
and staff in schools. (EFS) Green 

A Safeguarding Board has been established within the directorate to support 
safeguarding activity, including a review of policies. This work will commence early in 
2023. Delivery is ongoing of the activities identified in the current version of the 
Corporate Health and Safety Unit’s (CHSU) Corporate Health and Safety Action Plan. 

This review of policies will commence early in 
2023. Continue delivery of the activities identified 
in the current version of the Corporate Health and 
Safety Unit’s (CHSU) Corporate Health and 
Safety Action Plan. 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.6  Deliver the priorities in the Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan (WESP) to 
promote Welsh medium education and 
increase the number of Welsh 
speakers to support Cymraeg 2050. 
(EFS) 

Amber 

As at the end of Q2, we are reporting that the implementation, monitoring and review 
of the priorities identified in the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2022-2032 
that relate to the current financial year are at 20%. The WESP 2022-2032 was 
approved by Welsh Government for an implementation date of 1 September 2022. The 
WESP is published on the Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) website. The 
WESP co-ordinator started in post on 1 September 2022. The members of the Welsh 
in Education Forum (WEF) have been confirmed in line with the agreed terms of 
reference. All subgroups have been reviewed. 

Meeting of the subgroups are scheduled for 
November 2022. 
 
.   

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DEFS138 
Local 
WBO1 

Percentage of Year 1 
learners taught through the 
medium of Welsh. 
Higher Preferred 

7.67% 8.7% N/A 
8.04% 

Annual 
Actual 

7.67% 
Annual 
Actual 

 

 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: A target of between 14% - 18% by 2032 has been set by Welsh Government 
to support ‘Cymraeg 2050.’ 
Performance: The total number of Year 1 learners in the four Welsh-medium primary schools 
in the 2021-2022 academic year, as measured by PLASC (Pupil Level Annual School 
Census), was 129. This compares to a total of 122 in the previous academic year. The total 
number of Year 1 learners across all schools was 1605, compared to 1591 in the previous 
academic year. Therefore, there was an increase in the percentage of learners taught through 
the medium of Welsh compared to the previous year. 

 

 

P
age 59

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1127&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1128&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1125&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4280&read=true


    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Other indicators linked to achieving WBO1 

PI Ref No, 
PI Type, 

PAM / Local 
link to Corp 

Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

21-22 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DEFS155 
Local 
WBO1 

The number of safeguarding audits completed by schools that are 
rated as green 
Higher Preferred 

N/A 60.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: All schools have received extensive training 
and support related to their safeguarding responsibilities. 
This should be reflected within their safeguarding audits. 
Performance: This is an annual task. The audits are 
completed in the autumn term and analysed in the spring 
term. Therefore, data will be reported in Q3. 

 

 

WBO2: Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.1.2  Target the use of early intervention 
services to reduce demand on statutory 
services. (EFS) 

Amber 

The Early Help service is working with corporate ICT to develop data capture 
arrangements to enable performance reporting in respect of the number of families who 
are subject to repeat proceedings through ‘edge of care’ services. The local authority’s 
provision of support and education services for young offenders is now on s stronger 
footing in that the service is no longer in special measures. However, a range of 
challenges are still present including recruitment and retention, inadequate mental health 
provision and a delay in planned work to Evergreen Hall in Bridgend town centre. As at the 
end of Q2, the percentage of completed Team Around the Family support plans that close 
with a successful outcome was better than target. 

Continue data capture work with corporate 
ICT and the monitoring of the HIMP post-
inspection action plan implementation. 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

DEFS29 
CP 
WBO2 

The percentage of completed TAF (Team Around 
the Family) support plans that close with a 
successful outcome. 
Higher Preferred 

73.0% 70.0% 70% 78% 72.0% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Improved performance against a backdrop of 
increased demand and complexity of cases. 
Performance: Performance in Q1 and Q2 was better than target. 
. 

 

 

  

P
age 60

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4318&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1138&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4102&read=true


    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  Q2 2022-23 

 
 

WBO3: Smarter use of resources 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.1.2  Provide sufficient school places in the 
right areas by delivering 21st Century 
Schools’ under the council’s schools’ 
modernisation programme. (EFS) 

Green 

The statutory process for the replacement Heronsbridge School concluded in July 2022. The outcome is being 
reported to Cabinet in October 2022 and approval is being sought to progress the scheme. • The statutory process 
for the replacement Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr concluded in July 2022. The outcome is being reported to Cabinet in 
October2022 and approval is being sought to progress the scheme. • The replacement Mynydd Cynffig Primary 
School is in the design process. • The Stage 1 report in respect of the replacement Ysgol y Ferch o’r Sgêr and the 
new English-medium school (that is, the replacement for Afon Y Felin and Corneli Primary Schools) has been 
submitted to Welsh Government for consideration and the local authority is awaiting the outcome of this process. • 
The Welsh-medium childcare schemes at Bettws and Ogmore Valley are under construction. • Welsh-medium 
capital grant funding approval has been received for a mobile classroom at Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr. • 
Heronsbridge School – temporary accommodation at Bridgend College was handed-over to the local authority in 
September 2022. • Council approval has been received to include a six-classroom block for Bryntirion 
Comprehensive School in the capital programme. The scheme is in design. • Council approval has been received 
to include a two-classroom extension at Pencoed Primary School and a four-classroom extension at Coety Primary 
School in the capital programme. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction of Travel 
compared to same 

period last year 
Comments 

 

DCH2.1.11.1 
Local 
WBO3 

The percentage surplus capacity in 
primary schools. 
Lower Preferred 

9.43% 10.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: National guidance indicates a recommended 10% 
surplus. 
Performance: (Data will be reported in Q3.) 

 

DCH2.1.11.2 
Local 
WBO3 

The percentage surplus capacity in 
secondary schools. 
Lower Preferred 

18.0% 18.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: National guidance indicates a recommended 10% 
surplus. 
Performance: (Data will be reported in Q3.) 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.3  Implement the planned budget reductions 
identified in the MTFS, in particular for 
the 2022-23 financial year, set annual 
balanced budgets and establish long 
term financially sustainable solutions. 
(EFS) 

Amber 

There has been a review of the Financial Scheme for Schools. The financial position of all 
schools is under constant review in a number of arenas. Schools in a deficit budget position 
are required to write a plan to manage the deficit; if the deficit is significant, the school is 
required to meet with the Head of Service. Significant surplus budgets are also subject to 
scrutiny. The Q2 position for the Education and Family Support Directorate is that the 
£68,000 saving target for 2022-2023 will not be met. Welsh Government has changed the 
terms and conditions of the grant for this service area, which has impacted on the core 
budget and deliverability of this proposal. 

The Education and Family Support 
Directorate is working on alternative 
budget reduction proposals to replace 
this saving, which will be reported to 
Cabinet in the Q3 budget monitoring 
report. 

 

  

P
age 61

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1106&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4006&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4007&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1126&read=true


    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Performance Indicators 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.4  Adapt our ways of working to make better 
use of our assets and build on the 
technological progress accelerated by 
COVID. (EFS) 

Green 

Work is ongoing to implement the Capita One system across the directorate. However, there 
have been several unforeseen security issues in particular, which have required resolution. 
These have now been addressed and the base system has been implemented. The 
implementation timetable for the modules is being revisited. 

Complete the adjustments to the 
implementation timetable. 

 

Other 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

CHR002iv 
Local 
Other priority 

Number of working days per full time 
equivalent lost due to sickness 
absence (Education and Family 
Support Directorate, excluding 
schools). 
Lower Preferred 

12.60 
days 

No 
target 

N/A 5.71 days 4.82 days 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Directorate sickness targets are set corporately. 
Performance: When compared with Q2 in 2021-2022: - there was an increase in the 
number of absences from 166 to 181; - the percentage of absences for 7 days or less 
increased from 55% to 58%; - the percentage of absences of 21 days or more increased 
from 26% to 28%; and - the total number of FTE days lost in Q2 increased from 1012 to 
1238. Cumulatively, the total number of FTE days lost increased from 2249 to 2660. 
Stress/anxiety /depression and musculoskeletal disorders account for just over 49% of 
all FTE days lost.  

 

DEFS132 
Local 
Other priority 

Number of working days per full time 
equivalent lost due to sickness 
absence (schools). 
Lower Preferred 

10.56 
days 

No 
target 

N/A 1.59 days 3.97 days 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Directorate sickness targets are set corporately. 
Performance: When compared with Q2 in 2021-2022: - the number of absences 
increased from 1288 to 1369; - the percentage of absences for 7 days or less increased 
from 55% to 58%, while the percentage of absences of between 8 and 20 days 
decreased from 12% to 8%. The percentage of absences of 21 days or more decreased 
marginally; and - the total number of FTE days lost in Q2 increased from 3243 to 3616. 
Cumulatively, the total number of FTE days lost increased from 4480 to 5039. 
Stress/anxiety /depression and musculoskeletal disorders account for just over 44% of 
all FTE days lost. 

 

CORPB1d 
Local 
Other priority 

Percentage of safeguarding e-
learning (including workbook) 
completions (EDFS Directorate) 
Higher Preferred 

90.46% 100.0% N/A 
Data not 
available 

N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: All staff should either have completed the existing e-learning module or 
should complete the new module, once available. 
Performance: Data not available. The directorate has been informed that the system 
reports cannot be run until technical issues are resolved. . 

 

PI Ref No PI Description 

Annual 
target  
22-23 
£’000 

Performance as at Q2 Comments 

Red Amber Green 

Performance: The Q2 position is that the £68,000 saving 
target for 2022-2023 will not be met. 

£’000 % £’000 % £’000 % 

DEF143 
CP feeder 
WBO 3 

Value of planned budget reductions achieved 
(Education and Family Support Directorate) 

£68 £68 100% £0 0% £0 0% 

P
age 62

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1118&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3982&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4243&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4306&read=true


    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  Q2 2022-23 

 
 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

CORPB1e 
Local 
Other priority 

Percentage of safeguarding e-
learning (including workbook) 
completions (schools) 
Higher Preferred 

72.04% 100.0% N/A 
Data not 
available 

N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: All staff should either have completed the module or should complete 
the new module, once available. 
Performance: As at Q2, the directorate has been informed that the system reports 
cannot be run until technical issues are resolved. Data may be available for reporting in 
Q3. 

 

 
Additional Sickness Information by Service Area – Education 

 

 
Additional Sickness Information by Service Area – Schools 
 

 QTR2 2021-22 QTR2 2022-23    

Unit 

 FTE 
30.09.2022 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per 
FTE 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per FTE 

Cumulative 
Days per 
FTE 2021-

22 

Cumulative 
Days per FTE 

2022-23 

Primary Schools 1080.48 1563.72 297 1.45 1706.28 305 1.58 3.93 4.27 

Secondary Schools  930.98 869.30 204 0.97 1114.97 244 1.20 2.71 3.48 

Special Schools  256.13 809.51 96 3.38 794.71 83 3.10 8.74 8.10 

Schools Total 2267.59 3242.53 597 1.47 3615.96 632 1.59 3.97 4.37 

 
  

 
 QTR2 2021-22 QTR2 2022-23    

Unit 
 FTE 

30.09.2022 
Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per 
FTE 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per FTE 

Cumulative 
Days per 

FTE 2021-22 

Cumulative 
Days per 

FTE 2022-23 

Business Support 24.01 0.00 0 0.00 22.00 3 0.92 0.18 1.11 

Catering Services (CAT) 108.04 253.28 82 2.38 290.65 92 2.69 5.83 6.58 

Family Support 171.64 405.11 34 2.20 523.57 37 3.05 4.52 5.99 

Learner Support 124.60 348.32 49 2.77 400.41 48 3.21 6.07 7.03 

School Modernisation 3.00 5.00 1 1.67 0.00 0 0.00 2.00 0.00 

School Support 15.27 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Vulnerable Groups 17.59 0.00 0 0.00 1.01 1 0.06 0.00 0.72 

Education & Family Support 
Directorate Total 466.15 1011.71 166 2.19 1237.64 181 2.66 4.83 5.71 

P
age 63

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4307&read=true


    Appendix C – Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan  Q2 2022-23 

 
 

Additional Sickness Absence by Reason 
 Education & Family Support Directorate Schools 

Absence Reason 
Q1 Number of 
FTE days lost 

Q2 Number of 
FTE days lost 

Total 
Number of 
FTE  Days 

Lost 

% of 
Cumulative 
days lost 

Q1 Number of 
FTE days lost 

Q2 Number of 
FTE days lost 

Total Number 
of FTE  Days 

Lost 

% of 
Cumulative 
days lost 

Cancer 95.84 85.62 181.46 6.82% 146.59 154.26 300.84 3.07% 

Chest & Respiratory 57.66 63.26 120.92 4.55% 240.50 80.87 321.37 3.28% 

Coronavirus COVID - 19 99.61 6.05 105.66 3.97% 263.82 94.86 358.68 3.66% 

Eye/Ear/Throat/Nose/Mouth/Dental 76.73 11.14 87.87 3.30% 383.67 184.50 568.17 5.79% 

Genitourinary / Gynaecological  0 0.95 0.95 0.04% 87.70 12.66 100.36 1.02% 

Heart / Blood Pressure / Circulation 21.69 31.42 53.11 2.00% 264.66 99.32 363.97 3.71% 

Infections 97.34 86.86 184.19 6.92% 616.73 349.74 966.47 9.86% 

MSD including Back & Neck 245.74 210.60 456.34 17.15% 1031.54 716.42 1747.96 17.83% 

Neurological 60.81 80.66 141.47 5.32% 382.61 239.09 621.70 6.34% 

Other / Medical Certificate 116.70 68.50 185.20 6.96% 6.35 24.76 31.11 0.32% 

Pregnancy related 23.92 18.54 42.46 1.60% 53.57 74.78 128.36 1.31% 

Stomach / Liver / Kidney / Digestion 42.23 38.78 81.01 3.05% 745.68 469.36 1215.04 12.39% 

Bereavement Related 88.36 211.24 299.59 11.26% 330.30 169.99 500.29 5.10% 

Other Mental illness   14.00 14.00 0.53% 59.80 5.27 65.07 0.66% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression not work related 374.88 209.04 583.92 21.95% 1435.30 730.89 2166.19 22.09% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression work related 21.00 101.00 122.00 4.59% 140.58 209.18 349.76 3.57% 

Tests / Treatment / Operation  0 0 0.00 0.00% 0 0 0.00 0.00% 

TOTALS 1422.50 1237.64 2660.15   6189.40 3615.96 9805.35   

 

 
 

 

77% 79%

23% 21%

21-22 22-23

Education Sickness Absence at Q2 -
Long Term / Short Term

STS

LTS 72% 71%

28% 29%

21-22 22-23

Schools Sickness Absence at Q2 -
Long Term / Short Term

STS

LTS

P
age 64



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

SOCIAL SERVICES & WELL-BEING DASHBOARD – PERFORMANCE Q2 

The Social Services and Well-being Directorate has focussed on working to ensure that there is a clear focus across the Directorate on continuous improvement of quality and performance against a context of 
significantly increasing need and demand in children’s social care, challenges in workforce in adult and children’s social care, challenges in meeting care and support needs in a timely way in adult services and 
the continued recovery of the leisure and culture sector. Whilst there is significant operational challenge, progress is being made in delivering the strategic priorities in relation to practice improvement, workforce, 
provision of services, hearing and acting on the voice of people and effective partnership. 
 

In children’s social care, we have worked with our Regional Safeguarding Board partners to prepare, understand and act on learning from the recent child practice review. In advance of the review publication, 
the Council had undertaken an internal review and the Regional Safeguarding Board had progressed a rapid review into safeguarding arrangements. Our focus is ensuring learning is embedded and impacts. 
Following the Performance Evaluation Inspection of children’s social care undertaken by Care Inspectorate Wales, published in May 2022, the Improving Outcomes for Children Board, chaired by the Chief 
Executive and informed by an independent advisor, is focussed on delivering the actions in the 3-year strategic plan approved by Cabinet in February 2022 which align with the actions in the Care Inspectorate 
Wales (CIW) Performance Evaluation Inspection.  

The most significant operational pressures are currently in placement and provider services. Bridgend, as many other authorities, is experiencing difficulties in securing accommodation, care and support for care 
experienced children in a timely way. There have been more occasions in the last period when children have been supported for a time in unregistered provision which is notified to Care Inspectorate Wales as 
‘operating without registration’. The new children’s assessment hub provides an opportunity to build capacity within the County Borough. This should be operational later in 2023. In advance, we are progressing 
a root and branch review of the Council’s residential provision and have strengthened leadership through the appointment of a dedicated Responsible Individual.   

Children’s Services is delivering timely and focussed improvement plans with 6 week and 6 month plans for all parts of children’s social care and continued with gold, silver and bronze governance structures in 
view of the significant operational pressures which include a 31.9% increase in contacts to the IAA service, a 161% increase in the number of assessments being undertaken and an increase in the number of 
children on the child protection register from 174 in March 2022 to 272 in September 2022. There has been a focus on strengthening management oversight and quality assurance systems as well rapid 
identification and addressing ‘hot spots’ in performance. The workforce are being supported to undertake ‘back to basics’ safeguarding training, which is introducing concepts from Signs of Safety, the strength-
based model of social work practice which will be a key priority as the service moves forward. 

Retention and recruitment of the social care workforce continues to have the highest priority in adults and children’s social care. A continued key focus is workforce wellbeing and there is close working with 
colleagues in human resources to ensure that in addition to the wellbeing support available to all parts of the Council, that where needed, specialist support is available in a timely way. This support has made a 
significant difference for those members of the workforce who have accessed it. There are challenges in workforce retention and recruitment across the whole of the directorate, but the most acute challenges 
are experienced in the care worker workforce (care and support at home and children’s residential) and children’s social work. Workforce plans are being progressed to ensure there are short-, medium- and 
long-term actions to sustainably improve the workforce position. In children’s social work, the short-term actions have included long term strategic engagement of the agency workforce to ensure that statutory 
duties are being met. Social worker support officer roles have been implemented in case management teams. Market supplements have been applied in the teams where the criteria has been met. A social 
worker charter has been developed for all Bridgend social workers and will be formally launched on World Social Workday. In the medium-term international recruitment is being progressed. In the longer term, 
social worker trainees and secondees are being supported and will be key to the Council securing a professional social worker workforce. A dedicated marketing resource is being recruited for social care to 
promote the opportunities in all social care roles. In addition, a number of actions are being progressed to address the challenges in care worker recruitment. A trial group has been identified for implementation 
of electric vehicles. Joint recruitment processes with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Health Board are underway for Band 2 workers to increase capacity. Research is progressing to understand working practices in 
other local authorities ahead of a move away from split shift working. In the short term an agency provider is continuing to provide up to 450hrs support, although there remain delays in people having their care 
and support needs met in a timely way due to the ongoing challenges. Independent domiciliary care providers continue to be offered support and one provider has progressed international recruitment. 

Strategic improvements continue to progress in adult services. Deep dives are being undertaken in every adult social work team and a new operating model will be approved in early 2023. Where changes have 
been required more quickly, the common access point and the hospital social work team, these have been progressed. There is a major transformation project to transfer the Council’s telecare service from 
analogue to digital and opportunities are being progressed to enable even better use of assistive technology to improve outcomes for people. A significant review of the operating model in learning disability 
direct services is being progressed to ensure there is a sustainable day opportunities and supported living model in the county borough. There continues to be a focus on strength based social work practice and 
quality assurance and management oversight is being strengthened. The whole system pressures in meeting the needs of older people in the County Borough is a high priority at a local, regional and national 
level. ‘Discharge to Recover and Assess’ pathways are being implemented to improve hospital discharge processes, although capacity in community care services remains a very significant challenge.  

Prevention and wellbeing services continue to perform well as they recover from the pandemic with a focus on supporting the most vulnerable and preventing escalation of need. There has been significant 
engagement with carers – adult carers and young carers – as identification and services for carers have been reviewed. The implementation of the carers ID card, and the review of the adult carer’s wellbeing 
service have been significant priorities. There has also been extensive engagement with children and young people in the development of the play sufficiency assessment which will be considered by Cabinet in 
January 2023.  There is steady recovery in participation in leisure and cultural activities post pandemic. In common with other services with high energy consumption, leisure venues are experiencing significant 
cost pressures.  

Budgets in the Social Services and Wellbeing directorate are driven by the statutory requirements to meet the assessed care needs of individuals in a way which supports people to be safe and achieve the 
outcomes that matter to them. Social work practice is strength based, and significant savings have been made since the introduction of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 as practice focuses 
on the resources of individuals and family networks with services commissioned or provided by the Council only forming part of the care plan if people’s needs cannot be met in any other way. Local community 
co-ordinators prevent people’s needs escalating at the edge of care and support in part of the County Borough. Despite all the prevention and wellbeing service, the needs of children and families and adults with 
care and support needs has increased following the pandemic. As at quarter 2 there were significant budget pressures evident in children’s and adult’s services as a consequence of the cost and quantum of 
services and workforce pressures including the costs and number of agency workers engaged to meet statutory services. Sustainable service and financial plans will be critical to the confidence of regulators and 
the Council that the right resourcing and operating models are in place. Sustainability requires a rebalancing of the model of care to prevent escalation of need and to achieve best outcomes for people. This 
requires a whole Council and partnership leadership to meet the needs of the most vulnerable in the most effective and cost-effective way. 

P
age 65



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

 

Commitments 2022-23 
BRAG – progress against 
commitment 

 

All Indicators (incl. Finance and sickness PIs) Corporate Plan Indicators 

Q2 Directorate Commitments to 
delivering Wellbeing objectives 

Total Blue Red Amber Green Performance vs Target Trend vs Q2 2021-22 Performance vs Target 
Trend vs Q2 2021-22 (Excluding 
finance) 

Wellbeing Objective One –  
Supporting a successful 
sustainable economy 

0     

  
  

Wellbeing Objective Two –  
Helping people and communities to 
be more healthy and resilient 

5   5  

Wellbeing Objective Three –  
Smarter use of resources 

2   1 1 

Finance High Corporate Risks 

 Revenue Budget 
• The net revenue budget for the Directorate for 2022-23 is £82.327m. 
• The current year-end projected outturn is £89.826m with a projected 

overspend of £7.499 million. 
Capital Budget 

• At Q2 the capital budget for the Directorate for 2021-22 is £3.939m 
with total expenditure of £541,000 and no foreseen under or overspend 
to planned budget. 

Efficiency Savings 

Savings (£000) 2022-23  
% 

2022-23 

Savings Target  £365 100% 

Likely to be achieved £284 78% 

Variance £81 22% 

 
 

Additional financial information is provided in the Budget Monitoring 2022-23– 
Quarter 2 Revenue Forecast report presented to Cabinet on 18 October 2022.  
  

Oversight of corporate risks are collectively undertaken and managed by the Corporate Management Board (CMB).  The 
Corporate risk register can be found as Appendix E and should be viewed in the overall context of the performance of this 
dashboard to understand the risks. Some are Council wide whilst others focus on specific directorates. 

Directorate Risks 
 

As noted, in the introductory remarks the Directorate continues to manage a number of inter-related risks. In children’s social 
care there has been a significant increase in demand across all parts of the service.  and it is noted that without adequate 
budgets and sufficient experienced workforce there is a risk that the Council's safeguarding arrangements will not be effective, 
and that children and adults at risk will not be kept safe. The numbers of children on the child protection register is at a higher 
level that at any time in the history of the Council. There are also unprecedented numbers of adults waiting.  

The Council has carried out a number of actions to mitigate this risk, instigating gold, silver and bronze critical incident 
arrangements to address operational risks and issues and an Improving Outcomes for Children Improvement Board to progress 
strategic actions. In adult services, a fortnightly pressures meeting, equivalent to the silver command in children’s social care, is 
chaired by the Corporate Director. Staff teams have been strengthened in some areas to meet demand and includes the use of 
agency staff (in both social work and home care staff). However, there is a further risk that with the worsening financial position 
not all of the investment required will be available on a sustainable basis and therefore significant budget pressures have been 
identified for consideration through the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy.  

Workforce is a highly significant risk. There is an overreliance on agency workforce in children’s social work and increasing 
agency hours in in-house care and support services for adults. Agency is used to mitigate the risk of not meeting statutory duties. 
The risk to impact on quality is mitigated by treating agency workforce as if they were permanent in respect of supervision, 
oversight and access to mandatory training. There is a mantra that underpins this approach ‘whilst you are with us you are one 
of us.’ There are significant financial risks as a consequence of the scale of agency engagement. It is difficult to address this 
issue until there is a sustainable improvement in the position in respect of permanent workforce which requires the medium- and 
longer-term actions from the workforce plan to impact. 

Social services case management requires a case management IT system which supports effective practice. The WCCIS case 
management system requires development for it to be utilised optimally in Bridgend. There is learning from other local authorities. 

There are also significant issues in respect of the adequacy of budget to meet need for social care services in Bridgend. There 
are significant overspends linked to the service and workforce required to meet statutory requirements to safeguard, protect 
and improve outcomes for the most vulnerable. The Council faces an exponential challenge in meeting the statutory social 
services requirements and setting and delivering a balanced budget. 
 

3
1

3

1

5

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

WBO1 WBO2 WBO3 Other

8

3

2

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

3

3

5

>10% off

<10% off

On target

On target & improved

8

1

2

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

P
age 66



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Consultation, Engagement & Involvement 

Within Adult Social Care consultation and engagement is facilitated through a number of mediums. Within older persons 

residential services feedback is captured in quarterly care reviews by the Provider Service Manager and Registered Individual 

(RI) visits. Within Domiciliary Care Services, community meetings are facilitated by management teams and are accessible to 

all individuals; subject areas include health and wellbeing, Health and Safety, community and ‘at home’ activities. In Learning 

Disability services, a number of individuals are active participants and members of People’s First Bridgend, an independent 

advocacy group for people with learning disabilities and autism. Participants attend regular meetings and actively contribute on 

the development of services.  The views of people entering a number of services are also sought from social workers / care co-

ordinators, families, social care workers and other relevant professionals with further feedback captured in quarterly assurance 

meetings by the Provider Service Manager and RI visits.  

Across adults and children’s social care a review of direct payments has progressed which has been co-produced with carers, 

using expert independent advice to ensure the revised strategy and policy very genuinely addresses the what matters to carers 

in care and support arrangements. 

Within Children’s Social Care a number of consultation events have been held with care experienced children and young 

people and care leavers. These have included; a consultation on what makes a good parent, a consultation on what it is like to 

be in care or a care leaver and an event to identify the most important issues for care experienced children, young people and 

care leavers when being supported by statutory agencies and partners. The service has also successfully commissioned a new 

Specialist Participation Service contracted to run a Care Experienced Forum and also a Care Leavers Forum that will both 

meet monthly and inform the work of the advocacy service. 

The Prevention and Wellbeing service undertook a survey of 4300 secondary school children/young people, which included 

data on 350 young people with additional needs to better understand lifestyles and wellbeing challenges as part of the play 

sufficiency assessment. The Service also supported the national school sport survey with primary and secondary schools 

across the borough. As part of the young carers network the service undertook engagement with 190 young carers and held an 

engagement session with unpaid carers to inform the carers wellbeing service design specification. 

Implications of Financial Reductions on Service Performance and other Key Issues/challenges 

Implications of financial reductions on Service Performance 

The Directorate’s net budget for 2022-23 is £82.327 million. Current projections indicate an over- spend of £7.499 million at year end. This is a significant shift compared to the 2021-22 Outturn position of a 
£5.931 million under spend. The underspend from 2021/22 enabled the creation of ear marked reserves in a number of key areas and it is clear that the directorate overspend would be even higher if it were not 
for the investment of this reserve funding much of which will no longer be available in 2022/23.  
 

The reason for the 2021/22 underspend was the significant grant income received in 2021-22, including one-off grants such as the Social Care Recovery Fund (£2.916 million).  There are significant risks across 
many parts of the social services budget. The budget has been dependent for many years on short term grant funding to meet statutory duties with underlying deficits and these has been highlighted in financial 
monitoring reports. The reliance on grants over many years mean the base budgets for social care in Bridgend are comparatively low when benchmarked with other local authorities and there is disproportionate 
impact when the grants are no longer available. 
 

A contributory factor for the projected overspend in 2022-23 is due to challenges in recruiting to permanent vacancies in some key teams. In order to meet the Authority’s statutory safeguarding responsibilities– 
in children’s social care where the numbers of workers engaged to meet statutory duties and keep caseloads at safe levels due to increased levels of need are above the agreed establishment. Independent 
experts are supporting the development of a business case to set out what is needed going forward for there to be sustainable ability to meet need within budget.  
 

A further area of pressure is due to the volume and complexity of need for statutory social care services from the vulnerable population of the county borough. Bridgend has a growing population and there are 
more people with statutory care and support needs post Covid pandemic. Practice continues to be strength based and eligibility criteria rigorously applied. The most cost overspends are evident in learning 
disability services, mental health services and services for older people. There are increasing numbers of children who require residential accommodation, care and support which is resulting in a significant 
budget pressure in that area.  
 
Finally, the escalating costs for commissioned care providers (domiciliary, residential and nursing) linked to inflation (food and fuel are particularly impactful) and the need to increase the pay of staff to compete 
with retail and hospitality and the increased reliance on agency staff (particularly registrant nurses) have meant that some councils have reported having to look at applying across the board increases in their 
fees during the past year. However, providers are continuing to get into financial difficulty and there is market exit probability in both adult and children’s services which will place more pressure on Council 
budgets as the Council will always be a safety net provider in such circumstances.  
 

P
age 67



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

The position in Bridgend is not unique; the Welsh Local Government Association has written to Welsh Ministers to advise that there is an estimated total cumulative pressure for social services of £407.8m for 
2023-24 and 2024-25 across Wales. Within this overall Social Services total the estimated total commissioning cost and demand pressures are £288.4m. Pay inflation pressure totals £75.8m for the two years. 
The position in Bridgend is particularly acute as increases in demand in children’s social care have been particularly acute due to the particular circumstances of the current operating context. Independent 
analysis advises these increased pressures will remain for at least a 2-year period.  
 

Sustainable and aligned service and financial plans, which maximise the impact of all services – statutory and non-statutory – to preventing escalation of care needs is critical and a whole Council approach to 
systematically progressing service reviews and understanding in detail the budgets required is essential.  
 

Workforce issues impacting on Service Performance 

The Directorate continues to focus on the retention and recruitment of the social care workforce and provide interventions that support workforce recovery, promote and enhance self-care and compassion, and 
putting wellbeing as a priority for staff.  
 

During the reporting period, the Directorate has seen an 18% increase in days lost to sickness per FTE when compared to the same period last year and a 20% increase in cumulative days lost per FTE. The 
breakdown in days lost to sickness per FTE when compared to the same time last year is as follows: 

• 6% increase in Adult Social Care 

• 77% increase in Children’s Social Care  

• 56% increase in Business Support 
 

However, it is important to note that although there has been a significant rise in the percentage increase in days lost to sickness per FTE, within Children’s Social Care the total number of absences rose by 4 and 
remained the same in Business Support. Conversely within Adult Social Care, although days lost rose by 6% there was an increase in the number of absences of 36. This would suggest that absences in Children’s 
Social Care and Business Support are long term whereas in Adult Social Care they are more short term, reflecting the particular nature of the workforce and indicating the need for bespoke solutions. 
 

Failure to attract, develop and retain workforce remains a key risk for the Directorate. However, the Directorate continues to mitigate this risk via ‘workforce’ projects particularly focussing on children’s social 
work and care workers as set out in the director’s introduction.  
 
The Directorate has also used agency staff across a number of services within Adult and Children’s Social Care and Business Support and has progressed development of social work support officer roles to 
reduce the ‘non social worker’ tasks that professional social workers are required to undertake.  
 
Recruitment of international social workers is progressing and is anticipated to be a medium-long term plan to reduce vacancy levels in Children’s social work teams. Following the procurement of an 
international social work provider, recruitment processes have begun and successful applicants are due to commence employment in 2023. A project group has been set up to identify and address areas of work 
that are required to support the arrival and induction of the recruited international workers. This includes colleagues from Children’s Services, HR, Housing and Education and Family support.  

In the long term, for the last 2 years there has been a significant increase in the number of social work degree places supported by BCBC through the ‘grow our own’ social worker programme. There were 7 
secondees who commenced the degree course in 2021/22 and 8 trainees and secondees who commenced the degree in 2022/23. The continued support to the grow our own scheme is crucial over the longer 
term to addressing social worker recruitment issues. 

Procurement issues impacting on Service Performance 

Close and regular provider engagement and contract monitoring activity, and additional financial support has been provided. The recommissioning of services provides the basis for providers to grow their 
businesses.  During quarter 1 and 2 of 2022/23 we continue to progress a number of key actions put in place to build resilience. The Directorate has: 

• Established an Improving Outcomes for Children Board to strategically address the improvements identified in the Council’s own 3-year improvement plan and the CIW Performance Evaluation Inspection 
(May 2022). 

• Established a corporate transformation programme – Improving Outcomes for the Joneses – to lead the remodelling of social care in Bridgend.  

• Operated gold, silver and bronze management arrangements to oversee the operational focussed improvements required in children’s social care and a pressures (silver) group to address the challenges 
in meeting statutory duties in adults social care. 

• Reviewed the directorates performance framework, quality assurance framework and supervision policy to strengthen performance, quality and management oversight. 

• Developed an implementation plan for a strength-based model of practice in children’s social care (signs of safety) and undertaken deep dive reviews in adult social care with a view to implementing a 
new operating model in 2023. 

• Developed a commissioning plan to grow services to ensure that reablement services are at pre-pandemic levels of activity. 

• Published Market Stability Reports for regulated services in-line with Welsh Government Requirements.  

• Developed service planning groups for key population areas, with a view to developing commissioning plans based on identified population needs and priority areas; which will develop joint 
commissioning strategies between Housing and Social Care following independent analysis for key population groups including care experienced children and older people. 

Asset Management implications on Service Performance (not for all directorates) 

All assets are managed by the Corporate landlord or via partners through management fees 
 

P
age 68



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Report 

Issued 

Name of Audit 

/ Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for 

Improvement 
Action in Q1 & Q2 2022-23 

RAG (at 

end Q2) 

Open / 

Closed 

May 

2022 

CIW, Report of 

Performance 

Evaluation  

Inspection of 

Children’s 

Services 

PE1 - Opportunities for children’s views to be 

consistently sought and appropriately 

recorded need to be strengthened 

Consultation and engagement activity with Care Experienced Children and Care Leavers has involved 

focus groups and a specific event including: 

Consultation on what makes a good parent with the outcome of producing media clips used in member 

induction training. 

Consultation on what it is like to be ‘in care’ or ‘a care leaver’. 

Consultation on identifying the most important issues for care experienced children, young people and care 

leavers when being supported by statutory agencies and partners with the outcome to inform the priorities 

of the Bridgend Corporate Parenting Board  

Young People Interview Panels supporting recruitment 

Our young people volunteering to be Young Ambassadors with Voices from Care to discuss the future of 

the Care System in Wales at the Senedd with Ministers and the Children Commissioner for Wales 

Commissioned a new Specialist Participation Service contracted to run a Care Experienced Forum and a 

Care Leavers Forum that will both meet monthly from November 22 

Outcome focused case recording policy and guidance is at final revision stage. Aim to launch by December 

2022. 

Audit activity will take place 3 months after launch. 

GREEN Open 

PE2 - Limited Evidence of Direct Work 

Practice guidance has been reviewed. There is guidance on listening to and recording the voice of the 

child, and tools for practitioners to use when undertaking direct work with children and young people 

available on the children’s social care web pages. This area will be strengthened further by the 

development of ‘lived experience of the child’ practice guidance. 

GREEN Open 

PE3 - Inconsistent use of chronologies and 

genograms 
Completed BLUE Closed 

PE4 - Strengthen business support for 

practitioners 

New SWSO structure will be implemented in case management teams from 1st December 2022 

Training plan in place for staff to commence Dec 22 – March 23  

Proposed changes to the fostering service business support team have been prepared with job descriptions 

and capacity reviewed with an aim of commencing consultation in December 2022 

GREEN Open 

PE5 - Variable evidence of management 

oversight/Quality of supervision 

Review completed and revised policy is with SSWB SMT for approval w/c 21/11/22 

An external provider has been commissioned who will deliver a programme of training for supervisors and 

supervisees from Jan 23 onwards 

Programme is underway  

The new Q A framework makes clear roles and responsibilities in Q A and the role of QA in driving change 

and improvement through reflective action learning, training and development and practice guidance. 

Training on facilitating action learning sets is available and teams are encouraged to use action learning 

sets to share and reflect on practice. 

GREEN Open 

PE6 - Practice model – implementation of 

Signs of Safety 

Back to basics training is being delivered to teams to introduce the concept of Signs of Safety in readiness 

for formal implementation of the full model. 

Principal Officer appointed start date tbc 

Implementation plan for first phase has been agreed with an appointed signs of safety consultant facilitating 

sessions with the leadership team to prepare for a service launch in February 23 

GREEN Open 

Regulatory Tracker 

P
age 69



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Report 

Issued 

Name of Audit 

/ Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for 

Improvement 
Action in Q1 & Q2 2022-23 

RAG (at 

end Q2) 

Open / 

Closed 

PE7 - Review of direct payments scheme 

Draft policy and strategy document is out for engagement with staff and key stakeholders. 

A face-to-face engagement event with those individuals/carers in receipt of Direct Payments is due to be 

held on 12th December 22 

GREEN Open 

PE8 - Consistent offer of a carers 

assessment 

Following conclusion of the Direct Payments engagement, further engagement with carers will take place 

before the end of the financial year with a view to co-producing a carers strategy. 

As an interim measure the managers of the Disabled children team has reviewed paperwork to ensure that 

the meaningful offer of a carers assessment at the point of contact is captured and recorded within our 

systems   

GREEN Open 

PR1 - Opportunities to prevent escalation of 

need continues to be a challenge for the local 

authority given the persistently high volume of 

referrals together with the complexity of 

needs of children and families, and workforce 

challenges 

Edge of Care / IFSS 

Increase of 4.5 posts to support increased demand and prevent escalation 

Further work has been undertaken to understand specific needs within BCBC, including one programme 

offering emotional regulation and distress tolerance for parents who are struggling to manage the demands 

of parenting, another called Family Connections which focuses on conflict resolution skills for whole families  

A case tracker has been developed within edge of care services / IFSS to monitor timescales and length of 

support offered to a family to ensure there is no drift in support offered, this is used as a tool in supervision 

to support staff in developing appropriate exit strategies to alternative services.  

Commissioning further staff to be trained in ‘train the trainer’ evidence-based parenting programmes so 

numerous groups can run simultaneously to offer support to parents.  

Family Group Conferencing 

Since October 2022 the LA has committed to funding FGC’s for all families who are open to statutory 

services for at least 3 months 

The development of a conflict resolution programme for families who have gone through the FGC process 

and will require a whole family approach plan to embedded for the longer term.  

The terms of reference for the children and young people area planning groups have been finalised and 

meetings have been set up starting December.  A priority focus of the planning group is family support 

services and intervention 

Growing our own Social Work Programme - 4 staff have been seconded on the BSc Social Work Cardiff 

Met/Bridgend college programme commenced academic year 2022/23. 4 social work trainees have been 

recruited and have commenced the BSc social work programme (as above). Trainees are super- numery 

staff, each trainee has an individual programme of learning and development alongside their academic 

study and practice learning placements they will gain practical experience across Adults and Childrens 

teams 

A project group has been set up to oversee international recruitment and to date 8 social workers have 

been offered posts with prospective start dates in January 2023. 

The social work charter is in draft and workshops have taken place with practitioners and managers to 

finalise a draft for launch on world social workday 2023. 

AMBER Open 

PR2 - Missed opportunities to thoroughly 

explore and mitigate risk and a lack of 

professional curiosity 

Ongoing programme of Back-to-Basics Training is in place with dates scheduled through to March 2023. 

Back to Basics Training is mandatory. 

8 Professional curiosity training courses have taken place this year with two further courses scheduled for 

Nov and Dec 22. 

Signs of Safety training to commence from Jan 23. 

GREEN Open 

P
age 70



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Report 

Issued 

Name of Audit 

/ Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for 

Improvement 
Action in Q1 & Q2 2022-23 

RAG (at 

end Q2) 

Open / 

Closed 

Training activity is evaluated initially at engagement with and reaction to an individual event. How learning 

has been transferred by an individual into their role and how new skills and knowledge have been used are 

less tangible and harder to measure. Discussion within supervision and performance data are mechanisms 

used to gauge the wider impact of learning on the individual and the organisation  

PR3 - Placement sufficiency and support 

Prior to opening a root and branch review of the existing service delivery model will be completed to ensure 

the operating model in the new home is fit for purpose  

Building work has commenced on the new Home based in Brynmenyn. 

A Bid has been submitted to Welsh Government to support the review and development of the right multi-

agency therapeutic model which will include access to psychological assessments where required and we 

are currently awaiting the outcome to find out if we have been successful. 

Hillsboro Residential Home for Children and Young People looked after and in crisis has been registered 

and provides a solo placement to a young Person. 

Regional Development of Accommodation Options for UASC in Treforest. 

Foster Wales Bridgend Recruitment and Retention Strategy has been completed and is awaiting sign off 

from CSC SMT. 

Meeting arranged in November 2022 for Regional Leads to discuss Regional Fostering arrangements in 

respect of Parent and Child Placements, Family Link Placements and Supported Lodgings Providers 

Bid submitted to Welsh Government to support the development of the MYST approach in BCBC. In the 

interim scoping has begun in readiness to take the work forward. 

AMBER Open 

PR4 - Accessibility of information, advice and 

assistance 

Draft review document produced for consideration and presented to CMB. Final report to be produced on 

options and resource implications by Dec 22. 

IAA focused plan implemented and continues to be reviewed 

GREEN Open 

PR5 - Strengthening of Quality Assurance 

(QA) framework and alignment of 

performance and quality assurance systems 

Further independent audits have been carried out in relation to case management and supervision and 

findings/recommendations reported to the Improvement Board 

Review completed and new framework is on agenda for Directorate management team sign off w/c 

21/11/22. It will then be launched with teams in December 22 – Jan 23 

Q and A activity will be reported to the monthly Directorate performance meeting chaired by the statutory 

Director 

Internal audit and review of the framework and its impact will be carried out 12 months after implementation  

GREEN Open 

PI1 - Inconsistent thresholds and standards of 

practice 

A programme of core and specialist training is on-going covering Back to Basics and subject specific 

courses as listed above. 

Ref Pe 6  

Practice development plans completed and are reviewed in silver meetings on a weekly basis 

AMBER Open 

PI2 - The local authority will need to ensure 

its communication strategy is sufficiently 

robust to effectively communicate to staff and 

partners the vision for children’s services and 

the many developments taking place/planned 

to take place 

Partnership working has been strengthened through the Regional Safeguarding Board Executive Steering 

Group and the Bridgend Joint Operational Group. A summit is being held to explore a vision and priorities 

for integrated working for children and families in Bridgend. Consideration will be given to partner 

involvement in the improving outcomes for children board. 

GREEN Open 

P
age 71



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Report 

Issued 

Name of Audit 

/ Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for 

Improvement 
Action in Q1 & Q2 2022-23 

RAG (at 

end Q2) 

Open / 

Closed 

PI3 - Share learning from audits and reviews 

with staff and partners 

Learning from Child Practice Reviews is incorporated into relevant training courses.   Bespoke briefing 

sessions for staff to take place in relation to the Bridgend Child Practice Reviews when reviews the reviews 

are completed, and reports published. 

Three practice learning events in relation to Child T are arranged for Dec 22 

GREEN Open 

W1 - Further work is required to improve the 

timeliness of meeting statutory responsibilities 

A performance management framework has been implemented across the Directorate which provides 

management oversight of key performance management data. The Children’s Social Care monthly 

performance management report includes key national metrics as well as local operational information, 

such as assessments and reviews. The report follows a child / young person’s pathway. To further 

strengthen these arrangements the dashboard presented to silver meeting has been further developed and 

provides management oversight of key performance information on a weekly basis. Operational service 

area dashboards continue to be developed to provide management oversight at weekly bronze meetings. 

Next steps are to prioritise the list of statutory requirements and work with the WCCIS team to build on the 

suite of data/performance reports to enhance automated reporting and streamline data validation 

arrangements 

GREEN Open 

W2 - Facilitation of supervised contact 

A review will be undertaken by our improvement partner as part of their work to review the operating model, 

this review will be completed by March 23. 

In the interim there is has been a rapid review of the current arrangements that are in place, and a report on 

the findings and interim recommendations will be presented to CMB in Nov 22 

GREEN Open 

W3 - Consistent high quality written records 

Cross reference to Pe 1  

The guidance on the use of chronologies has been included in the revised recording policy. 

 

Review of foster carer handbook which includes guidance in relation to recording for foster carers, and further training 

will be undertaken to support the guidance. 

 

Policy Officer appointed start date 7/11/22 

AMBER Open 

W4 - CSE and CCE – strengthen 

interventions and mapping 

The regional subgroup is established, and the Group Manager for Development and Improvement is engaged in this 

area of work. 

The pathway document and underpinning toolkit is finalised, and a phased implementation plan is under 

development. This has been presented to CSC EMT on 16/11/22 and implementation plan is being developed. 

GREEN Open 

W5 - First year of practice – ensure 

competence and confidence of staff and 

provide consistent supervision and oversight 

The programme has been reviewed and revised. 14 NQSW’s (including agency workers) commenced the 

programme in October 22. All NQSW’s are required to complete a mandatory training pathway and an additional 

development programme. This includes reflective learning on areas relevant to social workers in both Adult and 

Childrens Social Care 

NQSW’s will have: 

Support from a mentor based within their team 

Reflective professional supervision by a qualified social worker. Weekly for the first four weeks then every 4 

weeks for the remainder of their first year in practice. 

GREEN Open 

June 

2023 

Ty Cwm Ogwr 

Residential 

Home 

Regulation 80 - The responsible individual 

must prepare a report to the service provider 

including and assessment of the standards of 

care and support and recommendations for 

improvement at the service. 

Q1 - A position statement has been completed on all areas of improvement to meet Reg 80  

 

Q2 - A new Group Manager and Responsible Individual position for Direct Care Provider Services has been 

created and the person appointed commenced in post on 14/11/22. 

 

BLUE Closed  

P
age 72



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Report 

Issued 

Name of Audit 

/ Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for 

Improvement 
Action in Q1 & Q2 2022-23 

RAG (at 

end Q2) 

Open / 

Closed 

Priority Action 

Notices 

Regulation 60 - The Service Provider must 

notify CIW of events specified under Part 1 

Schedule 3 

Q2 - Management team submitting Regulation 60 notifications in line with regulatory standards . 
BLUE Closed  

Regulation 12 - The Service Provider must 

ensure appropriate policies and procedures 

are in place and that these are kept up to 

date. 

Q2 – Action plan in progress for Adult Services co-ordinated by Policy Officer for the Social Care Workforce 

Development Team.  

 

AMBER Open  

Regulation 19 - The service Provider must 

ensure the written guide is dated, reviewed 

and updated as needed.  It also needs to 

include information about how to make a 

complaint and availability of advocacy 

support. 

Q2 – The written guide has been reviewed, updated and is available in English and Welsh format. 

BLUE Closed  

June 

2022 

Maple Tree 

House 

Children 

Residential 

Home 

Priority Action 

Notices 

Regulation 69 - The service provider has 

made arrangements for the manager to 

manage a second service without discussing 

or agreeing this with CIW 

The MTH Residential Manager will not be responsible for a second service (Hillsboro) as a Residential 

Manager is being recruited specifically for that home.  BLUE Closed 

Regulation 18 - The service has not ensured 

the provider assessments are routinely 

reviewed and updated. 

All Provider Assessments updated. 

Staff training delivered in respect of Provider Assessments including regulatory requirements. 

3 monthly checks of Provider Assessment to be undertaken by the Responsible Individual. 

BLUE Closed 

Regulation 80 - The responsible individual 

has not put suitable arrangements in place to 

monitor, review and improve the quality of 

care of care provided in the home. 

A new Responsible Individual for Children’s Residential Homes Post has been created and the person 

appointed commenced in post on 14/11/22. 

The new post holder will undertake monthly Quality Assurance Visits to all homes. 

The Quality Assurance Framework across children’s residential care homes to be reviewed and updated. 

GREEN 

Open 

(Framework 

to be 

developed) 

Regulation 8 - The responsible individual has 

not established and maintained suitable 

performance and quality assurance systems, 

completed a review of the quality of care at 

the required intervals and has not consulted 

with individuals as part of the quality-of-care 

arrangements. 

The Quality-of-Care Report has been completed. 

The Quality Assurance Framework across children’s residential care homes to be reviewed and updated. 

BLUE Closed 

Regulation 36 - The service provider has not 

ensured care staff receive adequate training 

to be able to provide care and support for 

children. 

All staff employed at MTH are registered with Social Care Wales or in line with regulatory requirements 

completing the All-Wales Induction Framework or AWIF (to enable them to Register). 

All Casual and Agency staff being used are either registered with Social Care Wales or in line with 

regulatory requirements completing the AWIF. 

A new training matrix was established including a number of mandatory/core training for staff to attend. 

Staff have completed the training, but a large proportion have now left the role. 

This core training will be delivered as part of a two week “induction” for all current and new staff prior to 

MTH being re-opened. 

Core Training has been reviewed and mapped against the Statement of Purpose. 

All staff continue to receive regular supervision despite having been re-deployed across the other children’s 

homes (with MTH in Dormancy). 

GREEN 

Open  

(Training will 

need to be 

delivered to 

the ned staff 

team prior to 

re-opening). 

P
age 73



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Report 

Issued 

Name of Audit 

/ Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for 

Improvement 
Action in Q1 & Q2 2022-23 

RAG (at 

end Q2) 

Open / 

Closed 

A daily/weekly structure has been developed to support consistency for staff and young people including 

opportunity for staff to receive skills training and support from the Behaviour Analyst. 

Regulation 35 - The service provider has not 

conducted a safe or robust recruitment 

process 

The BCBC recruitment process is sufficiently robust. 

Prior to engaging any Agency staff, the Agency is required to provide the individuals profile, copy of 

references and relevant training certificates and the manager will check SCW Registration. 

GREEN 
Open as on-

going 

Regulation 34 - The service has not provided 

a sufficient or suitably qualified team of care 

staff to meet the assessed care and support 

needs of children. 

All staff employed at MTH are registered with Social Care Wales or in line with regulatory requirements 

completing the All-Wales Induction Framework or AWIF (to enable them to Register). 

All remaining staff hold the qualification relevant to their post. 

When MTH re-opens there will need to be regular consideration within Supervision to ensure that staff have 

the necessary knowledge and skills to meet the young people’s needs. 

GREEN 

 

 

Open  

(new staff 

team being 

recruited) 

Regulation 43 - The service provider does not 

ensure the premises and facilities are safe, 

suitable and well maintained. 

All identified work within MTH has now been completed.   

A site visit that includes the new RI, Group Manager and GM Corporate Landlord needs to be undertaken 

to compile a “snagging” list to ensure work completed is of a high standard. 

The construction of the new home to replace MTH continues and is currently within timescale. 

GREEN 

Open as site 

visit not yet 

undertaken 

Regulation 21 - The service provider does not 

ensure care and support is provided to 

promote and maintain the safety and 

wellbeing of children. 

An independent audit was undertaken and gaps on the children’s records were addressed. 

All updated documents were disseminated amongst the staff team. 

Systems to monitor this were reviewed and updated to support on-going oversight. 

Daily structures have been developed to ensure a consistent routine is delivered within MTH when is 

emerges from dormancy.  These will form part of the two week “Induction”. 

Regular unannounced visits were undertaken to monitor staff interaction with young people outside of 

normal office hours. 

GREEN 

Open – will 

be 

addressed 

as part of 

Developmen

t Plan 

Regulation 6 - The service does not have 

clear arrangements for the oversight and 

governance of the service. 

Additional Management Capacity has been established with the implementation of a new Responsible 

Individual role. 

The Post Holder will have direct line management of all Residential Managers and have the capacity to 

provide robust oversight and governance. 

BLUE Closed 

Regulation 7 - The service provider does not 

ensure a service is provided in accordance 

with their statement of Purpose. 

The Statement of Purpose was reviewed and updated in September 2022. 

Completion of all Priority Action Notices alongside Delivery of a Development Plan prior to recommencing 

service delivery at MTH will ensure compliance in this area. 

GREEN Open 

Regulation 26 - The service provider has 

failed to ensure children living in the home 

have been safeguarded from harm. 

All outstanding Safeguarding Matters pertaining to MTH have been actioned as required and there are no 

outstanding issues. 

Safeguarding training has been delivered to staff at MTH.  However, given the turnover of staff this will 

need to be delivered as part of the two week “induction” prior to re-opening. 

GREEN Open 

Regulation 14 - The service has not ensured 

provider assessments are regularly updated 

and reviewed and risks to others suitably 

mitigated. 

All Provider Assessments updated. 

Staff training delivered in respect of Provider Assessments including regulatory requirements. 

3 monthly checks of Provider Assessment to be undertaken by the Responsible Individual. 

BLUE Closed 

Regulation 15 - The service has not created 

personal plans that promote positive 

outcomes, capture all necessary information 

and do not consult with children about their 

views, wishes and feelings. 

The personal plans of Young People were reviewed as part of an independent audit and all gaps 

addressed. 

Training has been undertaken with the staff team and will be re-visited prior to re-opening of MTH. 
GREEN Open 

 

P
age 74



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

KEY: 

Overall performance judgement 

Status Descriptor 

EXCELLENT Very strong, sustained performance and practice 

GOOD Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement 

ADEQUATE and needs 

improvement 

Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects require 

improvement 

UNSATISFACTORY and 

needs urgent 

improvement 

Important weaknesses outweigh strengths 

 

Commitments 

Status Meaning  Descriptor  

BLUE Complete 
Project (or task within a project/plan) is completed and is no 

longer a priority.  

GREEN 

Progressing as planned 

and according to 

designated time, budget 

and desired outcomes. 

Actions completed within timescales, on budget and evidence 

of achieving desired outcomes 

AMBER 
Issues that could delay 

progress 

Task/action looks liable to go over budget 

Task/action agreed deadlines show slippage 

Task/action within 2 weeks of deadline - not started 

Risk or issue score increases (review required) 

RED Significant issues 

Task/action over budget 

Task/action agreed deadline breached 

Risk or issue score increases to critical or catastrophic 
Performance indicators 

Status Definition 

GREEN 
On target  or better AND Performance has improved compared to last year (or 

performance is at maximum and cannot be improved on) 

YELLOW On target  

AMBER Target is within 10%  

RED Target is missed by 10% or more 

Performance Indicators (Trend) Performance Indicator types 

 Performance has improved compared to last year. CP Corporate Plan indicator 

 Performance has maintained (this includes those at maximum)   

 
Performance has declined BUT within 10% of the last year   

 

Performance has declined by 10% or more compared to previous year   

P
age 75



Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

WBO2: Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.1.1  Develop a sustainable operating model 
for social care services, as we 
understand the short-, medium- and 
long-term impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic, ensuring that the Authority is 
able to meet needs for care and support 
through effective assessment, care 
planning, commissioning and service 
development. (SSWB) 

Amber 

Within Adult Social Care work is progressing on the review of 
social work services, the social work arrangements for transition 
services and the Adult Services Operational Group which has a 
focus on D2RA.  
 
Within Children’s Services the implementation plan for the IAA 
Operational model is being finalised and the implementation plan 
for sign of safety is being progressed and a principal officer social 
work transformation has been appointed to lead on this. 

Within Adult Social Care work will progress on the social work 
review.  
The service will also commence with the implementation of the 
D2RA pathways  
 
In quarter 3 the leadership team in Children’s Social Care will be 
finalising the signs of safety implementation goals. In quarter 4 
the commitment statement and workforce pledge will be 
finalised and Signs of safety launched at a whole service event . 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year End 
21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

SSWB37 
CP 
WBO2 

Number of people aged 65+ 
referred to Community Resource 
Team (CRT) 
Higher Preferred 

1,981 1,981 990 1,023 991 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Based on 2021/22 Improved Performance 
Performance: On target, despite the current difficult situation regarding social 
care capacity, this may be due to the high numbers of therapy only referrals. 

 

SSWB38a 
(AD/011a) 
CP, SSWBPM 
WBO2 

Percentage of reablement 
packages completed that reduced 
need for support 
Higher Preferred 

16.81% 33% 33% 7.14% 10% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Maintaining Performance 
Performance: AD/011c is overperforming, therefore, this metric will underperform. 

 

SSWB38b 
(AD/011b) 
CP, SSWBPM 
WBO2 

Percentage of reablement 
packages completed that 
maintained same level of support 
Lower Preferred 

4.68% 11% 11% 4.76% 18% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Maintaining Performance 
Performance: AD/011c is overperforming, therefore, this metric will underperform 

 

SSWB38c 
(AD/011c) 
CP, SSWBPM 
WBO2 

Percentage of reablement 
packages completed that mitigated 
need for support 
Higher Preferred 

70.94% 48% 48% 83.33% 64.40% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Maintaining Performance 
Performance: This target has overachieved due to the high numbers of therapy 
only referrals accepted, as access to social care is difficult. . 

 

SSWB38d 
CP 
WBO2 

Percentage of reablement 
packages completed that increased 
need for support 
Lower Preferred 

7.88% 8% 8% 4.76% 7.6% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Maintaining Performance 
Performance: This is on target due to the service accepting more therapy only 
referrals than is normal due to the difficulty accessing social care. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.1.3  Ensure a sufficiency and 
high standards of all 
social care services. 
(SSWB) 

Amber 

The directorate has strengthened performance management and quality assurance arrangements and has 
action plans to address any ‘hot spots’ in performance and themes arising from quality assurance activity. The 
directorate also has improvement plans to address issues identified in regulatory inspections – the CIW 
children’s services performance evaluation inspection and the regulatory inspections are set out in the tracker 
above.  

Continue to embed new performance 
and quality assurance frameworks and 
progress within set timescales the 
actions in the inspection improvement 
plans. 

 

P
age 76

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1166&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4251&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4252&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4252&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4253&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4253&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4254&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4254&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4289&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1140&read=true


Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.2.1  Continue the safe reduction of care experienced children, and support 
care experienced children to achieve the best possible outcomes by • 
Ensuring care experienced children are supported to live with their 
families and where this is not possible identify alternative permanence 
options at the earliest opportunity • Ensuring care experienced children 
enjoy the same life chances as other children (SSWB) 

Amber 

There is a continued focus on the LAC reduction 
strategy and plans for reduction of CLA through the 
making of alternative orders or discharges of Care 
Orders, particularly for Placed with Parents. 

We will continue to focus on discharges and 
alternative orders but will need to closely 
monitor the overall number due to the wider 
context of significant increases in demand in 
Children’s Social Care and the emerging impact 
on numbers of children becoming care 
experienced.  

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 

Corp 
Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

PM33 
(PAM/029) 
SSWBPM 
WBO2 

The percentage of looked after children 
on 31st March who have had three or 
more placements during the year. 
Lower Preferred 

12.03% 12% 6% 4.77% 3.90% 
 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: No Target 
Performance: Due to increase in this area a Placement Stability Framework is being 
re-introduced to ensure children and young people's lives are not disrupted. 

 

SSWB39 
(CH/039) 
CP, 
SSWBPM 
WBO2 

The number of children and young 
people looked after 
Lower Preferred 374 374 374 377 385 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Improved performance on 21/22 actual outturn 
Performance: There is a focus on the LAC reduction strategy and plans for reduction of 
CLA through the making of alternative orders or discharges of Care Orders, 
particularly for Placed with Parents. 

 

SSWB48a 
CP 
WBO2 

Percentage of care leavers who have 
completed at least 3 consecutive 
months of employment, education or 
training in the 12 months since leaving 
care 
Higher Preferred 

64.52% 65% 65% 55.56% 50% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Maintaining Performance 
Performance: This reflects the number of care leavers that the team are in contact 
with, so the figure may indeed be higher. There is increased support provided via 
SDDF to promote engagement with education, training and employment. PA capacity 
is now being increased which will enable staff to focus and provide additional support. 

 

SSWB48b 
CP 
WBO2 

Percentage of care leavers who have 
completed at least 3 consecutive 
months of employment, education or 
training in the 13-24 months since 
leaving care 
Higher Preferred 

54.55% 55% 55% 63.64% 42.86% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Maintaining Performance 
Performance: This reflects the number of care leavers that the team are in contact 
with, so the figure may indeed be higher. There is increased support provided via 
SDDF to promote engagement with education, training and employment. PA capacity 
is now being increased which will enable staff to focus and provide additional support. 

 

SSWB49 
CP 
WBO2 

Percentage of care leavers who have 
experienced homelessness during the 
year (new wording) 
Lower Preferred 

20.69% 
Establish 
Baseline 

N/A 5.26% 14.29% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Revised Guidance for 2022-23- Establish Baseline 
Performance: This is the figure of young people that are known to us. We are looking 
at accommodation for care leavers currently to improve opportunities. A young person 
often presents as homeless in order to secure accommodation, so this is not 
necessarily indicative of their actual current situation. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.3.1  Improve the quality of care and support provided to individuals at home 
through a multidisciplinary team around people in our Community Cluster 
Networks, ensuring timely and responsive assessments that are people 
centred and meet need. This will also improve our ability to anticipate 
future need and ensure contingency plans are in place. (SSWB) 

Amber 

This modelling is rolled out, focus is on embedding and 
mainstreaming, and developing the anticipatory care 
modelling 

Work with the Health Board and the Cwm 
Tat Morgannwg region on progressing this 
model as part of the Accelerated Cluster 
Development Programme. 

P
age 77

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1103&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4051&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4051&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4255&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4255&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4293&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4294&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4295&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1112&read=true


Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 

Corp 
Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

SSWB43 
CP 
WBO2 

Proportion (%) of 
individuals in managed 
care supported in the 
community 
Higher Preferred 

73.40% 75% 75% 74.56% 75.82% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Improved performance on 2021/22 actual outturn 
Performance: The market for care and support at home remains volatile. It has been impacted by 
the limitations on the community offer, which has created significant pressure for people and their 
carers living at home. The impact of the pandemic on our future commissioning projections will 
have to be considered when projecting all future needs . 

 

SSWB44 
CP 
WBO2 

Proportion (%) of 
individuals in managed 
care supported in a care 
home setting 
Lower Preferred 

26.6% 25% 25% 25.44% 24.18% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Improved performance on 2021/22 actual outturn 
Performance: It is inevitable, lockdown and Covid 19 restrictions have impacted on the flow of 
people into regulated care home settings. More people have stayed home for longer and others 
have been placed in care who would have stayed home for longer at an earlier date had care at 
home been available. The impact of this on our care home bed capacity will need to be carefully 
monitored going forward. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.3.2  Rebuild participation in leisure and cultural 
activities by improving accessibility, removing 
barriers to involvement and supporting 
individual wellbeing and community Covid 
recovery. (SSWB) 

Amber 

There is evidence of a steady rebuilding of usage of leisure and cultural services and also a 
growth in more targeted approaches to support the more vulnerable not only in terms of rebuilding 
communities as part of post covid recovery but also to support cost of living pressures. There will 
be a need to inform council of future pressures as they are identified. Financial pressures 
anticipated due to increased operating costs and cost of living pressures faced by communities 

Service development planning 
to commence for 23-24 and 
related reporting to CCMB and 
advisory boards. Which are 
now established for both 
partnerships. 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 

Corp 
Priority 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

SSWB53 
CP 
WBO2 

Total library issues, including physical 
issues, digital issues and books on 
wheels service to people’s homes 
Higher Preferred 

New 
22.23 

Establish 
Baseline 

N/A 221,361 N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: New Indicator- Establish Baseline 
Performance: There were 99,485 issues in quarter 1 (86382 physical,12,237 digital 
and 866 via mobile) and a further 121,876 in quarter 2 (107,531 physical,13,437 
digital and 908 mobile) This gives a total of 221,361. . 

 

SSWB54 
CP 
WBO2 

Total visits to leisure centres operated 
by Halo Leisure for all purposes 
Higher Preferred 

New 
22.23  

Establish 
Baseline 

N/A 597,600 N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: New Indicator- Establish Baseline 
Performance: Halo venues supported 289,535 visits in quarter 1 (of which 220,152 
were physical activity based) and 308,065 in quarter 2 (of which 219,836 were 
physical activity based.). 

 

 

 

P
age 78

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4259&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4260&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1113&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4316&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4317&read=true


Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Other indicators linked to achieving WBO2 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 

Corp 
Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

CH/052 
Local 
WBO2 

Percentage of care 
leavers who have 
experienced 
Homelessness 
during the year 
Lower Preferred 

8.23% 
Establish 
Baseline 

N/A 5.26% N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Revised Guidance- Establishing Baseline 
Performance: This is the figure of young people that are known to us. We are looking at accommodation 
for care leavers currently to improve opportunities. A young person often presents as homeless in order 
to secure accommodation, so this is not necessarily indicative of their actual current situation. Work is to 
progress with housing as part of the Corporate Parenting Board to consider whether it is necessary for 
care experienced young people to present and be recorded as homeless in order to secure 
accommodation. 

 

PM24 
(PAM/028) 
SSWBPM 
WBO2 

The percentage of 
assessments 
completed for 
children within 
statutory timescales 
Higher Preferred 

67.46% N/A 85% 70.92% 78.82% 
 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: No Target Setting Comments 
Performance: Performance is still not at the levels that we would want them to be. Significant levels of 
investment have been put into providing additional staffing capacity within the IAA service. There 
continues to be a focused improvement action plan in place in relation to IAA that is overseen by the 
Group Manager IAA & Safeguarding. Performance has improved since the quarter 2 report and there will 
continue to be detailed oversight to ensure high standards are in place. 

 

 

WBO3: Smarter use of resources 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.3  Implement the planned budget reductions identified in 
the MTFS, in particular for the 2022-23 financial year, 
set annual balanced budgets and establish long term 
financially sustainable solutions. (SSWB) 

Amber 

The current MTFS requires further remodelling in the learning disability day services in order 
to fully achieve the savings identified. Given the overspend in the learning disability budgets 
an independent review has been commissioned to review the operating model and 
understand the most cost-effective way of delivering daytime support for people in Bridgend. 

Receive and consider 
the recommendations 
from the independent 
review. 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No PI Description Annual target        
22-23 
£’000 

Performance as at Q2 Comments 

Red Amber Green 

£’000 % £’000 % £’000 % 

DWB6.1.1iii 
(SSWB12) 
CP feeder 
WBO3 

Value of planned budget 
reductions achieved (SS & 
Wellbeing) 

£365 £0 0% £115 32% £250 68% 

See comment on ‘Implications of Financial Reductions 
on Service Performance’ 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.4  Adapt our ways of working to make 
better use of our assets and build on 
the technological progress 
accelerated by COVID. (SSWB) 

Green 

Teams in the directorate continue to review their operating arrangements 
to ensure the most effective model of working in the hybrid environment. 
The home care workforce has benefited from a call monitoring system and 
work is progressing to realise the benefits from this investment. 

The benefits from investment in technology will continue 
to be evaluated to improve the efficiency and 
effectiveness of operational delivery. 

 

P
age 79

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4313&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4057&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4057&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1114&read=true
http://diamond/pmf/pi/pi.asp?id=3544&read=true
http://diamond/pmf/pi/pi.asp?id=3544&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1121&read=true


Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Other 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref No, PI 
Type, PAM / 
Local link to 
Corp Priority 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q2 21-22 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction of 
Travel compared 
to same period 

last year 

Comments 
 

CHR002iii 
(SSWB13) 
Local 
Other priority 

Number of working days 
per full time equivalent lost 
due to sickness absence 
(SS & Wellbeing) 
Lower Preferred 20 

days 
No 

Target 
N/A 11.02 days 9.16 days 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Improved Performance on 2021/22 outturn 
Performance: No Performance Comments 
 
Deep dives into areas of high sickness in the directorate will be prioritised. Significant 
wellbeing support is in place and access to physiotherapy or other interventions will 
be considered if it will support early return to work. Proactive stress risk assessments 
are promoted and encouraged for all staff and general and bespoke support is 
available for all staff who are impacted by the harrowing and contested nature of the 
work they do. 

 

CORPB1a 
Local 
Other priority 

Percentage of 
safeguarding e-learning 
(including workbook) 
completions (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

77.08% 100% 100% 
Data 

unavailable 
N/A N/A 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Aspirational target 
Performance: No Performance Comments  

Sickness broken down by Service Area 
 

 QTR2 2021-22 QTR2 2022-23    

Unit 

 FTE 
30.09.2022 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per 
FTE 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per FTE 

Cumulative 
Days per FTE 

2021-22 

Cumulative 
Days per FTE 

2022-23 

Adult Social Care 586.68 3251.54 243 5.61 3490.81 279 5.95 10.37 11.64 

Business Support - SS&W 52.81 77.50 10 1.99 163.50 10 3.10 7.45 4.62 

Children's Social Care 181.62 681.03 57 3.64 1169.73 53 6.44 6.74 12.11 

Prevention and Wellbeing 21.16 2.00 1 0.10 0.00 0 0.00 0.60 0.38 

Social Services and 
Wellbeing Directorate Total 843.27 4012.07 311 4.85 4824.03 342 5.72 9.17 11.02 

 

  

P
age 80

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3981&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3981&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4308&read=true


Appendix D - Social Services & Wellbeing  Performance against Corporate Plan Q2 2022-23 

 

Sickness broken down by absence reason 
 Social Services & Wellbeing Directorate 

Absence Reason 
Q1 Number of 
FTE days lost 

Q2 Number of 
FTE days lost 

Total 
Number of 
FTE  Days 

Lost 

% of 
Cumulative 
days lost 

Cancer 335.25 403.33 738.58 7.91% 

Chest & Respiratory 292.05 133.45 425.50 4.56% 

Coronavirus COVID - 19 220.10 132.11 352.21 3.77% 

Eye/Ear/Throat/Nose/Mouth/Dental 59.52 61.15 120.66 1.29% 

Genitourinary / Gynaecological 141.98 184.06 326.04 3.49% 

Heart / Blood Pressure / Circulation 40.46 100.64 141.10 1.51% 

Infections 210.80 234.52 445.32 4.77% 

MSD including Back & Neck 712.20 706.89 1419.10 15.21% 

Neurological 157.62 93.08 250.70 2.69% 

Other / Medical Certificate 113.21 43.62 156.82 1.68% 

Pregnancy related 51.85 18.59 70.45 0.75% 

Stomach / Liver / Kidney / Digestion 231.76 180.56 412.32 4.42% 

Bereavement Related 251.88 432.71 684.59 7.34% 

Other Mental illness 15.00 109.57 124.57 1.33% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression not work related 1136.30 1146.42 2282.72 24.46% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression work related 538.41 843.32 1381.73 14.81% 

Tests / Treatment / Operation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 

TOTALS 4508.39 4824.03 9332.42   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

87% 87%

13% 13%

21-22 22-23

Sickness Absence at  Q2   
Long Term / Short Term

LTS

STS

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



$b2t3g3re.xlsx

IDENTIFIED RISK 

Date Risk 

score assigned

Last Reviewed

Li Im Total Li Im Total

COR - 

2019 - 01

The council is unable to make robust medium to long 

term decisions requiring service change

It is harder each year to make ongoing budget reductions as easier decisions have already been made.  If 

more difficult decisions about cutting or reducing service levels against a background of declining budgets are 

not made, then the council will not deliver the changes necessary to achieve a balanced budget which will 

result in it being in breach of its legal responsibilities. The true impact of COVID remains unclear in terms of 

the Council's financial sustainability. Careful planning and difficult choices will be key to ensuring that a 

balanced financial position is able to be maintained. Increasing inflationary pressure, most acutely in areas 

such as energy and also likely pay awards, mean that there is inevitably a greater focus on the "here and 

now" and the rapidly worsening cost of living crisis which makes medium term planning more difficult in view 

of the huge uncertainties around future budget and increasing demand for many services.

4 5 20 Treat Jan-19 The council manages this risk through existing budget and business planning processes which 

include early identification of savings targets and development of options for cabinet, challenge 

from BREP, scrutiny and formal and informal briefings of members and political groupings. The 

impact of COVID has been significant in terms of both timetable and the focus on achieving 

savings. Due to the more generous WG settlement for 2021/22 the savings targets were lower 

than usual and so most of those will be met. Work on the  2022/23 budget and beyond is 

underway, but many aspects remain uncertain. We have attempted to mitigate some of the 

pressures by ensuring elected members are briefed on the likely situation, and increased 

communication activity so that the general public are aware of the huge challenges.

Continuously review the assumptions built into the MTFS and update as additional information becomes available. Keep elected 

members and BREP informed of updated position and re-align MTFS as appropriate.

Earlier discussion with members on possible scenarios to get early buy in to the direction of travel. Review scope and direction of 

BREP to ensure they play a key part in shaping the MTFS.  

For MTFS 2022-26, more focus on potential areas of saving, even if not currently proposed, rather than just proposed savings. 

Focus to be more deep dives into targeted areas. 

MTFS to consider longer term pressures and ensure these are fully considered beyond the life of the 4 year MTFS.     It is clear that 

in the short term there will need to be a concerted "One Council" approach to identify and agree the immediate priorities while 

continuing to try to put the right changes and measures in place to develop an effective and sustainable longer term plan for the 

organisation

CMB Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Feb-2023 then ongoing quarterly review 4 5 20 Smarter use of 

resources

COR - 

2019 - 02

The council is unable to deliver transformation 

including projects and agreed financial savings

If the council is unable to change the way that staff work, including new roles, collaborations and the 

acquisition of new skills, it will be unsuccessful in delivering service transformation and capital projects, 

which will lead to it not meeting its commitments within available budgets.  Of particular importance here is 

the actions required to tackle the Climate Emergency, the consequences of which will have a detrimental 

impact on all areas of the Borough.

4 4 16 Treat Jan-19 The council has a number of programmes and strategies in place that either directly support 

specific proposals for service improvement, deliver large scale capital regeneration projects,  

provide wider transformation opportunities and /or financial savings.   Further transformation 

opportunities have been identified that are intended to support a 'One Council' culture and 

support staff and managers through transformation. It also has a well documented 

decarbonisation programme to tackle the Climate Emergency and  submitted  it's Bridgend 2030 

Decarbonisation Strategy and Action Plan to Cabinet and Council for approval.

Further development of a 'One Council' culture and transformational change was progressed in recent years and accelerated as a 

response to the Covid-19 pandemic. A much more corporate approach to service provision and transformation has been driven by 

CMB. Our response to the pandemic has challenged the way that we work across all services, and we will need to quickly adapt 

and learn any lessons from this that can be embedded into 'new normal' and recovery. Transformation projects such as the Future 

Service Delivery Programme, and increased activity in areas such as "Grow Your own" and helping to change the way the Council 

does its business and other strategically important projects such as our Digital Transformation Programme continue to progress. 

Clearly the uncertain future budget position may impact in due course on priorities such as 2030 decarbonisation and where 

significant investment is required, so this will need to continue to be monitored and reviewed regularly. 

CMB Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing 2 4 8 All Well-Being 

Objectives

CEX- 2019-

01

The council is unable to identify and deliver 

infrastructure required in the medium to longer 

term

If the council does not raise sufficient capital to maintain its infrastructure, including roads, street lights, 

buildings and technology then it may deteriorate bringing financial and safety risks which could lead to 

adverse incidents, reports, publicity, fines and ultimately prosecution. Clearly there is an increased risk that 

the Council will no longer be able to make some of the capital investment to the same level that was 

envisaged even as recently as May 2022. In addition, the cost of borrowing has also now risen making it 

more difficult for the Council to afford all of its ambitions around investing in its infrastructure and the level 

of available external funding has fallen since the end of the relevant European programmes, risking further 

deterioration in some key assets. 

4 5 20 Treat Jan-19 The council has a ten year capital programme.  The development of this programme and 

arrangements for its review and updating are well established. However the council has 

identified scope to improve upon this to ensure that these needs are balanced with other 

demands for capital (such as new schools). The capital programme is regularly reviewed and 

updated  but it is already evident that the costs of most projects have risen, sometimes 

significantly, and the availability of contractors has often become more limited reducing 

competition. 

The Council will consider and seek external and match funding for projects where possible, in order to maximise its capital 

programme spending capability. Where feasible the capital earmarked reserve will be replenished on an annual basis to mitigate 

the decline in available and potential new capital receipts. The Council will continue to operate a strategy where capital receipts 

are not ring-fenced, to ensure that maximum flexibility is available.

All capital bids will be fully considered by CMB and CCMB in line with the Capital Strategy, before inclusion in the capital 

programme. Schemes must have been subject to a full feasibility assessment. This should inform more accurate costings and 

profiling of spend to avoid potential overspends or delays in schemes. The procurement process will also be considered and 

qualification criteria updated to try and avoid supplier issues.

CMB Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Complete with ongoing review 4 5 20 Supporting a 

successful 

sustainable 

economy and 

smarter use of 

resources

SS-2019-

01

The council fails to safeguard vulnerable individuals 

e.g. children, adults in need of social care, homeless 

etc.

Risks to the safety and wellbeing of children and adults at risk are significant and require an effective, highly 

skilled response from multi-agency safeguarding partnership with leadership from the local authorities. 

There is a risk that, without adequate budgets and due to the decline of a sufficient experienced workforce, 

the Council's safeguarding arrangements will not be effective, and that children and adults at risk will not be 

kept safe and will experience harm. While the Council continues to prioritise this area of work and works 

effectively with key partners , the demand for services continues to significantly increase. This is particularly 

evident in referrals into MASH/IAA and the level of assessment activity. The Child Protection Register is at 

the highest level in the history of the County Borough indicating the level of concern of partners in respect of 

safeguarding risks to children. CIW have written to the Chief Executive and Director of Social Services and 

Well-being to set out their serious concerns. A high profile Child Practice Review will mean particular focus 

on the effectiveness of multi-agency safeguarding arrangements. This is partly a post Covid legacy but also as 

a result of other local circumstances increasing safeguarding referrals  and compounded by the increased 

demand for housing and ‘ wrap around ‘ services from Ukrainian refugees. While staff teams have been 

strengthened where possible , there is still on over reliance on agency staff in some areas and there is a 

further risk with the worsening financial position that all of the investment required will not be possible on a 

sustainable basis whilst it must be understood that the Council has statutory duties to provide sufficient 

resources to safeguard children and adults as well as to set a balanced budget and could face intervention 

form Welsh Government if it fails in either duty

5 5 25 Treat Jan-19 A number of different actions are being taken to address these concerns. In reaction to staffing 

matters additional staff have been employed to ensure the service is able to meet the increasing 

demand for services,  the Council's Market Supplement Policy has been invoked to support the 

recruitment of staff to the childcare teams, resource has been found to support increased 

numbers of staff accessing the social work training scheme and work has been done to establish 

an overseas recruitment programme. Working practices in the service are being reviewed. There 

is a reporting structure in the service to monitor the work required to address the range of issues 

and this feeds up to a Gold meeting which consists of senior officers and the Leader and Deputy 

Leader of the Council. 

A new Corporate Safeguarding Officer has been appointed and will start in post to enhance the support to corporate safeguarding 

arrangements. The Regional Safeguarding Board is developing common quality and performance reporting via the steering group 

to include clear trigger points of escalated action. A reflective lessons learned exercise has been undertaken into the issues which 

led to the critical incident in IAA services to ensure lessons have been learned and sustainable improvements made to reduce the 

risk of such an escalated position being required again.

CMB Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing 4 5 20 Helping people and 

communities to be 

more healthy and 

resilient and  

smarter use of 

resources

Cyber resilience training continues to be rolled out. The situation is constantly being monitored on an ongoing basis, ICT are 

reviewing options to mitigate potential cyber attacks as the attack landscape is continually changing.                                                                                                                                                                                                               

Jan-19 The council has responded swiftly and appropriately to the increased risk posed by increased reliance on ICT and the network. A 

number of changes - some significant - were made during this period that has helped to mitigate the increased risk. Throughout 

the period the Council has stayed connected and resilient with many services being delivered remotely.  The situation is being 

monitored on an ongoing basis.     Ongoing work on resilience and business continuity will help mitigate the risks but keeping the 

Council services running effectively this winter and beyond becomes more challenging        

Ongoing

COR-2019 

- 04

The council is unable to attract, develop or retain a 

workforce with the necessary skills to meet the 

demands placed upon the authority and its services

If there is a continual decreasing number of suitably skilled and experienced staff then there may not be the 

expertise required to deliver services and protect the interests of the council. This could lead to the wellbeing 

of citizens suffering and a loss of morale amongst the remaining staff if they feel unsupported and are 

seeking to work elsewhere. 

4 4 16 Treat Jan-19 The labour market remains very challenging in many disciplines , including social care. Some 

measures have been implemented to seek to mitigate and treat the risks including use of the new 

market supplement policy, an enhanced grow your own programme for both apprentices and 

graduates and more innovative practise around things like international recruitment . However, 

out of necessity, while clearly undesirable,  the use of agency staff remans high in some areas 

and vacancies impact on the capacity of the organisation to deliver all of its objectives and can 

lead to an impact on wellbeing and increased pressure on  the depleted number of staff in work,  

and some frustration among the public and elected members about the pace of some responses 

and action

There is a need to continue to seek alternative approaches to recruit to service areas, acknowledging that one size does not fit all. 

The benefits of working for the council will be promoted alongside different ways of attracting staff. Consideration will also be 

given to how the council’s agency provider can support this agenda.

Different recruitment, advertising and selection methods are being introduced for recruiting Apprentices, to improve the level and 

quality of applicants and with the aim of developing a pool of Apprentices.

 Action plans are in place and being developed to address challenges in the Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate. 

CMB Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing 4 5 20 All Well-Being 

Objectives

Social Services have quarterly forum meetings with providers where risks, issues and pressures are identified.  There are regular 

contract monitoring visits to monitor performance and quality. This has continued throughout the pandemic.

Ongoing

Directorates to monitor the financial performance and stability of contractors on an ongoing basis.  Dialogue with some major 

suppliers is required and contingency planning has been progressed. This has become increasingly important due to the fragility of 

the market and the economic situation as a result of COVID. Many suppliers are going through difficult times and we will need to 

monitor closely to ensure that critical services do not collapse.

Ongoing

COR - 

2020 - 01

The Council is in breach of the GDPR because 

Directorates do not take ownership of, or properly 

resource, their responsibilities under the Regulation 

(GDPR).

If Directorates do not comply with the GDPR action may be taken by the regulator which could result in fines 

and in a loss of reputation for the council, including with citizens.  Properly complied with, GDPR will increase 

public trust and citizens confidence in how their data is handled by the Council.

4 4 16 Treat Jun-20 Prior to GDPR an implementation group was established with representation from each 

Directorate and each Directorate undertook an audit of the data it holds. The Information 

Governance Board meets quarterly.  A Data Protection Officer has been appointed and the 

council has undertaken a review of its data protection and privacy policies and procedures, 

established an E-Learning model for staff and also provided training to Members.  There is a data 

breach reporting procedure in place. 

Directorates to ensure that staff have access to all the data protection policies and undertake the mandatory e-learning training. 

There is a risk of GDPR not being reflected by staff when performing certain activities leading to non compliance and penalties 

imposed by the ICO. The information Governance Board is continuing to meet. Following the move to remote working, staff have 

been reminded of compliance via Bridgenders messages and another message is due imminently. Training was provided to all 

elected members following the local elections in May 2022

CMB Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing 3 2 6 Smarter use of 

resources

COR-2020-

02

Recovery/restoration of services - the restoration of 

some Council services will require new ways of 

working to be established and implemented to 

ensure Covid safe environments for staff and the 

public .

The return of many individuals and staff groups to the office has been successfully managed and the 

introduction of the new ‘ hybrid working policy ‘ has been broadly supported by Trade Unions in line with the 

preference of most of  their staff members for a more flexible approach to working. Hybrid meetings for 

both public Council meetings and internal officer/member meetings has also been introduced. Clearly new 

ways   of working are yet to be fully embedded and we must be aware of new waves of Covid during the 

winter period. We must also be cognisant of the potential  impact of the Cost of Living crisis on the working 

patterns of individuals. Overall however evidence suggests that with a continued focus on ‘ business first ‘ 

there is no detriment to productivity from new ways of working but there is  increased demand for many 

services and ever increasing expectations  create further challenges around capacity in the organisation as 

we continue to see some of the post Covid impact continue in areas such as homelessness and social care

5 4 20 Treat Sep-20 Full risk assessments at a service level  provide evidence of where interventions are required and 

new ways of working need to be implemented. A risk tool for individual members of staff and 

elected members has been  distributed for self assessment  to determine if special measures are 

required to be implemented to protect those individuals. Revised protocols have been  

developed to advise staff on good practice and business cases are prepared where additional 

investment is required  to meet new operating procedures.  Enhanced communication with staff, 

elected members and the public (including parents and pupils) will be necessary to mitigate some 

concerns and fears and ensure a better understanding of the Council’s position.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

Coronavirus measures are continually updated as and when the advice from Welsh Government 

is received.

Comprehensive service  risk assessment, implement key actions from the service recovery plans completed by Directorates, 

identify and action the lessons learnt from the experiences of service provision during the pandemic and lockdown, identify and 

consider service business cases for additional investment (as well as where there might be some savings from stopping areas of 

service or closing previous provision), ensuring ongoing and comprehensive communication and engagement as necessary.  The 

Council continues to move to a 'recovery' position whereby as well as continuing to deliver some Covid related services and 

respond to some of the Covid legacy issues such as significantly increased demand for social care, early help  and homelessness 

services, there is an expectation from the public that other Council services will have returned to 'normal'.   

CMB Jan-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing recovery as the impact of the pandemic 

eases, subject to future waves. 

4 4 16 Smarter use of 

resources

16

Treat or 

Transfer

The council's strongest defence against this is through its procurement strategy and procurement 

processes.  When tendering for services the council requires contingency arrangements to be in 

place to allow for the eventuality of supplier failure (for example in the case of refuse and 

recycling collection contracts). The council also seeks to shape the market where possible to 

avoid over reliance on single suppliers (for example in social care). Where appropriate contract 

conditions are included to ensure the contractor has the appropriate level of security  required 

for the service they provide. This will differ depending on the nature of the service and the legal 

requirements applicable.  Services are also doing more to work with providers to ensure an early 

dialogue when services are under pressure to work towards an agreed outcome 

Treat The council has anti virus installed which is regularly updated.  All critical data is backed up and 

located offsite.  Software update processes exist that includes the installation of patches. 

Security awareness training is provided to all employees.                                                                                                                                                   

The council has established emergency planning arrangements including a Major Incident Plan 

and contributes to the South Wales Local Resilience Forum (SWLRF) and South Wales Resilience 

Team  (SWRT).  Contract conditions are included in relevant contracts. The terms of these 

conditions will vary depending on the nature of the contract, but will cover compliance with 

GDPR, security of personal information and general cyber security. Where contracts are awarded 

via a framework the necessary conditions will be imposed by the contracting agency for the 

framework. This has been an increased risk throughout the COVID period with significantly 

increased risk of attack and many more sophisticated attempts to disrupt the Council's network.

Jan-1916COR-2019-

05

Important council services are compromised due to 

the failure of a key supplier 

If the suppliers of council services are not resilient there is a risk that they may fail to deliver those services 

leading to disruption for citizens and the council, which will be impacted as it seeks to restore provision and 

suffers a loss of reputation. There is increasing evidence that this risk is becoming more apparent and 

prevalent. In particular in areas such as Home to School Transport, but also in residential care and 

construction there are increasing numbers of cases of market failure, companies falling into administration 

and increased costs being demanded to provide services or contracts will be handed back, which are difficult 

to mitigate as often there are very limited options to provide services, some of which are statutory. 

4 4

COR - 

2019-03

The council is unable to plan for and recover from 

major threats to service continuity such as civil 

emergencies, school failure, cyber attack and 

discontinuation of funding streams and major 

contracts

If the council does not have the capacity and expertise to plan for and protect itself against major threats 

such as cyber-attack, civil emergencies and significant financial variations there is a risk that there may be a 

failure to deliver services and a balanced financial position which could harm citizens  who rely on council 

services. An increased risk to energy security and financial sustainability has increased this risk. 

4 4

ACTION PLAN

No. There is a risk that Consequences of risk Raw risk score Control 

method

How is the council addressing this risk Key actions to be established - NB business as usual activity not reflected here who Next 

Review

Action completed by Residual risk 

score

Well-Being 

Objective

Oct-2022

16 All Well-Being 

Objectives

CMB Jan-2023 44Oct-2022

Helping people and 

communities to be 

more healthy and 

resilient and  

smarter use of 

resources

16Jan-2023 4 4CMB

P
age 83



$b2t3g3re.xlsx

IDENTIFIED RISK 

Date Risk 

score assigned

Last Reviewed

Li Im Total Li Im Total

ACTION PLAN

No. There is a risk that Consequences of risk Raw risk score Control 

method

How is the council addressing this risk Key actions to be established - NB business as usual activity not reflected here who Next 

Review

Action completed by Residual risk 

score

Well-Being 

Objective

COR-2020-

03

Public Health/Protecting the Public - the Council will 

need to take an enhanced public health leadership 

role for a sustained period of time and that this will 

need to be prioritised and resourced at the expense 

of other services that are normally provided, and 

that without proper and comprehensive planning to 

carry out the additional functions of test, trace and 

protect, a potential mass vaccination programme 

and continued and ongoing protection of the 

vulnerable (including mental health services) and 

previously shielded individuals to ensure they have 

the services and support they require, as well as an 

advisory and enforcement role to ensure compliance 

with Covid regulations,  Covid 19 virus infections  

will potentially  rise locally  with a significant overall 

impact on public health and consequential impact on 

the local economy.

The roll out of  the vaccination programme and the feeling that  any Covid outbreak  is likely to be more 

manageable has reduced this direct risk to the Council. The Health Board have moved the vaccination centre 

away from Council premises and the likelihood of large numbers of Council staff being tied up assisting in 

programmes such as track and trace and covid rules  enforcement  has reduced considerably. However , the 

risk will need to be continue to be monitored and assessed in the event of further outbreaks 

3 5 15 Treat Sep-20 Planning effectively with our partners a joint Cwm Taf Morgannwg TTP team has been 

established across the Bridgend, RCT and Merthyr area. There is enhanced wellbeing support 

available for staff.  

SRS continue to advise businesses to promote good Covid practices and ensure relevant risk assessments are in place. CMB Jan-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing recovery as the impact of the pandemic 

eases, subject to future waves. 

2 4 8 Smarter use of 

resources

COM - 

2020 - 01

Invigorating the economy and economic recovery - 

there will be a prolonged and deep economic 

recession following the Covid pandemic and the 

uncertainties of the impact of the UKs withdrawal 

from the European Union, compounded by local 

issues such as the  closure of the Ford engine plant.

The rapidly increasing cost of living crisis and political and market / financial uncertainty  is impacting both 

individuals and local businesses. There has been increased demand for financial support , such as COL 

payments and Council Tax reduction and a corresponding increase for other relevant Council advice and 

support services . May local businesses are particularly impacted by the huge inflationary increases 

particularly in energy costs meaning it is inevitable that it will be a difficult winter ahead  

5 3 15 Treat Sep-20 By seeking to support local businesses and individuals by signposting them to appropriate 

financial support, skills training and support services, and progressing schemes to develop 

opportunities to set up and establish new business.   The Council continues to act on behalf of 

Welsh Government through the administration of small business rates relief  and the Cost of 

Living grants. Through its own Cost of Living Scheme the Council has been able to widen its 

support to individuals and families                                                                                                                                                                        

Support the aims set out by local economic recovery taskforce and identify and implement the recommended actions through the 

development of a new Economic Strategy . Liaise closely with colleagues in the Cardiff Capital Region and Welsh Government to 

identify and target opportunities for investment to add to investment provided by BCBC to stimulate and invigorate the economy. 

Seek to signpost opportunities for training, support and new jobs by targeting the work of the Council’s Employability teams. 

 Administer and target financial grant schemes and provide support to local businesses to adapt to new circumstances . Progress 

existing economic development  schemes to provide more opportunities for business ‘start up' by developing enterprise hubs 

throughout the County Borough.  Agreeing direct intervention initiatives  where the Council controls the cost of some relevant 

services, for example free car parking /car parking offers in town centres, rental holidays/reductions for businesses where the 

Council is the landlord. Develop proposals for the UK Government's Levelling Up Fund as well as other external funding sources as 

considered appropriate. Including the recently announced Shared Prosperity Fund which can be used to fund Employability/ skills 

based initiatives and replaces the previous European Funding Mechanisms.

CMB / 

Economic 

Recovery 

Panel

Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing 5 4 20 Supporting a 

successful 

sustainable 

economy 

SS-2021-

01 

The WCCIS (Welsh Community Care Information 

System) Social care system (national system) will fail 

to operate. This is an ICT system which holds all 

BCBC social care records and is supported by an 

external contractor.

As all of Bridgend social care records and services are held on this system, when it fails social work 

practitioners are unable to check records of individuals known to the service, this could cause safeguarding 

issues as understanding previous referrals and interactions and undertaking lateral checks are critical to 

safeguarding decision making. On one occasion when the system failed for 2 days, the  Authority was not 

able to provide advice to other agencies on a Safeguarding issue in  a time crucial way - causing a high risk to 

children and adults at risk. System down time potentially leaves the authority people vulnerable in its 

safeguarding role. Practitioners would also be unable to update care and service plans and there is therefore 

a risk to front line care services. Processing of documentation which commence services to vulnerable 

citizens could cause potential delays to care packages. In addition, services being unable to share social care 

records to service providers, and partners. The foster care payments system is operated from this system so 

internal foster carers will not be paid this could potentially result in us loosing foster carers if the payments 

fail regularly. There is also a risk to the ability to in a timely way provide reports and management 

information for key social care services to WG. The performance of the system is causing extreme frustration 

for practitioners and presents a risk to retention and recruitment as workers may chose to leave and work in 

LAs with other systems which perform better. This risk will affect the reputation of the Council as well as 

affecting partnership working as the NHS and other partners (police and probation working in the MASH) will 

not deploy a system which performs so poorly. This presents further safeguarding risks in respect of poor 

information sharing. There are also risks to non compliance and the overarching risk is failure to maintain 

effective and safe services to vulnerable residents of Bridgend. Undertaking contract enforcement action is 

itself a high risk strategy as a new system would need to be procured. Implementation of a new system 

would move  away from a single integrated system for Wales, would present risks in terms of transfer of 

records and would incur significant additional costs

5 3 15 Treat Jun-21 A WCCIS user group is being established in BCBC to address the issues being faced by 

practitioners. A review of how the system is supported in the Council is being progressed. BCBC is 

working with regional partners to consider the options for CTM for an integrated system and the 

Head of Partnerships is part of the national leadership group which has commissioned a review 

of the system.

There is an improvement in the current functionality and operation of the WCCIS system which resulted in the interventions put in 

place by Advanced in June/July, this was in turn the result of national involvement by Corporate Directors of Social Services 

expressing grave concerns about the significant issues at that time with the operation of the system day to day. The plan to 

upgrade the system remains on track at the moment - with Advanced, the National Programme Team and local authorities 

working together to deliver actions which include

final testing

bug fixes

defect resolution

functionality testing

online e learning for end users on the new system 

and support to ensure operational readiness for the planned downtime of the system when the transfer onto the new CRM 

Platform takes place

 Work is now being taken forward by the Director of Social Care and Wellbeing and the Chief Officer Finance to ensure improved 

reporting capability from the system. This includes learning from other local authorities who make better use of the system to 

improve practice and performance. 

CMB Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing - Residual Risk to be reviewed 3 5 15 All Well-Being 

Objectives

COR- 

2022 - 01

The hangover effects of the pandemic, coupled with 

heightened geo-political tensions emerging from 

invasion of Ukraine, is impacting global economy, 

financial systems, supply chains  and energy security

The continuing impact of Brexit and the war in the Ukraine are resulting in                                               

•increased supply issues in relation to workforce for contractors and materials for major projects    Increased 

inflationary pressures impacting costs of pricing and materials in construction sector, delaying or disrupting 

capital projects

•Increased pricing of commodities –gas, oil and silicon chips could have a direct impact on certain projects, 

costs and performance of key sectors 

•Increased risks around energy supply and capability, to potentially impact delivery of the Energy Strategy 

4 5 20 Treat Apr-22 •Ongoing economic analysis 

•Agreed energy strategy 

•Heat network project 

The impact on the Council will be continually monitored as the position becomes clearer. To achieve this, we will work closely with 

suppliers either via existing forums or through the contract management process. Work is being undertaken regionally to develop 

frameworks which will achieve economies of scale. As new services are tendered, potential inflationary costs and timeline 

pressures are being factored into the procurement process at an early  stage. The impact on service delivery and the budget will be 

determined as part of this process and will be reported to Cabinet and Council as part of the normal reporting processes. 

CMB Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing 4 5 20 All Wellbeing 

Objectives

COR-2022-

02

Post-election changes could have an impact on future 

programme continuity

•Potential for changes to be brought via local government elections, which could impact  new cabinet 

members and priorities 

•Potential for discontinuity and de stabilisation,  with 31 new members elected  

•Potential for new priorities and changed political and organisational focus 

•Risk that new initiatives do not have  funding in the agreed budget for 2022/23

•Potential for unrealistic expectations on pace and amount of change achievable based on affordability, 

deliverability and legislative guidance 

4 5 20 treat Apr-22 The Corporate Plan is in place and approved. 31 new members have been  elected since May 

2022, but member induction sessions have been well attended and elected member briefings 

have been numerous . The immediate risk identified has therefore diminished but it will be 

necessary to continue to monitor and assess other risks around  differing priorities and manage 

expectations in view of the huge immediate challenges the Council faces , particularly around its 

future budget and its ability to continue to deliver effective services to its residents’ 

A comprehensive induction programme is in place for all elected members post the election providing details of how the Council 

operates and is governed, together with details of all services either provided or commissioned by the Council to ensure 

Councillors are fully briefed.

CMB Oct-2022 Jan-2023 Ongoing 4 3 12 All Wellbeing 

Objectives

P
age 84



$b2t3g3re.xlsx

IDENTIFIED RISK 

Date Risk 

score assigned

Last Reviewed

Li Im Total Li Im Total

ACTION PLAN

No. There is a risk that Consequences of risk Raw risk score Control 

method

How is the council addressing this risk Key actions to be established - NB business as usual activity not reflected here who Next 

Review

Action completed by Residual risk 

score

Well-Being 

Objective

Control Method Definition 

Definition 

Treat

Transfer 

Risk Scores 

1-9 - Green - Low

10-12 - Amber - Medium

15-25  - Red - High

Risk ID number follows the sequence  Directorate - 

year identified - risk number

Directorate codes mentioned above are:
SS - Social Service

COR - Corporate

COM - Communities

CEX - Chief Executives

To continue with the activity, but at the same time take action to bring the risk to an acceptable level.

Transferring the responsibility of the risk to outside the Council.

Meaning P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

REPORT TO CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

15 DECEMBER 2022 

 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE  

 

COST OF LIVING PAYMENT SCHEME ROLLOUT  

 

1. Purpose of report  

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of the processes undertaken, 

and lessons learned from implementing the Welsh Government (WG) funded Cost of 

Living and Discretionary Cost of Living Schemes. 

 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 

 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objectives 

under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

• Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 

county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 

and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 

qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

• Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 

steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 

the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 

resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 

independent lives. 

 

• Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 

ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 

possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 

can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 

3.        Background 

 

3.1 On 15th February 2022, the Welsh Government announced a package of measures 

to help people with support towards the increased cost of living. This included a £150 

Cost-of Living payment which would be provided to those living in council tax bands 

A-D, and all households who were recipients of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

in council tax bands A-I. WG also announced that a discretionary support scheme 

would be available to be used by each local authority to support other households 

Page 87

Agenda Item 5



 
 

who were outside the criteria for the main scheme which the Local Authority 

considers to be in need of assistance with their living costs.   

 

3.2 Following the announcement, a number of meetings were held at an all-Wales level 

to discuss the roll-out of this scheme and the related criteria. A number of teams 

within the Council would be involved in the roll-out, including the Taxation, Revenue 

Systems and Purchase Ledger teams. A detailed timeline of events can be found in 

Appendix A. 

 

3.3 Information about the announcement from Welsh Government regarding the Cost-

of-Living scheme was uploaded onto the Bridgend County Borough Council website.  

 

3.4 It was agreed that the software solution being developed by NEC Software Solutions 

UK Ltd, (NEC), the provider of the Council’s Revenues and Benefits system, would 

be the best option to progress with, as it would not be possible to identify all eligible 

households without it.  

 

3.5 NEC did not release the software required until mid-March 2022, towards financial 

year end, at which point the small teams involved were heavily involved in the usual 

annual processes such as annual subsidy and annual rollover. 

 

3.6 At this point, communication from NEC confirmed there were still many issues 

outstanding with the software solution as a whole which were not unique to Bridgend, 

so testing was delayed until it was understood that the issues had been resolved. 

The Easter bank holiday and Easter leave also impacted on time available to 

progress this. 

 

3.7 At the end of April testing commenced.  Through this testing, it quickly transpired that 

there were still major issues with the software solution, and progression to actual 

payment was unattainable at that point. This position was confirmed following 

communications with other Local Authorities using the NEC system.  

 

3.8 System upgrades and hotfixes continued into mid-May, before the first payments 

could be processed from 17th May 2022. 

3.9 The first payments issued were in respect of eligible individuals that paid their Council 

Tax via Direct Debit. The software solution allowed us to retrieve the bank details 

from the system to then make the payment. The teams worked well together 

processing 20,742 payments (with a value of £3,111,300) by the end of May 2022. 

This number of payments was unprecedented in the Council. 

 

3.10 Where the council did not hold bank details on the system, a campaign had to be 

created to invite the individuals to provide the Council with their bank details via 

Citizen Access. 16,715 letters and emails were sent between 27th June 2022 and 1st 

July 2022, and 12,207 (£1,831,050) of these payments were processed in July 2022. 

 

Page 88



 
 

3.11  Remaining households had a time limit of 30 days to submit their bank details. 

Reminder letters and emails were sent on 18th August 2022 with a further extension 

to the 30 day expiry period provided on 22nd September 2022 prior to the scheme 

closing date of 30th September 2022. As of 30th September 2022, 46,835 payments 

had been processed.  

 

3.12    In September 2022 WG agreed that any household that had been identified as eligible 

but had not provided bank details could have the £150 credited to their council tax 

account. This process had to be tested through the taxation system, and in October 

2022 £342,750 was credited to 2,285 council tax accounts. Letters were sent to each 

household notifying them that the payment had been credited to their council tax 

account, advising that the money could be refunded via the online refund form if they 

preferred. Alternatively, the payment would reduce their future instalments. To date 

only 333 households have requested a refund. 

 

3.13   Bridgend may not have been the first authority to make payments for the Cost-of-

Living scheme, however, we were in line with most authorities, and once processes 

were established and systems issues resolved, significant numbers of payments 

were made within a short period of time which showed in our above average 

allocation. At the end of the main scheme Bridgend has paid 49,120 households, 

totaling £7,368,000, which constituted 98.05% of the Council’s allocation from Welsh 

Government. The average across Wales was 96.25%. 

 

3.14    In October 2022 the teams started to process the Discretionary Cost of Living scheme 

which, due to the cancellation of the September Cabinet meetings, was approved by 

Delegated Power. The Scheme included payments of £60 to households in council 

tax bands E to F, along with £50 vouchers for each pupil entitled to free school meals. 

These vouchers were all processed as soon as the Scheme had been approved.  

By 14th October 2022, 9,889 payments were processed for council tax-payers and 

paid to bank accounts for those that pay their council tax account via Direct Debit. 

3.15   Due to limitations of the Software Solution, the original £150 Cost of Living scheme   

had to be ended on the system before the Council could progress with sending 

campaign letters for the £60 Discretionary Cost of Living scheme. 

 

3.16 984 letters were sent on 11th November 2022, of which 431 applications have been 

received and paid as at 24th November 2022. Due to systems limitations, it is not 

possible to run 2 campaigns at the same time for different schemes, therefore the 

campaign for the £60 payments for the Band E and F properties must be completed 

before the campaign for the exempt council tax classes within the Discretionary 

Scheme can be produced. The Discretionary Scheme will close on 31st March 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



 
 

4. Current situation/proposal 

 

4.1 There were a number of constraints and barriers, which impacted on the smooth 

running of the schemes, particularly at the start due to the new and unprecedented 

nature of the scheme, and these are set out below. 

 

4.2       Project Team 

 

It soon became very evident that staff resources available to carry out a large project 

were not sufficient whilst trying to attain high standards of business-as-usual tasks, 

particularly at such a busy time in the financial year for the small teams. Temporary 

resource was secured for the Purchase Ledger team to support the team to fulfil the 

extra payments, however, the Taxation section was not able to recruit additional staff 

and were running with a number of vacancies. Therefore, if a project on such a 

magnitude was to occur in the future, it would be beneficial to have a dedicated 

Project Team, where all time and efforts could be dedicated to the specific project. 

Welsh Government provided funding to help administer the scheme which was to be 

used to cover new software costs and additional staff resources.  However, the 

taxation section were unable to recruit which put additional pressure on existing staff. 

Appointment of a project team would only be feasible if staff could be recruited to it 

and sufficient funding was provided to meet the cost..  

4.3       NEC Software Solution and Process 

 

Due to the stringent eligibility requirements of the scheme, there was not time or 

resources to investigate other solutions (external or internal). Unfortunately, our 

software supplier took time to reply to queries, which slowed the testing process 

down. The software solution itself was also limited and not without flaws, which 

resulted in a cumbersome process. Going forward, if there are any similar projects 

we would investigate other options and solutions where possible. 

4.4       Bank Validation and BACS Rejects 

 

Learning from the 2021 Winter Fuel Scheme, which the Council also implemented 

for WG, it was evident how bank validation was imperative when making payments 

en masse, as rectifying BACS rejects is a very time-consuming process for the teams 

involved. Therefore, it was ensured that a bank validation process was put in place 

in order to reduce the volume of BACS rejects. 

 

However, the software solution provided by The Cabinet Office Grant Management 

Function called Spotlight, which was provided to verify the bank details supplied by 

council tax payer, has its own limitations and is time consuming to process and 

analyse the output.  BACS rejects were still an issue, although proportionately not 

higher than expected, but still caused delays for payments to be made due to the 

sheer volume.  

Page 90



 
 

4.5      Building Society Numbers 

 

The software solution provided to capture bank details did not consider Building 

Society Numbers where a Roll Number is needed for the payment to be allocated 

correctly to the recipient’s account. This caused many BACS rejects and a lot of time 

was spent trying to identify where returned payments belonged.  

 

When this was identified as an issue, communications were updated on the Council’s 

webpages to request the additional information, however this was reliant on the 

public seeing the communication and acting on the advice available. Unfortunately, 

we were not able to update the Software Solution to capture this information. 

4.6      Software Solution Limitations 

 

As payments were made it transpired that the reporting system provided by NEC had 

not selected all the eligible accounts due to the timing of the reports being run and 

the fact accounts were continually being updated as business as usual continued. 

As a result it was identified that accounts were missing so individuals had not 

automatically been paid if they were Direct Debit payers or had not been invited to 

provide bank details. A manual process was then conducted whereby each property 

in the relevant Band was checked for eligibility to make sure all relevant accounts 

were captured. This was an extremely time-consuming process and delayed the 

process as a whole. In future it could be considered to carry out such a task on a risk 

basis, as the number of missing accounts identified in the checking exercise were 

low compared to the high volume paid initially and correctly. 

 

Early in the process it was also identified that when Remittance Advices were sent 

for the £150 payment, the remittance was addressed to the name on the bank 

account, instead of the council tax liable party name, where we had not received 

information to change it, and this caused a handful of queries from the public as 

letters were addressed to incorrect individuals. When the issue was flagged, the 

system was changed to rectify this as promptly as possible. 

4.7       Public Queries 

 

Regarding the original scheme, the volume of public queries and member referrals 

slowed the team down from processing the payments. Although information was 

available on the BCBC website, for a similar scheme in future more regular 

communication to the public on as many channels as possible, advocating progress, 

may alleviate the volume of queries.   

4.8      Correspondence  

 

There were some delays in the issuing of the reminder letters as the wording of the 

letters took time to finalise before the letters could be sent. In future, it is imperative 

Page 91



 
 

that each stage of the process has an agreed owner agreed at the beginning of the 

project, to avoid unnecessary delays. 

4.9       Discretionary Cost of Living £60 Payments 

 

Customer services received numerous calls regarding the £60 payments made to 

the Direct Debit payers in October 2022. It is believed that as the discretionary 

scheme was not as well publicised as the original Cost of Living scheme, the public 

were confused regarding receiving the £60 payment into their bank accounts. When 

the message on the Council’s telephony system was updated to advise what the £60 

payment was for the calls subsided. 

 

Remittances were sent, however due to limitations of the finance system, little detail 

could be added to them explaining what the payment was for. The remittances are 

designed to go to suppliers and are not intended to be sent to individuals. 

 

The Purchase Ledger team are currently working on amending the Remittance 

Advice making it clearer for the recipient. Also, for future large schemes the Purchase 

Ledger team will investigate processing the payments in a different way and allowing 

letters to be customised for the scheme.  

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 

 

5.1 There is no effect on the policy framework or procedure rules. 

 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  

          

6.1     The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty, and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 

preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 

impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 

strategies, services, and functions. This is an information report, therefore, it is not 

necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality 

impacts as a result of this report.  

 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 

 

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 

the achievement of wellbeing goals/objectives as a result of this report 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



 
 

8. Financial implications 

 

8.1 There are no direct financial implications to the Council from this scheme as the full 

value of the Cost-of-Living payments will be reimbursed by the Welsh Government, 

along with an administration grant to cover expenses. 

 

9. Recommendation 

 

9.1 It is recommended that the Committee notes this report.  

 

Carys Lord 

Chief Officer – Finance Performance & Change 

24 November 2022 

 

 

Contact officer:  Sam Coombs 

 Accounting System Manager 

 

Telephone:   (01656) 642859 

 

Email:   Sam.Coombs@bridgend.gov.uk 

 

Postal address:  Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB  

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Helen Rodgers 

 Revenues Manager 

 

Telephone:   (01656) 643194 

 

Email:   Helen.Rodgers@bridgend.gov.uk 

 

Postal address:  Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB  

 

 

 

Background documents: None 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 93



 
 

Appendix A 

Detailed Timeline of events: 

 

15 Feb 2022 Welsh Government announced that a £150 Cost-of Living payment would be 

provided to those living in council tax bands A-D and all households who were recipients of 

the Council Tax Reduction Scheme in properties in council tax bands A-I . Also, a 

discretionary support scheme would be available for other purposes related to living costs 

to households it considers to be in need of assistance with their living costs.  

 

At this point conversations between key teams such as Taxation, Purchase Ledger Team 

and Revenues began. 

 

03 March 2022 NEC the software provider for our Revenues and Benefits system provided 

a quote for their software solution that would:  

• Identify the households entitled to the payment as at, 15 February 2022.  

• Where Direct Debit bank details were held, to create a payment file to be passed onto 

Purchase Ledger for processing for those entitled. 

• Where bank details were not held on the system (cash payers), to create a campaign 

where correspondence is sent to individuals inviting them to provide their bank details 

so payment could be made. 

It was decided that choosing this solution was the most sensible option, as it would have 

been very difficult to identify residents living in bands A-D as at the 15 February 2022, due 

to reporting limitations of the Revenues and Benefits system. 

 

14 March 2022 NEC confirmed that they released the software solution. 

 

17 March 2022 Conversation with consultant in NEC, confirmed they were still developing 

elements of the solution. 

 

23 March 2022 Official guidance from Welsh Government was released which clarified that 

the £150 payment had to be paid to the household and by no other means, for example 

reducing their council tax bill by the same amount. 

 

25 March 2022 – NEC communicated that, customers were still finding bugs, and fixes 

needed to be uploaded. 

At this point it was decided to take a prudent approach and not commit too much time to 

testing knowing it was a moving target. 

 

05 April 2022 Communication received from NEC informing us that known issues still exist. 

 

08 April 2022 NEC release hotfixes for the known issues in the software to be uploaded. 

 

11 April 2022 NEC release further hotfixes for the known issues in the software to be 

uploaded. 

 

Page 94



 
 

Mid-April Due to Easter, days were lost due to the bank holidays and annual leave 

throughout the teams. 

 

25 April 2022 Communication from other Local Authorities (Carmarthenshire, 

Pembrokeshire, Merthyr) using the same system confirmed there were still issues 

outstanding with the software, and that they also had not issued any payments. 

 

From this point thorough testing was carried out and internal processes agreed. 

 

10 May 2022 The system was upgraded to the latest release with the intention to  resolve 

the known issues. 

 

12 May 2022 Correspondence with NEC to resolve a bug found relating to Direct Debit 

information. 

 

17 May 2022 It was identified that the name on the remittance advice was the name on the 

bank account held on the system, not the council tax liable party name. 

 

20 May 2022 Hotfix was uploaded into the system to resolve the Direct Debit information 

issue. 

 

31 May 2022 The process was established by the teams and 20,742 payments (£3,111,300) 

were processed. 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



 
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO SCRUTINY  

 
15 DECEMBER 2022 

 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES 

 
RE-DEVELOPMENT OF MAESTEG TOWN HALL 

 

1 Purpose of report 

 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide Scrutiny with an overview of the progress of 
the Maesteg Town Hall project to date.  
 

1.2 It is important to note that this is a live construction works contract and will remain 
in operation until summer 2023 based on the current programme. As such, it is will 
not be appropriate to provide information deemed as commercially confidential at 
this point in time. However, on completion of the project and works contract a 
comprehensive review process will take place and if requested this could be added 
to the Scrutiny Forward Plan later in 2023.   

 

2 Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:- 
 

• Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study and 
visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications 
and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  
 

• Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient – taking 
steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the 
Council and its services. Supporting individuals and communities to build resilience, 
and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and independent lives. 

 

• Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that can 
help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 
 

3 Background 

 

Page 97

Agenda Item 6



3.1 Maesteg Town Hall is a 141-year-old Grade II listed building located within a 
conservation area. It occupies a prominent position in Maesteg Town Centre and is 
a well-loved focal point for arts and community activity in the Llynfi valley. The venue 
is renowned for hosting a programme of professional and amateur performances 
and has provided rehearsal and meeting space for many local groups and 
organisations.  
 

3.2 Bridgend County Borough Council (the Authority), in partnership with Awen Cultural 
Trust, are transforming  the Town Hall into a cultural community venue to support 
the social and economic regeneration of the town and wider valley communities. Its 
repair, restoration and extension will ensure that the historic Town Hall is 
safeguarded and remains accessible to all for future generations for many years to 
come. 
 

3.3 In 2019 grant applications were made to the Welsh European Funding Office 
(WEFO), National Lottery Heritage Fund (NLHF) and Welsh Government alongside 
other partners to support the project.  As part of this process the project underwent 
vigorous assessments in order to secure funding, and continues to be monitored 
quarterly, audited and tested in line with funders requirements.  
 

3.4 There is a robust governance structure in the form of a Programme Board, to ensure 
that the project operates compliantly and adheres to both BCBC procedures, as 
well as the associated grant conditions in regards WEFO, Welsh Government and 
NHLF. This is chaired by the Corporate Director for Communities and includes 
representatives from BCBC’s Regeneration, Legal, Finance, Procurement, Property 
and Prevention and Wellbeing teams as well as Awen Cultural Trust’s, Chief 
Executive, Head of Infrastructure and Innovation and the Maesteg Town Hall 
Manager. This is shown in Figure 1 below. There is also a professional services 
contract in place for Contract Management with MACE Ltd.  There are regular 
project & site meetings.  These meetings, communications are fed directly into the 
Programme Board.  
 
Fig 1. Maesteg Town Hall Governance Structure 

 
 
 

Page 98



3.5 The funding package is secured, is monitored via the Programme Board and BCBC 
finance officers and reported to Council as part of the Authority’s capital programme 
monitoring and reporting process. Since the beginning of the project, increased 
grant contributions have been applied for to cover an increased scope in the project. 
This includes both additional works directed by BCBC and unforeseens. To date all 
known additional construction work compensation events (unforseens) fall within 
the capital financial envelope for the Town Hall re-development and been as 
detailed within the Council’s approved Capital Programme.  
 

3.6 Following a review of procurement options, the most suitable procurement route for 
the project was a two stage Design and Build NEC Engineering and Construction 
contract. This procurement route was agreed by Programme Board and is in line 
with both BCBC CPR’s and funder requirements.  
 

3.7 The procurement process was undertaken via a Further Competition permissible 
under the South East and Mid Wales collaboration construction framework for 
schools and other public buildings (SEWSCAP2) framework agreement. BCBC 
conducted the procurement exercise through the Value Wales E-Tendering portal. 
The procurement allowed for the delivery of goods, services and works associated 
with the project from RIBA stage 4B 
The contract was signed in March 2020, with Knox and Wells Ltd and will remain 
live until the construction works complete. 
 
 

3.8 The works started on site in March 2020, just 2 weeks before the national lockdown 
due to the Covid-19 pandemic and whilst works were able to continue to some 
degree during this period, significant delays were unavoidable due to a number of 
factors, including a reduced workforce because of pandemic working restrictions 
and staff self-isolation requirements; difficulty in securing materials and sub-
contractors as a result of pandemic closures and restrictions and changes in the 
economic climate; None of these could have been foreseen at the outset.   
 

3.9 Since commencement of the construction works contract and due to the very nature 
of the magnificent Grade II, 141 year old building, additions to the construction 
contract have been unavoidable. However, it should be noted that pre-construction 
an array of surveys were carried out at the building to inform the costing, design 
feasibility and risk of the project. Surveys were completed sympathetically given the 
buildings Listed status and occupied use. Please see the survey data in Table 1. 
Also, a robust contingency and risk element sum was added to the project because 
of its age and listed status, recognising that heritage buildings can be challenging 
to renovate. 
 

3.10 At this stage of the construction programme, we have completed all works below 
ground and the majority of the ‘high risk’ areas of works have been completed. 
There remains an issue of dry rot which is still being realised; however, beyond this 
the likelihood of further high cost unforeseen elements being discovered is minimal. 
As such there is confidence currently that the project can complete within the 
secured financial envelope of the project. 
 

Table 1: Survey Tracker  

Page 99



 

Survey Title Date of Survey Company 

Sub-contracted Via Mace Ltd 

Ground Investigation  September 2017 Arup 

Topography November 2017 3Dsurveyscan 

Ecology December 2017 CRC Ecology 

Ecology August 2019 Just Mammals 

Flood Risk December 2017 Arup 

Structural December 2017 Lucideon 

Utilities Various Various 

Window Survey March 2018 Purcell 

Building Condition November 2017 Mace 

Scoping Survey October 2018 MSP Civil and Structural Engineering 

Consultants  

Main Beam Sept 18 MSP Civil and Structural Engineering 

Consultants 

R&D Nov 18 Oracle Solutions  

Fire Strategy Sept 19 Burohappold Engineering  

Levels Oct 19 Ruxton Surveys 

Acoustics  Oct 19 Hoare Lea 

 

4 Increase Value in Construction Works contract  

4.1 In recent weeks the significant cost and programme uplift to remedy extensive 
defective lime plaster and dry rot across the building, both of which could not 
have been revealed at design stages, have been brought to light. The cost of 
such works meant they was an urgent requirement to increase the construction 
works contract from £7,027,011 to £7,708,417 , to include new plaster works and 
to enable a contingency buffer to be retained. This was discussed with Scrutiny 
Chairs on the 28th of October 22 as due to the nature of the works involved and 
the associated ‘drying time’ required for the plastering works in particular, 
BCBC were required to make an urgent decision on how to proceed.  It was 
recognised by all that without a swift instruction to the contactor, works along 
the critical path programme could not proceed.  

Page 100



4.2 On 2nd November 2022, in order for works to continue an Officer Delegated 
Power for £94,164.67 (CMM-PRU-35 amended) was signed by the Corporate 
Director Communities. The Cabinet Member for regeneration and Officers from 
Legal and Finance were kept updated. The Officer Delegated Power was 
actioned to enable the lime plaster and associated works to continue for a very 
short interim period to prevent the Authority incurring additional financial 
penalties and further delay to the completion of the project. This would be 
followed by a Cabinet Report which authorised the additional sum required in 
the contract. 

4.3 On 15th November 2022 Cabinet approved the request to modify the Maesteg 
Town Hall re-development construction works contract to include additional 
works and services by the contractor which have and continue to be necessary 
since the initial procurement and increase the contract value to £7,708,417 in 
accordance with rules 3.3.2 and 3.3.3 of the Council’s Contract Procedure 
Rules.4.7 The current anticipated construction works programme to 
completion is 21st July 2023 as a result of extensive plaster repairs and dry / 
wet rot discovered across the building. The programme is currently being 
reviewed by the project managers Mace Ltd.  

 4.4 In order to provide clarity to the events leading upto the requirements to uplift 
the contract value, a detailed timeline of the recent lime plastering, and dry rot 
issues has been included below as Table 2. 

Table 2: Lime Plaster and Dry Rot Timetable of Events 

Date Event Narrative  

07/06/22  

 

An early warning notice was raised by Knox and Wells to Mace Ltd regarding the 

condition of plaster in ‘several locations’ across the building, suggested additional 

works to remedy whatever lime plastering may be required, with further detail to 

follow. Mace instructed K&W to scope and price the plaster repairs required.  

24/06/22  Knox and Wells submit the scope for lime plaster repairs to the back of house and 

wing rooms only. 

06/07/22  The main hall strip of existing wall coverings commenced  The difficulties in 

removing the existing wall coverings including oil-based paint was realised and the 

severity of the existing plaster was exposed. K&W to prepare a full repair schedule 

for the main hall walls 

26/07/22 BCBC instructed K&W via Mace Ltd to proceed with the Back of House areas, only 

to a point that was already allowed for within the contract value under ‘plaster 

repairs’ 

03/08/22  

 

Meeting held between K&W, Purcell Architects, BCBC Conservation and Ty Mawr 

Lime, to discuss the lime paster implications within the main hall.  

31/08/22 BCBC Conservation site visit to discuss the issue of wall surfaces in the main hall. A 

Doff system is the preferred method on listed structures, as such BCBC 

Conservation arranged to meet on Friday 2nd September to discuss further. 

Page 101



02/09/22  

 

Site meeting held with Knox and Wells and BCBC Conservation to discuss internal 

render works- reference made at meeting of Ty Mawr report. Holding response sent 

on Friday 2nd Sept 

05/09/22 BCBC Conservation liaises with BCBC Regeneration to request a meeting to discuss 

the removal of existing wall coverings. 

20/09/22  Meeting held with BCBC officers to discuss the additional costs of the lime plaster as 

per the repair schedule and the removal method of existing coverings  

23/09/22 Mace Ltd sent through the associated costs of the additional Lime Plastering works 

required along with a brief summary of the programme delay. The associated costs 

and time delay to the extent that they were presented were not envisaged by BCBC 

or Mace Ltd.  

Meetings were held with the project team from W/C 26th September to discuss both 

the programme and costs. Reviews of which are still being realised. 

26/09/22 

 

Torc sampling site visit undertaken by BCBC conservation and K&W. Conservation 

support for the use of TORC given verbally at the site visit. This did not include 

instruction / approval to undertake the plaster repair works 

03/10/22 The Maesteg Programme Board were briefed  

05/10/22  

 

Meeting held between, Mace, K&W and BCBC. 

K&W note the programme delay relating to the plaster repair works to July 2023 

along with the associated cost uplift.  

10/10/22  Plaster repair meeting held on site 

All key team members attended an on-site meeting to a) finalise the scope of the 

plaster repair works b) look at opportunities to decrease the scope in certain areas. 

12/10/22  BCBC instructed K&W via Mace Ltd to undertake the Torc blasting  

17/10/22  Torq blasting to main hall begins on site and is completed within 2 weeks as per 

programme.  

28/10/22 A decision was taken that an urgent delegated power was needed as the costs of the 

additional works would go over the approved contract value. As per process Scrutiny 

Chairs were consulted but did not feel they had enough information to approve the 

delegated power.  

02/11/22 An Officer Delegated Power for £94,164.67 (CMM-PRU-35 amended) was signed by 

the Corporate Director Communities in consultation with the Cabinet member for 

Regeneration and Legal. The Officer Delegated Power was actioned to enable the 

lime plaster and associated works to continue for a very short interim period to 

prevent the Authority incurring additional financial penalties and further delay to the 

completion of the project 

Page 102



03/11/22  A further update to the plaster repair schedule was issued by K&W which confirmed 

that Ty Mawr had notified an additional layer of skim required on the walls which also 

includes a mesh layer. This increases the plaster repair scope, including the cost  

04/11/22  

 

An instruction was issued to K&W to proceed with the plastering works programmed 

over the coming 4 weeks to ensure the works to this area of the building were not 

put on stop and there was no further programme delay.  

15/11/22 Cabinet approved the request to modify the Maesteg Town Hall re-development 

construction works contract to include additional works and services by the 

contractor which have and continue to be necessary since the initial procurement 

and increase the contract value to £7,708,417 in accordance with rules 3.3.2 and 

3.3.3 of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 

 

4.5 A number of detailed discussions over a period of time took place between the 
contactor, contract managers and BCBC officers to finalise the details of the 
instruction and the cost and time implications to the programme. This was 
challenging as it was imperative to try and minimise the impact of the additional 
works on the programme.  

4.6    More generally across the construction works contract, due to the nature of the 
historic building the majority of the additional items discovered could not have 
been revealed at design stages without significant intrusive and destructive 
works. As such, these discoveries are unforeseen from when the works were 
specified, and the contract procured. Such items are referred to as 
Compensation Events. 

4.7 Compensation events are reviewed by Mace Ltd, the project managers on the 
project and are measured against the terms of the NEC form of contract and 
the associated risk register. A dialogue of negotiations between the contractor 
and project managers takes place prior to determination of the compensation 
event. To date there have been 60 compensation (unforeseen) events, whilst 
some are actual savings to the contract and most are minor there are six that 
are considered significant and are included below. It should be noted that all 
are within the contract sum. 

            £ 

• Lime plasterwork repair      509K 

• Strengthen works      44K 

• Addressing Splayed Ceilings     35k 

• New Arch Formation      19K 

• Contamination removal under front steps   96K 

• Structural works to SE Roof     81K    

4.8 The contract for the Town Hall has been amended due to both unforseens 
above and to include additional works that have been instructed by BCBC itself.  
This is because there was a desire to ensure that the building was restored in 
all aspects whilst substantial scaffolding was erected across the building and 
the best possible renovation achieved whilst a capital budget was in place.  For 

Page 103



this reason, some 554K of additional work was instructed as detailed below.  
This is all  included within the current construction contract. 

            £ 

• Renovation of the Clock Tower     482K 

• Renovation of Cupolas on the main roof   55K 

• Renovation of clock tower columns    15K 

• Bird Deterrents to roof & clock tower   1.3K 
 

4.9 Since Construction works commencement in March 2020 and in light of the 
Covid-19 Pandemic, current economic climate, Brexit and repercussions of the 
war in Ukraine, the project has unavoidably been delayed. At this stage it is 
anticipated that the project will complete in Summer 2023. However, work has 
continued steadily, and milestones have and are continuing to be achieved and 
this beautiful 141 year old listed building is being restored to its former glory 
and its use is safeguarded for the local community and future generations for 
many years to come.  

4.10 It must also be noted that all funders are satisfied with the progress on the 
project and visit the site at regular intervals to view the work.  These include 
Welsh Government and WEFO and Cadw.  

4.11 Whilst the construction contract has been increased the project remains well 
within its capital envelope of £8.78m as agreed by Council.  It is anticipated that 
this project will complete comfortably within this capital allocation. 

 
5 Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 

5.1  There is no effect on the Council’s policy framework and procedure rules.  

6 Equality Act 2010 implications 

6.1  An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified  that 

there would be no negative impact on those with one or more of the 

protected characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the 

Welsh Language.  It is therefore not necessary to carry out a full EIA on this 

proposal.  The proposed scheme will develop full disabled access to the 

Town Hall for the first time. The project as a whole will ensure that there is 

a positive impact on the equalities agenda. 

7  Well-being of Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015 implications 

7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment 

Template has been completed and a summary of the implications from the 

assessment relating to the five ways of working is below: 

• Long Term: The regeneration of the Town Hall will drive local 
prosperity, providing local employment opportunities and offering 

Page 104



better environments to promote the health and well-being of those 
who live, work and visit town centres in the long term. 
 

• Prevention:  By improving the Town Hall it will strengthen the existing 
economic assets of not just the Town Hall but surrounding 
businesses while diversifying its economic base. Converting 
underutilised commercial space into economically productive 
property also helps boost the profitability of the town centre.  
 

• Integration: The project will focus on delivering a set of physical, 
commercial and social improvements though re-developing an iconic 
Grade II listed building which in recent years has been under used. 
The project will generate employment opportunities; provide a 
prominent and suitable arena for commercial, learning and cultural 
use and help sustain Maesteg Town Centre and increase town centre 
footfall.  

 

• Collaboration: The Authority will be undertaking a partnership 
approach to deliver positive enhancement to a key site that will 
include for repair, restoration and extension of a prominent listed 
building. The Authority, in partnership with our cultural services 
providers Awen Cultural Trust, have carefully developed the project 
through a combination of consultation and community engagement, 
technical testing and development. 
 

• Involvement: Investing in a community offers a means to connect with 
local stakeholders.  Strong, resilient communities will reinforce the 
regional and Welsh culture which is a key feature in promoting visitors 
and tourists to the area.  Increased visitor numbers to the Town Hall 
will help to make the Cardiff Capital Region a more prosperous 
environment. 

8  Financial implications 

8.1  The increase to the works contract falls within the Capital financial envelope 

for the Maesteg Town Hall Re-development within the Council approved 

Capital Programme, due primarily to additional external funding that has 

been secured (£250,000 Transforming Town grant – reported to Council in 

July 2022, and £395,000 WG Building for the Future programme – reported 

to Council Oct 2022). Therefore, no further monies are required. 

Table 3  Total Financial Package 

Project Financial Package              

 

Funding Party Total Project Requirement Funding Secured/ 

Unsecured 

 

Capital  

Page 105



BCBC: ERDF- Buildings for the 

Future 

£3,504,990 Secured  

BCBC Own Funds  £3,089,339 Secured   

BCBC: National Lottery 

Heritage Fund  

 

96,800 

£701,640 

Secured  

Secured 

Awen sourced MALD £250,000 Secured  

Awen sourced Garfield 

Western (Split between capital 

& Revenue) 

£37,300  Secured   

Awen sourced (Pilgrim Trust) £4,000  Secured 

Awen sourced (Davies Trust) £2,000  Secured 

Awen sourced (Maesteg Town 

Council 

£35,000 Secured 

Awen’s Own Funds £114,061 Secured 

BCBC- CADW  £50,000 Secured 

BCBC - Valleys Task Force £650,000 Secured  

WG Transforming Towns £250,000 Secured 

Total Capital Finance Secured £8,785,130  

Revenue 

Awen Cultural Trust – 

Communities Facilities  

£250,000 Secured  

Awen Cultural Trust – Garfield 

Western (Split between Capital 

and Revenue split) 

£162,700 Secured 

National Lottery Heritage Fund  £74,260 Secured  

Awen Cultural Trust – 

Volunteer Time 

£83,775 No actual money will be 

transferred – it’s a 

recording item to satisfy 

NLHF 

Total Revenue Finance 

Secured 

£570,735  

Total Project Finance Secured £9,355,865  

 

Table 4  Total Project Costs 

Maesteg Town Hall Current Cost 

K&W Works Contract  £6,085,112.00 

Knox & Wells Additional items As per overall CE's (Agreed and 
Anticipated) £1,551,406.69 

Page 106



Knox & Wells Professional Services Contract Fee £114,275.00 

Interpretation Costs £101,000.00 

Consultant fees (MACE 2-7, Purcell 2-4a, MSP 2-4a, Headland 
4-7, DACWS 5-7 Hoare Lee 2-4a &5-7) & Surveys £674,195.31 

Further Anticipated Consultant Fees associated with July 23 
Completion  £45,000.00 

BT Works for BCBC cameras £16,200.00 

 
Highway Works £19,500.00 

Digital Works  £20,000.00 

Christopher Williams Paintings £20,000.00 

Advertising and Promotion £14,001.00 

Talbot Street Utility Box and Pedestrian Crossing  £13,214.00 

Tree Felling Works £4,050 

Contract Administration Costs  £662 

Planning Permission £10,260.00 

Building Regulations  £5,906.17 

TOTAL CAPITAL £8,694,782.17 

Capital Programme budget as of Oct 22 8,785,130.00 

Remaining Contingency based on Oct 22 Capital 
Programme £90,347.83 

Volunteer Time £83,775.00 

New Staff  £74,260.00 

Awen's FF&E £412,700.00 

TOTAL Revenue £570,735.00 

 

9  Recommendation  

9.1 It is recommended that the Committee considers the report and information 

relating to the project and construction contract for Maesteg Town Hall, with 

any recommendations being reported to CMB.   

9.2 Note that scrutiny members will be invited to attend a site visit in the new 

year.   

 

Janine Nightingale 

CORPORATE DIRECTOR – COMMUNITIES 

Page 107



December  2022 

Contact officer:   Delyth Webb, Group Manager – Strategic Regeneration 

Telephone:  01656 815207  

E-mail:  delyth.webb@bridgend.gov.uk 

Postal Address: Bridgend County Borough Council 

   Communities Directorate 

   Angel Street 

   Bridgend 

   CF31 4WB 

Background documents: None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 108

mailto:delyth.webb@bridgend.gov.uk


 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

15 DECEMBER 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER LEGAL AND REGULATORY, HR AND 
COROPRATE POLICY 

 
INTERIM REPORT OF THE BUDGET RESEARCH AND EVALUATION PANEL 

 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Committee with an interim report from the 

Budget Research and Evaluation Panel (BREP), containing detail of the Panel’s 
deliberations, findings and recommendations to date for approval and submission to 
Cabinet and Senior Officers to inform the development of the draft budget proposals 
for 2023-24 following receipt of the Welsh Government provisional local government 
settlement. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objective/objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

• Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

• Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 
steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 
 

• Smarter use of resources – ensure that all  resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
 

3. Background 
 
3.1 In considering the challenges associated with continued budget reductions, Members 

of the 2013-14 Budget Research and Evaluation Panel (BREP) recognised the need 
for a ‘whole Council’ response to be adopted in managing anticipated cuts to services 
against a backdrop of increasing demand, public sector reform and the challenging 
financial outlook. 

 

Page 109

Agenda Item 7



 
 

3.3  It was consequently recommended that a Standing BREP (referred to as the Panel) 
be established as a standing working group to enable those Members to engage in 
more meaningful discussion on budget proposals. 

 
3.4 Since then BREP has played an active role in the budget planning process for the 

Council by working with Cabinet and Senior Officers on the development of specific 
budget reduction proposals as well as reviewing the draft budget each year and 
monitoring the ongoing deliverability of the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). 

 
3.5 The purpose of the Budget Research and Evaluation Panel, agreed under the new 

Scrutiny structure by Council on 6 September 2017, is to:  
 

a) Achieve consensus on the direction of the budget over the life of the medium-term 
financial strategy; 
 

b) Achieve a detailed overview and assessment of the budget proposals where the 
expertise and knowledge of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee contributes 
to a corporate understanding and appreciation of the draft budget proposals;  
 

c) Assist the Council to develop a budget for the forthcoming year that aims to meet 
the needs of the communities of Bridgend County Borough; 
 

d) Facilitate firmer understanding of the budget setting process and the draft 
proposals in order to assist the Committees in making informed comments, 
constructive challenge or recommendations to Cabinet as part of the budget 
consultation process. 

4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The BREP have so far met on three occasions to consider the draft budget proposals 

for the year 2023-24.  The Panel were supported by the Scrutiny Officers, the Senior 
Democratic Officer – Scrutiny, the Democratic Services Manager, the Chief Officer 
Finance, Performance and Change, Deputy Head of Finance and Cabinet Member 
Resources.  

 
4.2 At the first meeting of BREP in October 2022, the Panel considered the background 

to the establishment of BREP, its Terms of Reference and Aims and its ever-changing 
role and need to be flexible to respond to the budget situation relevant at the time. 
 

4.3 The Panel agreed to utilise and adopt the previous BREP Terms of Reference but 
requested an opportunity to review them throughout the year and that the Item be 
placed on subsequent agendas once Members are more familiar with them.  
 

4.4 The Chief Officer Finance, Performance and Change set out the financial position for 
the MTFS 2023-24 to 2026-27 detailing the in-year pressures for 2022-23 and the 
budget 2023-24 onwards.  The Panel were advised that in terms of available funding, 
1% of Welsh Government funding equated to £2.3m and 1% of Council tax was 
£870,000.  Officers stressed that significant budget pressures had been identified for 
2023-24 which produced a funding gap of approximately £15-£20m. 
 

Page 110



 
 

4.5 The Panel were also presented with a report on the ‘Budget Consultation 2022 – 
Shaping Bridgend’s Future’ which illustrated the plans for engagement and a potential 
timeframe. 
 

4.6 The Panel subsequently requested that Cabinet Members and Corporate Directors 
be invited to future meetings of BREP considering two Directorates at a time to 
examine their pressures and budget reductions. 
 

4.7 The Panel also asked for Cabinet’s initial view and more granular detail on the 
likelihood of the budget savings being achieved in each Directorate and the potential 
of reductions to discretionary services as well as more detail on the financial model 
and what the assumptions are. 
 

4.8 At the Panel’s second meeting in November, Members considered early draft budget 
reductions proposals as well as budget pressures for both the Chief Executive and 
the Education and Family Support Directorates.  
 

4.9 Once again, the Officers and Cabinet Members highlighted the situation of the funding 
gap and the significant pressures that were on the Authority, particularly in relation to 
Social Services and there was therefore a need to consider each budget and where 
the priorities lie.  There was a need to either reduce the proposed growth or increase 
the budget reductions to ensure a balanced budget for 2023-24. 
 

4.10 Some of the key Council wide issues identified by the Chief Officer Finance, 
Performance and Change were the level of pay awards, difficulties in recruiting staff 
and inflation issues which were now impacting on the Capital budget as well as the 
Revenue budget.  It was emphasised however that the difficult budget situation this 
year was not unique to Bridgend and was a national issue with all Local Authorities 
in Wales facing similar pictures. 
 

4.11 It was stressed that there was more demand than ever on services including, but not 
exclusive to, in Social Care, Housing, Legal, Human Resources, and the Council 
could simply not continue to operate the same as it has done previously.    
 

4.12 The Panel questioned the impact of potential reductions to school budgets and to 
Home to School Transport and the impact that the pandemic has had on learners, 
particularly in terms of their emotional wellbeing. 
 

4.13 Following this meeting, the Panel requested that for their next meeting they receive 
similar budgetary information on pressures and reductions relating to the Social 
Services and Wellbeing and Communities Directorate along with some sort of ranking 
framework on the options presented in order to provide some context as to their 
priority/impact and likelihood of being taken forward.    It was also requested that this 
be provided for the Education and Family Support and the Chief Executive’s 
Directorate so that the Panel may make some comment on this also. 
 

4.14 Following detailed discussion and correspondence between the Corporate 
Management Board (CMB), Cabinet, Group Leaders and the Panel Members and in 
view of the tight timescales surrounding the budget setting process due to the unique 
circumstances this year and continuing budget uncertainties, it was agreed that a 
report outlining some initial proposals to present a balanced budget, providing options 
based on the current financial modelling would be considered at the next meeting.  It 

Page 111



 
 

included detail such as the potential options for Council Tax level increase, potential 
budget savings and areas of priority for growth. 
 

4.15 The Panel were advised that Cabinet had requested that the principles for 
underpinning the development of the budget for the coming financial year were: 

• The Council will seek to protect the most vulnerable people in our Communities; 

• The Council will seek to limit service growth in the coming financial year; 

• All budgets across the Council should be reviewed to identify savings for the 
coming year; 

• Where possible “back office” services will be prioritised for service reductions; 

• The Council should consider whether schools are able to contribute to the overall 
savings required in the coming year; and 

• In setting the budget for 2023-2024 consideration needs to be given to the 
anticipated budget pressures in the following financial years.  
 

4.16 The Panel considered the various Council tax options presented and the impact that 
these could have on residents in the County Borough, particularly those who are 
vulnerable.  There was concern expressed over both the impact that a significant 
increase in Council Tax could have on vulnerable people but likewise the impact that 
further reductions to services could have on the same people in order to make up the 
funding gap.  The Panel commented that whilst residents might understand an 
increase in Council Tax now, that is less than the cost of inflation, they might not 
accept a much larger increase in Council tax that might be needed in a few years’ 
time, to essentially replace the services that are cut this year to fill the funding gap. 
 

4.17 Members also discussed the potential link between Council Tax and Income Tax and 
proposed that the latter needed to be take into account when setting Council Tax for 
the Borough. 
 

4.18 The Chief Officer Finance, Performance and Change highlighted that early 
indications from other Local Authorities (LAs) showed that many were considering a 
higher Council Tax increase this year due to budgetary pressures and even the 
highest option presented in the report was not an outlier compared with many LAs. 
 

4.19 Similarly, it was reported that the Authority had been fortunate in the past in having 
not had to make reductions to the Schools’ Delegated budget, however the Panel 
were advised that given the fact that the Schools budget made up such a significant 
amount of the overall budget (33% for Bridgend), almost all LAs were considering 
reductions in this area. 
 

4.20 The Panel also discussed the Council’s reserves, with Officers reporting that many of 
these were Earmarked Reserves and helped to deliver on priorities that had already 
been agreed.  Cabinet agreed that these were being considered in terms of their 
priority however expressed the view that these shouldn’t be used to balance the 
revenue budget as this funding was one-off and had taken many years to build up. 
 

4.21 Concerns were expressed by the Panel over many of the proposed savings being 
categorised as red or amber, with very few green, and the viability of these proposals.  
However, whilst red, Members expressed particular concern over the proposed 
reduction in the budget for the Strategic Regeneration Fund which was put forward 
as a potential budget reduction for 2023-24 in last year’s MTFS.  The Panel 
emphasised the fact that whilst discretionary, this fund was a clear ‘invest to save’ 

Page 112



 
 

budget, without which we could have major implications for the success of future 
regeneration and development projects.  Cabinet did respond explaining that this was 
being reviewed.  
 

4.22 Proposed Recommendations 
 

Consultation and Engagement 
 

1 The Panel acknowledged the difficult situation the Council found itself in and the 
tough decisions that would have to be made on the budget which could have quite 
serious implications for services and residents of the borough.  It was therefore 
felt communication and engagement with the public was vital to get this message 
across and to be open and transparent about the challenges the Council faced.  
The Panel noted that similar concerns had been raised at a COSC meeting on 
27 October 2022 where Members had requested that any press release regarding 
the upcoming budget consultation be mindful of improving communication to 
residents and improving understanding of the budget and purpose of reserves 
held. 

 
a) The Panel therefore endorse this and further recommend that the Authority, as a 

matter of urgency, start preparing its residents for the possibility of difficult 
reductions to services and communicating the potential impact of these to ensure 
transparency and openness.  

 
b) Further to this, following any future budget or resulting service reductions, the 

Authority work with the community or communities involved to establish how the 
Council can assist in enabling them to take up the service provision, thereby 
reducing the potential negative impact. 

 
c) Given the fact that other Local Authorities are experiencing similar budgetary 

issues, the Panel recommend that Officers look at how other Local Authorities are 
communicating this to their residents to ensure they are well informed and aware 
of the potential impact on services received. 

 

Council Tax 
 

2 In light of the cost of living crisis, the Panel recommend that when determining 
any change to Council Tax, Cabinet consider the impact of any potential increase 
in Income Tax by Welsh Government. 
 

Strategic Regeneration Fund 
 

3 The ability for the Strategic Regeneration Fund to lever other external funding, to 
invest in feasibility and development studies and help secure private investment 
outweighs the saving achieved by reducing this budget. The Panel therefore 
recommend that any potential reduction to this fund be revisited. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



 
 

Further Requests 
 
4.23 The Panel requested that a further BREP meeting be scheduled for January 2023 

where the draft budget proposals can be presented to the Panel having received the 
Welsh Government Budget Settlement.  

 
4.24 At this meeting, Members requested that they also receive a full a list of all the 

Authority’s services which it funds and the budget attached to them and furthermore 
what this funding represents as a percentage of the overall spend for the Council. In 
areas where the Authority funds beyond the statutory minimum, the Panel request a 
short narrative of what this provision is and what budget is attached to it. 

 
4.25 The Panel expressed the view that without the final budget settlement information 

and the additional list of services, Members could not have full oversight of potential 
options and therefore could not make informed recommendations over Council Tax 
levels, or the need for further proposed budget reductions or less budget pressures. 

 
4.26 Further to this, the Panel also wished to consider the outcome of the Council’s budget 

consultation process at this meeting in January, whether this simply be early 
indications or the full analysis if available, in order to inform their findings and 
recommendations. The Panel highlighted their questions raised at an earlier meeting 
and requested that these be addressed as part of this: 

 
1. Whether the online digital budget calculator tool was still available on the BCBC 

website.  
 

2. Whether data could be collated to target and try and engage those in the 
consultation process who were most likely in need of and using services.  

 
4.27 Finally, resulting from their discussions with Cabinet Members and Officers, the Panel 

requested that they receive further information to a future Scrutiny meeting on School 
surplus budgets as well as the funding formula for schools in order to examine these 
budgets in further detail. 
 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 This item relates to the role of Overview & Scrutiny Committees as consultees in 

respect of the budget setting process. 
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  

6.1  The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 
and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales,  

Page 114



 
 

with 5 ways of working to guide how public services should work to deliver for people. 
The following is a summary to show how the 5 ways of working to achieve the well-
being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this report: 

 

• Long-term - The consideration and approval of this report will assist in the  
budget setting process for both the short-term and in the long-
term. 

 

• Prevention - The consideration and approval of this report will assist in the 
budget setting process by approving and shaping preventative 
measures provided by Directorates to generate savings. 

 

• Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives 
 

• Collaboration - The consideration and approval of this report will assist in the     
budget setting process by approving and shaping collaboration 
and integrated working to generate savings. 

• Involvement -  Publication of the report ensures that the public and  
stakeholders can review the work that has been undertaken by 
Scrutiny members. 
 

8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 The report relates to the budget setting process and the financial implications 

associated with that.  
 

9. Recommendation 
 
9.1  The Committee is requested to consider the interim report and approve the 

recommendations made by the Budget Research and Evaluation Panel (BREP) for 
submission to Cabinet and Senior Officers to inform their development of the draft 
budget proposals for 2023-24. 
 

K Watson 
Chief Officer - Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy 
9 December 2022 

 
Contact officer:  Rachel Keepins 
    Democratic Services Manager  
 

Meryl Lawrence  
 Senior Democratic Services Officer – Scrutiny 
 
 Jessica Mclellan  
 Scrutiny Officer  
 
 Lucy Beard  
 Scrutiny Officer  

 
Telephone:   (01656) 643515 / 643613 / 643263 
 

Page 115



 
 

Email:   scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:  Democratic Services – Scrutiny  
    Bridgend County Borough Council  
    Civic Offices  
    Angel Street  
    Bridgend  
    CF31 4WB 

 
 
Background documents:  
 
None 
 

Page 116



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

15 DECEMBER 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL & REGULATORY SERVICES, HR & 
CORPORATE POLICY 

 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 
a) Present the Committee with the Forward Work Programme attached as 

Appendix A for this Committee for consideration and approval; 
 

b) Request any specific information the Committee identifies to be included in the 
reports for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Request the Committee to identify any further items for consideration on the 
Forward Work Programme having regard to the selection criteria in paragraph 
4.3; 

 

d) Present the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet for this Committee 
attached as Appendix B to track responses to the Committee’s 
recommendations made at the previous meetings; 
 

e) Present the Forward Work Programmes for the Subject Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees attached as Appendices C, D and E following consideration in 
their respective Committee meetings; 

 

f) Present the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheets for the Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees attached as Appendices F, G and H to 
track responses to recommendations made at their respective previous 
Committee meetings.  

 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

• Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

• Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 

Page 117

Agenda Item 9



 

communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives. 
 

• Smarter use of resources – ensure that all  resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Council’s Constitution requires Overview and Scrutiny Committees to each 

propose items for the Forward Work Programme having regard to the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework.  
 

3.2  The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the additional role of having 
oversight and coordination of the Forward Work Programmes for the Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees to develop and implement an effective overall 
Forward Work Programme for Scrutiny.   

 
 Best Practice / Guidance 
 
3.3 The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny’s (CfGS) Good Scrutiny Guide recognises 

the importance of the forward work programme. In order to ‘lead and own the 
process’, it states that Councillors should have ownership of their Committee’s work 
programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and evaluating it. The Good 
Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny workload 
should be coordinated to ensure that it contributes to the delivery of corporate 
objectives, and that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-planned manner.  

 
3.4 Forward Work Programmes need to be manageable to maximize the effective use 

of the limited time and resources of Scrutiny Committees.  It is not possible to 
include every topic proposed.  Successful Scrutiny is about looking at the right topic 
in the right way and Members need to be selective, while also being able to 
demonstrate clear arguments for including or excluding topics.  

 
3.5   The CfGS’s guide to work effective work programming ‘A Cunning Plan?’ makes the 

following reference to the importance of good work programming: 
 

‘Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done 
well it can help lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely work on issues 
of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can end up 
wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any work done is likely to 
be minimal.’ 

 
 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Draft Forward Work Programme 
 
3.6 Following the approval of the schedule of Scrutiny Committee meeting dates at the 

Annual Meeting of Council on 18 May 2022, the standing statutory reports to this 
Scrutiny Committees upon: the Corporate Plan the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy, Performance, the Corporate Plan, the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

Page 118



 

(MTFS) and Budget, Performance and Budget Monitoring, etc. were mapped to the 
appropriate timely meeting dates into a draft Forward Work Programme. 

 
3.7 The draft Forward work programme for this Committee was  prepared using a 

number of difference sources, including:  
 

• Corporate Risk Assessment;  

• Directorate Business Plans; 

• Previous Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme report topics / Minutes; 

• Committee / Member proposed topics; 

• Policy Framework; 

• Cabinet Work Programme; 

• Discussions with Corporate Directors; 

• Performance Team regarding the timing of performance information.  
 

3.8 There are items where there is a statutory duty for Policy Framework documents to 
be considered by Scrutiny, e.g. the MTFS including draft budget proposals 
scheduled for consideration in January 2023, following which the Committee will 
coordinate the conclusions and recommendations from each of the Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees in a report on the overall strategic overview of 
Cabinet’s draft Budget proposals to the meeting of Cabinet in February 2023.   
 

3.9 An effective FWP identifies  the issues that the Committee wishes to focus on during 
the year and provide a clear plan.  However, at each meeting the Committee will have 
an opportunity to review this as the Forward Work Programme Update will be a 
standing item on the Agenda, detailing which items are scheduled for future meetings 
and be requested to clarify any information to be included in reports and the list of 
invitees.  The FWP will remain flexible and will be revisited at each COSC meeting 
with updates from each SOSC FWP and any updated information gathered from FWP 
meetings with Corporate Directors. 

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The Committee approved its Forward Work Programme at its meeting on 30th June 

2022 and has reviewed and added to it at subsequent meetings.  
 
4.2 The Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programmes and 

Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheets are also being reported to the 
Committee for coordination and oversight of the overall FWP, following consideration 
by their respective Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  The SOSC FWP’s 
and Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheets will be included in the standing 
FWP Update report as updated by each SOSC meeting. 

 
 Identification of Further Items 
 
4.3 The Committee are reminded of the Criteria Form which Members can use to 

propose further items for the FWP which the Committee can then consider for 
prioritisation at a future meeting.  The Criteria Form emphasises the need to 
consider issues such as impact, risk, performance, budget and community 
perception when identifying topics for investigation and to ensure a strategic 
responsibility for Scrutiny and that its work benefits the Authority.  There are a 

Page 119



 

number of questions and processes that can help the Committee come to a 
decision on whether to include a referred topic, some of which are set out below: 

 
  
 Recommended Criteria for Selecting Scrutiny Topics: 
 
 PUBLIC INTEREST:  The concerns of local people should influence the issues 

chosen for scrutiny;  
 
 ABILITY TO CHANGE:  Priority should be given to issues that the Committee 

can realistically influence, and add value to;  
 
 PERFORMANCE:  Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council 

is not performing well;  
 
 EXTENT:  Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all 

or large parts of the County Borough; or a large number 
of the Authority’s service users or its population; 

 
 REPLICATION:  Work programmes must take account of what else is 

happening in the areas being considered to avoid 
duplication or wasted effort.  

 

 Reasons to Reject Scrutiny Topics: 
 

 • The issue is already being addressed / being examined elsewhere and change is   
              imminent.  

 • The topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and can be referred there).  

 • Scrutiny involvement would have limited / no impact upon outcomes. 

 • The topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial. 

 • The topic is too broad to make a review realistic and needs refining / scoping. 

 • New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year.  

 • The topic area is currently subject to inspection or has recently undergone  
    substantial change / reconfiguration. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
 

4.4 Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a Local 
Authority towards looked after children and young people. This is a legal 
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children 
Act 2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek, for children in public care, the 
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a 
whole is the ‘corporate parent’, therefore all Members have a level of responsibility 
for the children and young people looked after by Bridgend. 
 

4.5 In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how each item they consider 
affects children in care and care leavers, and in what way can the Committee assist 
in these areas. 
 

4.6 Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of 
the ongoing work of the Cabinet-Committee and particularly any decisions or 
changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents. 

Page 120



 

 
4.7 The Forward Work Programme for COSC is attached as Appendix A for the 

Committee’s consideration. 
 
4.8  The Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet for the previous meetings is  

attached as Appendix B, to track responses to the Committee’s recommendations 
at the previous meetings. 

 
4.9 The Forward Work Programmes for the Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

are attached as Appendices C, D and E for coordination and oversight of the 
overall Forward Work Programme. 

 
4.10  The Monitoring Action Sheets for the Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

are attached as Appendices F, G and H to track responses to recommendations 
made at their respective previous Committee meetings.  

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to the review and 

development of plans, policy or strategy that form part of the Council’s Policy 
Framework and consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the power to 
promote or improve economic, social or environmental wellbeing in the County 
Borough of Bridgend. 
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions.  It is considered that there will be no significant 
or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales, 

with 5 ways of working to guide how public services should work to deliver for 
people. The following is a summary to show how the 5 ways of working to achieve 
the well-being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this 
report:  

 

• Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the planning of Scrutiny 
business in both the short-term and in the long-term on its policies, budget and 
service delivery.  

 

• Prevention - The early preparation of the Forward Work Programme allows for 
the advance planning of Scrutiny business where Members are provided an 
opportunity to influence and improve decisions before they are made by 
Cabinet.  

 

• Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives.  
 

Page 121



 

• Collaboration - Consultation on the content of the Forward Work Programme 
has taken place with the Corporate Management Board, Heads of Service and 
Elected Members.  

 

• Involvement - Advanced publication of the Forward Work Programme ensures 
that the public and stakeholders can view topics that will be discussed in 
Committee meetings and are provided with the opportunity to engage. 

 
 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. 
 

 
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1  The Committee is recommended to: 
 

a) Consider and approve the Forward Work Programme for this Committee 
attached as Appendix A; 
 

b) Identify any specific information the Committee wishes to be included in the 
reports for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Identify any further items for consideration on the Forward Work Programme 
having regard to the selection criteria in paragraph 4.3; 

 

d) Note the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet for this Committee 
attached as Appendix B to track responses to the Committee’s 
recommendations made at the previous meetings; 
 

e) Note the Forward Work Programmes for the Subject Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees attached as Appendices C, D and E following consideration in 
their respective Committee meetings; 

 

f) Note the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheets for the Subject Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees attached as Appendices F, G and H to track 
responses to recommendations made at their respective previous Committee 
meetings. 
 

Kelly Watson 
Legal & Regulatory Services, HR & Corporate Policy  
9 December 2022 

 
 

Contact Officers:  Meryl Lawrence 
    Senior Democratic Services Officer - Scrutiny 
 
    Lucy Beard 

 Scrutiny Officer 
 
 Jessica McLellan 

Page 122



 

Scrutiny Officer 
 
Telephone:   (01656) 643515 / 643613 / 643263 
 
Email:   scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk  
Postal address:  Democratic Services - Scrutiny 
    Bridgend County Borough Council 
    Civic Offices 
    Angel Street 
    Bridgend 
    CF31 4WB 
 

 
Background documents: None.  
 

Page 123

mailto:scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Forward Work Programme 2022-23            APPENDIX A 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee:               
 

Date of Meeting: Report Topics: 

 
Thursday  
30 June   
9.30am 
 

- Election of Chairperson report; 
- Call In of Cabinet Decision: Recycling and Waste Service 

Post 2024 
- Revenue Budget Outturn 2021-22 
- Corporate Parenting Champion Nomination report; 
- Nomination to the Public Service Board Scrutiny Panel 

report; 
- Draft Forward Work Programme 

 

Thursday  

21 July    

9.30am 

 

- Budget Monitoring 2022-23 – Quarter 1 Revenue Forecast  
- Council’s Performance against its Wellbeing Objectives for  
      2021 - 22 (Year End Performance) 
- Nomination to the Public Service Board Scrutiny Panel 

report 

Monday 
5 September   
10am  

 
- Director of Social Services Annual Report 2021/22 

 

Thursday 

27 October     

10am  

 
- Budget Monitoring 2022-23 – Quarter 2 Revenue Forecast 
- Temporary Accommodation 
 

 
Monday 
14 November 
4pm 
 

 
- Housing / Homelessness Report to include RSL and third 

sector invitees  
 
Combined meeting of COSC and SOSC 3 

Thursday  
15 December    
10am  

- Q2 Performance Report 2022-23  
- Cost of Living Payment Scheme Rollout 
- Re-Development of Maesteg Town Hall 
- Interim Budget Research and Evaluation Panel Report 

Wednesday  
18 January  
10am  
TBC 

- Draft Medium Term Financial Strategy 2023-24 to 2026-
27 and Budget Proposals 

 

Tuesday  

31 January 

10am 

- Budget Monitoring 2022-23 - Quarter 3 Revenue Forecast 
- New Corporate Plan 2023 – 2028 
- Capital Strategy 2023 – 24 onwards 
- Scrutiny Recommendations on Medium Term Financial 

Strategy 2023-24 to 2026-27 and Draft Budget 
Consultation Process  

Thursday 
2 March 
10am 

- Workforce, Recruitment and Retention 
- Progress on the Performance of Disabled Facilities 

Grants 

 
 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B  

 

 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
30 June 2022 

 
Call-in of Cabinet 
Decision: Recycling 
and Waste Service 
Post 2024  

 
The Committee concluded that 
the Decision would not be 
referred back to Cabinet but 
made a number of 
recommendations: 
 
a) That any future consideration 

of the Waste contract be 
presented to the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at a suitable time 
so as to enable pre-decision 
scrutiny and effective input 
into any forthcoming decision.  
The Committee requested that 
this incorporate any specialist 
advice that is commissioned 
for the future waste service 
model, before referring on to 
Cabinet, as mentioned at 
paragraph 9.5 of the Cabinet 
report; 

 
b) That going forward, 

contingency measures as well 
as a deeper look at other 
possible options for waste 

 
Scrutiny / Cabinet  

 
Recommendations formally 
reported to Cabinet 18 October 
2022 for consideration and 
response to be provided to 
COSC. 

P
age 127



APPENDIX B  

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

service provision is fully and 
openly considered and 
deliberated; 

 
c) That the other options that 

were considered in order for 
Cabinet to arrive at the current 
decision for a short-term 
waste contract from 2024 to 
2026, be published in the 
public domain to ensure full 
openness and transparency. 

 

 
30 June 2022 

 
Revenue Budget 
Outturn 2021-22 
 

 
The Committee requested 
information be provided on the 
nature and source of insurance 
claims in 2021-22. 
 

 
Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer Finance, 
Performance and 
Change 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 2 
September 2022. 
 

 
30 June 2022 

 
Revenue Budget 
Outturn 2021-22 
 

 
The Committee requested 
information be provided 
demonstrating the Revenue 
Reserves held by Directorate.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer Finance, 
Performance and 
Change 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 2 
September 2022. 
 

P
age 128



APPENDIX B  

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
21 July 2022 

 
Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 - Quarter 1 
Revenue Forecast  
 

 
The Committee highlighted the 
impact of the volatility of the price 
of fuel on services, providers and 
the Council budget and 
recommended the need to be 
mindful of this going forward 
when scrutinising related reports. 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Committee 
Members 

 
ONGOING - Recommendation to 
be actioned by the Scrutiny Team 
and the Committee. 

 
21 July 2022 

 
Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 - Quarter 1 
Revenue Forecast  
 

 
The Committee requested 
information regarding current 
recruitment issues, vacancy rates 
and data regarding repeat 
advertisements for job vacancies. 
 

 
Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer Legal, 
Regulatory and 
Human 
Resources  

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 21 October 
2022. 

 
21 July 2022 
 
 

 
Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 - Quarter 1 
Revenue Forecast  
 

 
The Committee requested the 
total amount of projected schools’ 
deficit budget for 2022-2023. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support 
 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 21 July 
2022. 
 

 
21 July 2022 
 

 
Council Performance 
Against its 
Commitments for the 
Year 2021-22  
 

 
The Committee recommended 
that the narrative for Welsh 
Government PAM/015 (PSR002) 
in Appendix A regarding Disabled 
Facilities Grants be expanded to 

 
Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer Finance, 
Performance and 
Change 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 21 October 
2022. 

P
age 129



APPENDIX B  

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

clarify that it included all 
persons/groups.  
 

 
21 July 2022 
 

 
Council Performance 
Against its 
Commitments for the 
Year 2021-22  
 

 
The Committee requested a 
written response regarding the 
lengthy process of compelling 
property owners to bring their 
empty properties into reuse to 
include real case examples and 
timescales. 
 

 
Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer Finance, 
Performance and 
Change / Head of 
Performance & 
Partnerships 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 21 October 
2022. 

 
21 July 2022 
 
 

 
Council Performance 
Against its 
Commitments for the 
Year 2021-22  
 

 
The Committee requested 
updated literature regarding 
Bridgend’s promotion of foster 
care recruitment. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing 
 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 9 
December 2022. 

 
5 September 
2022 

 
Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report 2021-22 

 
The Committee recommended 
that the Report:  
 

(a) should include data and 
graphics to demonstrate 
the impact of staffing 
pressures on the 
Directorate. 

(b) make reference to the 
Corporate Risk Register 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing 
 

 
ACTIONED - Recommendations 
circulated.  
Corporate Director for Social 
Services and Wellbeing 
acknowledged and reflected 
recommendations (b) and (c) in 
an amended Report formally 
reported to Council on 19 
October 2022 and confirmed that 
recommendation (a) would be 

P
age 130



APPENDIX B  

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

when referring to the 
Critical Incident instigated 
in 2022. 

(c) should reflect not only the 
increase in demand on 
Social Care but also the 
complexity and nature of 
referrals being made 
(particularly in Children’s 
Social Care). 

 

incorporated, as far as possible, 
into Director of Social Services 
Annual Report 2022-23. 

 
5 September 
2022 

 
Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report 2021-22 

 
The Committee recommended 
that they write a letter, in support 
of the Deputy Leader, to the 
Welsh Government Minister for 
Social Services regarding 
budgetary pressures. 
 

 
Scrutiny / Chair of 
COSC  

 
ACTIONED – Letter sent to 
Welsh Government Minister for 
Social Services.   

 
5 September 
2022 

 
Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report 2021-22 

 
The Committee requested a 
written response regarding the 
Adult, Children and Wellbeing 
Quality Standards detailing the up 
to date/current position on each 
of the ‘Next Steps’ outlined in the 
Report. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing 
 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. Chased. 

 
5 September 
2022 

  
The Committee requested a copy 
of the letter sent by the Deputy 

 
Scrutiny / Deputy 
Leader and 

 
ACTIONED – response and 

P
age 131



APPENDIX B  

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report 2021-22 

Leader to the Welsh Government 
Deputy Minister for Social 
Services regarding workforce 
concerns. 

Cabinet Member 
for Social 
Services and 
Early Help 

information circulated 21 October 
2022. 

 
5 September 
2022 

 
Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report 2021-22 

 
The Committee requested 
Information regarding the 
Discharge Hub at the Princess of 
Wales Hospital and information 
on how Care and Repair support 
the service. 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing / Head 
of Adult Social 
Care 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. Chased. 

 
5 September 
2022 

 
Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report 2021-22 

 
The Committee requested 
information on the innovative 
ways in which the Council is 
recruiting staff. 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 9 
December 2022. 

 
5 September 
2022 

 
Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report 2021-22 

 
The Committee requested 
confirmation of whether Social 
Services plan to engage primary 
school children in survey work to 
set wellbeing baselines for the 
Council’s review of play 
sufficiency, as they had done with 
the secondary school children. 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing / 
Group Manager 
Sports and 
Physical Activity 
 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. Chased. 

P
age 132



APPENDIX B  

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

27 October 2022 Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 Q2 
Revenue Forecast 
 

The Committee fully supports the 
Council’s discussions with the UK 
Government regarding further 
funding or continuation of the 
‘Homes for Ukraine’ Scheme and 
noted the impact of the 6-month 
sponsorship period implemented 
through the Scheme coming to an 
end and the risk of refugees 
becoming homeless.  The 
Committee agreed to monitor this 
as part of their FWP. 
 

Scrutiny / 
Committee 
Members  

ONGOING - Scrutiny Team 
liaising with Chair of COSC and 
Chief Officer – Finance, 
Performance and Change 
regarding optimal scheduling.  

27 October 2022 Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 Q2 
Revenue Forecast 

The Committee requested that 
when the Council look to make a 
press release regarding the 
upcoming budget consultation that 
Officers be mindful of improving 
communication to residents and 
improving understanding of the 
budget and purpose of reserves 
held.   

Scrutiny / 
Corporate Policy 
& Public Affairs 
Manager  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

27 October 2022 Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 Q2 
Revenue Forecast 

The Committee proposed that 
BREP consider how the budget is 
set for the Social Services and 
Wellbeing (SSWB) Directorate to 
reflect the demographics of the 
County Borough, the level of 
demand and the statutory duties 
of the Directorate.  

Scrutiny/BREP ONGOING - Recommendation to 
be actioned by the Budget 
Research and Evaluation Panel.  

P
age 133



APPENDIX B  

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

27 October 2022 Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 Q2 
Revenue Forecast 

The Committee requested that 
early indications of each 
Directorate’s proposed draft 
budgets be presented to BREP 
with potential options for budget 
reductions at the next related 
meeting each Director has been 
invited to attend. 

 ACTIONED – BREP actioned.   

27 October 2022 Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 Q2 
Revenue Forecast 

The Committee requested that 
they received greater detail on 
the reasons for the 56.2% 
variance and significant 
overspend in the Planning and 
Development section of the 
Communities Directorate which 
the Committee noted was an 
understaffed department.  

Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer – Finance, 
Performance & 
Change / 
Corporate 
Director - 
Communities  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

27 October 2022 Budget Monitoring 
2022-23 Q2 
Revenue Forecast 

The Committee requested a 
written response from the 
Corporate Director -Social 
Services and Wellbeing on the 
following: 
 
a. The reliability of agency 

workers and providers; 
b. The cost difference between 

an agency worker compared 
to a full time Social Worker; 

Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 134



APPENDIX B  

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

c. On average, how many 
agency workers work in the 
SSWB Directorate; and  

d. The average length of stay 
for agency workers in the 
SSWB Directorate. 

27 October 2022 Temporary 
Accommodation  

The Committee recommended 
that a review be conducted on the 
procurement of temporary 
accommodation and how to 
secure its longevity and that this 
be reported back to the 
Committee at an appropriate 
time. 

Scrutiny / Head of 
Partnerships 

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

27 October 2022 Temporary 
Accommodation  

The Committee requested 
information on the package of 
support that is provided to 
families and individuals relocated 
to temporary accommodation with 
particular consideration of the 
impact on the welfare of children 
who are relocated away from 
family and friends and whether 
they have to change school.  

Scrutiny / Head of 
Partnerships 

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 

 

 

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Forward Work Programme                                                    APPENDIX C 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1: 
 

Date of 
Meeting: 

Report Topics: 

 
Monday  
4 July   

9.30am 
 

 
- Corporate Parenting Champion Nomination report; 
- Nomination to the Public Service Board Scrutiny Panel 

report; 
- Draft Outline Forward Work Programme 

 

Monday 

12 September   

2.30pm 

 
Meeting postponed for national period of mourning  
 

 
Monday  
10 October   
11am 

 
Pupil Attendance, Exclusions, Health and Safeguarding 
 

 
Thursday  
1 December   
11am 

 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 
 

 

Thursday 

19 January   

11am 

 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26 and 

Inflationary Pressures 

 

 

 

Monday 

13 March  

11am 

 

- Curriculum for Wales and the New Framework for 

Evaluation, Improvement and Accountability  

 

- Early Help Service Pressures 

 

Date to be 

scheduled 

 

 

Upgrading of older school facilities that are not being replaced 
under School Modernisation and improving their energy 
efficiency in line with the 2030 Decarbonisation Agenda.  

 

 

Date to be 

scheduled 

 

 
English Language Schools’ catchment areas / capacity.  
 

 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Outline Forward Work Programme                                             APPENDIX D 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2: 
 

Date of 
Meeting: 

Report Topics: 

 
Mon  
11 July  
9.30am 
 

 
- Corporate Parenting Champion Nomination report; 
- Nomination to the Public Service Board Scrutiny Panel report; 
- Draft Outline Forward Work Programme.  

 
Thurs 
15 September 
10am 

 
Meeting postponed for national period of mourning 

 
Thurs  
3 November 
10am 

 
- Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) Performance Evaluation 

Report Of Childrens Social Care Services 23 - 27 May 2022 
- Call In of Cabinet Decision: Porthcawl Waterfront 

Regeneration: Appropriation of Land at Griffin Park and Sandy 

Bay 
 

 
Thurs   
8 December 
10am 

 
- Annual Report - Safeguarding of Children and Adults 
- Update on the Care Inspectorate Wales Inspections of 

Bridgend County Borough Council's Regulated Services In 
Adult Social Care For 2022  
 

Friday  
20 January  
10am  
(Provisional) 

 
- Draft Medium Term Financial Strategy 2023-24 to 2026-27 

and Budget Proposals 

 
Thurs  
16 February  
10am 

 
- Integrated Working with Cwm Taf University Health Board. 
- Child Practice Review and Action Plan 

- Early Intervention to Reduce Care Experienced Children 

and Key Pressures including Information, Advice and 
Assistance (IAA), Early Help and Edge of Care   

- Delays in Adult Social Care Packages 
 

 
Mon  
27 March 
10am 

 
- Support for Young Carers and Adult Carers    
- Learning Disabilities Action Plan  

 

 
Date TBC 

 
- Prevention and Wellbeing, Leisure (Halo) and Cultural 

Trusts (Awen) and Further Integration with BAVO. 

- Adult Mental Health 
- Post 18 Housing and Financial Support for Care Experienced 

Children 

 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Forward Work Programme                                               APPENDIX E 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3: 
 

Date of 
Meeting: 

Report Topics: 

 
Monday 
18 July 
9.30am 

 
- Corporate Parenting Champion Nomination 
- Nomination to the Public Service Board Scrutiny Panel 
- Draft Outline Forward Work Programme 

 
Monday 
26 September  
4pm 

 
- Shared Prosperity Fund  
- Levelling Up Fund  

 
Monday 
14 November 
4pm 

 
- A report upon accessible playground equipment in play 

areas and access to play areas, parks and playing field 
pavilions, for the disabled community across the County 
Borough, and the latest Assessment and Action Plan in 
accordance with Equalities legislation. 
 

 
Monday 
12 December 
 4pm 
 

 
- Play Sufficiency Assessment   

 
Monday  
23 January  
4pm  
(Provisional) 

 
- Draft Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26 

and Budget Proposals  
 

 
 
Monday 
20 February 
4pm 

 
- A report upon Porthcawl Regeneration to include 

Porthcawl Regeneration projects, the PRIF (Porthcawl 
Resort Investment Focus), Cosy Corner and the Grand 
Pavilion 
 

 
Monday 
17 April   
4pm 
 

 
- Bridgend 2030 Net Zero Carbon Strategy Local 
- Biodiversity Action Plan move 

Future Waste Services Work Streams 

 
To be 
Scheduled 
  

 
- Corporate Joint Committees Regional Responsibilities  

 

 
To be 
scheduled  

 
- Homelessness Strategy  

 

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX F 

 

 

Subject Overview & Scrutiny Committee 1 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
4 July 2022 
 
 
 

 
Corporate 
Parenting 
Champion 
Nomination 

 
Councillor Tim Thomas was nominated to 
represent Subject Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 1 as an invitee to meetings of 
the Cabinet Committee Corporate 
Parenting. 

 
Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer – Legal 
and Regulatory 
Services, HR 
and Corporate 
Policy 

 
ACTIONED – Membership of 
Corporate Parenting Cabinet 
Committee updated and 
formally reported to Cabinet 19 
July 2022. 

 
4 July 2022 
 
 
 

 
Nomination to the 
Public Service 
Board Scrutiny 
Panel 

 
Councillor Richard Collins was nominated 
to sit on the Public Service Board Scrutiny 
Panel.             

 
Scrutiny  

 
ACTIONED – Membership of 
Public Service Board Scrutiny 
Panel updated and initial 
Briefing session arrangements 
underway.  

 
4 July 2022 

 
Forward Work 
Programme  
Update  
 

 
With regard to the Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, Health and Safeguarding report 
scheduled for the meeting on 12 
September, the Committee wished to look 
at:  

• Pupil wellbeing from an attendance 
perspective and support in schools from 
Education Welfare Officers;  

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support 

 
ACTIONED - Feedback 
provided to Corporate Director – 
Education and Family Support 
to include focussed aspects in 
the scope of this report. 

P
age 143



APPENDIX F 

 

 

• How the Free school meal programme 
is being rolled out in schools across the 
county borough.  

• What support schools are getting 
particularly for care experienced 
children and are there effective lines of 
communication between schools and 
social services support.  

• In relation to increased referrals to 
Information Advice and Assistance 
(IAA) within the Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub (MASH), the way in 
which referrals from schools to IAA are 
dealt with and the support in the team 
(and requested representatives from 
IAA / CAMHS in relation to pupil 
attendance /safeguarding), for the 
September report.  

 
4 July 2022 
 
 
 
 

 
Forward Work 
Programme 
Update 

 
The Committee recommended:  

• Wellbeing be revisited within a suitable 
time frame to monitor progress and 
support.  

• Sight of the Corporate Management 
Dashboard for the Education 
Directorate on a quarterly basis at the 
appropriate time.  

• The Committee requested that Pupil 
Wellbeing be included and monitored 
as part of the Directorate Performance 
Dashboard in future.  

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support 

 
Acknowledgement of 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response received 
and information being collated - 
to be provided. 

     

P
age 144



APPENDIX F 

 

 

10 Oct 2022 
 

Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

The Committee Recommended that the 
Local Authority considers whether it can 
make safeguarding training mandatory for 
School Governors. 

Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Vulnerable 
Groups Support 

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee Recommended that the 
Local Authority conduct a review of school 
pickup times by contracted transport 
providers and the impact on the 
safeguarding and well-being of pupils and 
staff. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager, 
Business 
Support 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee Recommended that the 
consistency of schools’ links visits by 
Police Liaison Officers be escalated to 
ensure contact and input with all schools.   

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Vulnerable 
Groups Support 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee Recommended that 
concern is expressed regarding 
communication delay when headteachers 
made safeguarding referrals and were 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing / 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 23 
November 2022. 

P
age 145



APPENDIX F 

 

 

waiting to receive information that they 
needed to receive quickly.  
 

Deputy Head of 
Children’s 
Social Care 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee Recommended that the 
positives of wellbeing support in schools be 
shared across the county borough as best 
practice.  
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support  

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee Recommended that the 
Corporate Director - Education and Family 
Support be requested to raise at the next 
Regional Partnership Board meeting the 
need for consistent community 
communication from the Health Board and 
a consistent message to schools for 
communicating with parents regarding 
Covid, to clarify the rules for whether pupils 
should attend. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee Recommended that the 
human resource challenges are addressed 
to enable provision of breakfasts in all 
schools, to meet the national legislative 
obligations set out by Welsh Government. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager, 
Business 
Support 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 

 
The Committee Recommended that 
concern is expressed regarding grants for 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 

 
 ACTIONED – response and 

P
age 146



APPENDIX F 

 

 

Health and 
Safeguarding 

school uniforms being monetary rather 
than voucher where the money is not being 
spent on uniforms, due to the cost-of-living 
pressures and children were attending 
school in old clothing or not in uniform. 

Director – 
Education and 
Family Support 

information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee requested a response on 
what wellbeing support was available for 
pupils taking examinations. and what 
support and information pupils could 
access regarding the War in Ukraine.  

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Inclusion and 
School 
Improvement 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee requested what support 
and information pupils could access 
regarding the War in Ukraine. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Inclusion and 
School 
Improvement 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee requested the consistent 
themes / concerns regarding exclusions 
and pupil non-attendance in secondary 
schools in more granular detail and the 
support mechanism in place to support the 
families. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

P
age 147



APPENDIX F 

 

 

Vulnerable 
Groups Support 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee requested information 
regarding individual Schools’ waiting lists 
for counselling. 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
- Family Support 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee requested exclusions data 
represented by percentage of pupil 
population per school / area. 
 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Vulnerable 
Groups Support 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

 
10 Oct 2022 
 

 
Pupil Attendance, 
Exclusions, 
Health and 
Safeguarding 

 
The Committee requested data regarding 
the extent of behaviour linked to 
undiagnosed mental health and ADHD, to 
include the waiting times for ADHD 
diagnosis and CAMHS. 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director – 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Inclusion and 
School 
Improvement 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 16 
November 2022. 

1 December 
2022 

Welsh In 
Education 

Recommendations to be circulated to the 
Committee for comment / approval.  

Scrutiny PENDING 

P
age 148



APPENDIX F 

 

 

 

Strategic Plan 
(WESP) 

P
age 149



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX G 

 

 

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
11 July 2022 
 
 
 

 
Corporate Parenting 
Champion 
Nomination 

 
Councillor Alan Wathan was 
nominated to represent Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
2 as an invitee to meetings of the 
Cabinet Committee Corporate 
Parenting. 

 
Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer – Legal 
and Regulatory 
Services, HR and 
Corporate Policy 

 
ACTIONED – Membership of 
Corporate Parenting Cabinet 
Committee updated and formally 
reported to Cabinet 19 July 2022. 

 
11 July 2022 

 
Nomination to the 
Public Service Board 
Scrutiny Panel 

 
Councillor Paula Ford was 
nominated to sit on the Public 
Service Board Scrutiny Panel.             

 
Scrutiny  

 
ACTIONED – Membership of 
Public Service Board Scrutiny 
Panel updated and initial Briefing 
session arrangements underway.  
 

 
11 July 2022 

 
Forward Work 
Programme Update 

 
The Chairperson proposed that a 
glossary of acronyms would assist 
Members.   
 

 
Scrutiny 

 
ACTIONED - response and 
information circulated to 
Members. 

P
age 151



APPENDIX G 

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

3 November 
2022 

Care Inspectorate 

Wales (CIW) 

Performance 

Evaluation Report Of 

Childrens Social 

Care Services 23 - 

27 May 2022 

 

The Committee proposed That the 
Chair of the Subject Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 2 liaise with 
the Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Social Services and 
Early Help to identify: 

 
a) What Members can do to 

support the Council’s 
promotion of recruitment 
into Bridgend Social 
Services; and 

 
b) What support the 

Committee can provide 
to the Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and 
Early Help in her 
discussions with Welsh 
Local Government 
Association regarding 
employment terms and 
conditions and pay. 

Scrutiny / Chair of 
SOSC 2 

Awaiting Response from 
Engagement between Deputy 
Leader and Chair of SOSC 2.  

3 November 
2022 

Care Inspectorate 

Wales (CIW) 

Performance 

Evaluation Report Of 

Childrens Social 

The Committee requested a 
briefing note setting out the 
process of calls made to the 
Information, Advice and 
Assistance (IAA) Service to 

Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 152



APPENDIX G 

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

Care Services 23 - 

27 May 2022 

 

include detail as to how or if these 
are being recorded and the 
responsibility of schools when 
making safeguarding referrals.  
 

 

3 November 
2022 

Care Inspectorate 

Wales (CIW) 

Performance 

Evaluation Report Of 

Childrens Social 

Care Services 23 - 

27 May 2022 

 

The Committee requested Detail 
of Social Worker current 
caseloads including the highest 
caseload attributed to any one 
Social Worker. 

Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing  
 

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

3 November 
2022 

Care Inspectorate 

Wales (CIW) 

Performance 

Evaluation Report Of 

Childrens Social 

Care Services 23 - 

27 May 2022 

 

The Committee requested how 
many Direct Payments have been 
applied for in the past 12 months 
and how many were made 

Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing  
 

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

3 November 
2022 

Care Inspectorate 

Wales (CIW) 

Performance 

Evaluation Report Of 

Childrens Social 

Care Services 23 - 

27 May 2022 

 

The Committee requested the 
current waiting list for children 
awaiting help from the Youth 
Emotional Mental Health Team. 

Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director -Social 
Services and 
Wellbeing  
 

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 153



APPENDIX G 

 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

3 November Call in of Cabinet 
Decision: Porthcawl 
Waterfront 
Regeneration: 
Appropriation of 
Land at Griffin Park 
and Sandy Bay 

The Committee concluded that the 
Decision would not be referred 
back to Cabinet but made a 
number of recommendations. 
 

Scrutiny/Chair of 
Committee 

PENDING 

8 December 
2022 

Update on the Care 
Inspectorate Wales 
Inspections of 
Bridgend County 
Borough Council’s 
Regulated Services 
in Adult Social Care 
for 2022 
 

Recommendations to be 
circulated to the Committee for 
comment / approval.  

Scrutiny  PENDING 

8 December 
2022 

Annual Report – 
Safeguarding of 
Children and Adults  
 

Recommendations to be 
circulated to the Committee for 
comment / approval. 

Scrutiny PENDING 

 

P
age 154



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
18 July 
2022 

 
Corporate 
Parenting 
Champion 
Nomination 

 
Councillor Jonathan Pratt was nominated to 
represent Subject Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 3 as an invitee to meetings of the 
Cabinet Committee Corporate Parenting. 

 
Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer – Legal 
and Regulatory 
Services, HR and 
Corporate Policy 

 
ACTIONED – Membership of 
Corporate Parenting Cabinet 
Committee updated and formally 
reported to Cabinet 19 July 2022. 

 
18 July 
2022 

 
Nomination to 
the Public 
Service Board 
Scrutiny Panel 

 
Councillor Colin Davies was nominated to sit on 
the Public Service Board Scrutiny Panel.           

 
Scrutiny  

 
ACTIONED – Membership of 
Public Service Board Scrutiny 
Panel updated and initial Briefing 
session arrangements underway. 
 

 
18 July 
2022 

 
Forward Work 
Programme 
Update 

 
The Committee requested the following 
representatives be invited for the following 
reports scheduled for the September meeting: 
- For the Shared Prosperity Fund report, the 

appropriate lead Officers. 
- For the Levelling Up Fund report, the 

appropriate lead Officers and a 
representative of Awen Cultural Trust, as 
management of the Grand Pavilion, 
Porthcawl.   
 

 
Scrutiny 

 
ACTIONED – Requested Invitees 
have been invited to attend the 
September meeting of the 
Committee.  

P
age 155



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund 

 
The Committee Recommended that concern is 
expressed over the risks involved of both 
insufficient funds to complete the project in 
addition to achieving the project proposals within 
the allocated time. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability  

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund 

 
The Committee Recommended that further 
concern is expressed regarding the lack of 
resources and expertise within the Directorate 
and its ability to cope with the additional work 
associated with the project. Members did not 
agree that it was appropriate to transfer staff 
from other roles and projects as this would be 
counterproductive. The Committee also noted 
that the landscape for Local Authorities applying 
for funding is changing with timescales being 
very limited and criteria issued at a late stage in 
the process, meaning the Authority has a narrow 
timeframe to develop and formalise substantial 
bids. The Committee therefore recommended 
that priority needs to be given to resources 
within the Communities directorate to ensure 
that not only is it able to successfully take 
forward this project, but to ensure that the 
infrastructures are in place to enable the 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability  
 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 156



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

Authority to be best placed to apply and make 
the most of any future funding opportunities.  As 
well as a strategic plan being developed, 
Members recommend that potential projects 
underneath this be drafted so that when the 
opportunity arises, they already have the basis 
for the application. 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund 

 
The Committee Recommended that strong 
concerns are expressed over the poor return 
that Bridgend County Borough had received in 
their allocation from the Shared Prosperity Fund 
(SPF) and the unfairness around the funding 
mechanism behind this.  The Committee 
therefore agreed to write directly to those within 
the UK Government responsible for the SPF to 
highlight the issues including: 

 

a) The fact that the allocation does not take into 
account that Bridgend is one of the fastest 
growing areas in Wales; 

b) The limited time the Authority has had to 
both put together proposals and then to 
utilise the fund and achieve its aims, is 
unreasonable and potentially puts the project 
and public funds at risk.  

The Committee requested that this letter be 
copied to both local MPs; Dr Jamie Wallis and 
Chris Elmore. 

 
Scrutiny / Chair of 
SOSC 3 

 
Scrutiny requested contact 
details for the letter and will liaise 
with Chair of SOSC 3. 
 

P
age 157



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund 

 
The Committee requested a copy of any 
presentation made to the Town and Community 
Council Forum on Bridgend’s Local Investment 
Plan proposals. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability  
 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund 

 
The Committee requested further information on 
how claims will be processed by RCT as the 
Lead Authority as well as detail on the reporting 
and accountability process. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability  
 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 
26 Sept 
2022 

 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund 

 
The Committee requested further detail on the 
project proposals when available including 
breakdowns of the funding within each proposal. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability  

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 158



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund  

 
The Committee requested clarification as to 
whether there would be clawback on the funds 
should the outputs as set out in the proposals, 
not be achieved. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability  
 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Levelling Up 
Fund 

 
The Committee Recommended similarly to the 
discussions around the SPF, concern is again 
expressed over the tight timescales surrounding 
the applications for the Levelling Up Fund as 
well as the timescales to complete the projects, 
particularly if there was no extension allowed. 
The Penprysg Railway Bridge was particularly at 
risk due to the level of work that this would 
involve to complete. 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager 
Planning & 
Development 
Services 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Levelling Up 
Fund 

 
The Committee Recommended that they 
strongly supported the work around alterative or 
temporary arrangements and locations during 
the interim period of the Grand Pavilion in 
Porthcawl being closed.  Particular emphasis, 
however, was placed on making sure Porthcawl 
would not lose footfall and revenue.  Members 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager 
Strategic 
Regeneration 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 159



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

requested feedback on these plans and 
mitigating measures when available but 
furthermore recommended that as part of this 
work, a feasibility study be undertaken on the 
potential for a temporary facility being put in 
place in Porthcawl whilst the Pavilion is closed. 
The proposal was made to explore the option of 
utilising the Section 106 aspect of the 
development contract in relation to mitigate the 
impact of the building closure on the community. 
 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Levelling Up 
Fund 

 
The Committee requested the timeframe for the 
completion of the Maesteg Town Hall project. 
Concerns were raised about whether the Town 
Hall would be completed before the Grand 
Pavilion closed for redevelopment. Members 
also requested information on what this meant 
for Awen revenue.  

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager 
Strategic 
Regeneration 
 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Levelling Up 
Fund 

 
The Committee requested Further information 
(including a possible feasibility study requested 
in the above recommendations) on any 
proposed temporary facility and alternative 
arrangements whilst the Pavilion is closed. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager 
Strategic 
Regeneration 
 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 160



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Levelling Up 
Fund 

 
Concerns were expressed regarding the 
Penprysg Railway Bridge around funding, 
completion and the potential impact of heavy 
traffic in the area.  The Committee requested a 
briefing paper once the project had been 
approved, illustrating the plans that were to be 
put in place to monitor and mitigate the impact 
of traffic on both sides of the proposed bridge. 
On the subject of parking in Porthcawl linked to 
redevelopment projects such as the Grand 
Pavilion and the aim to increase footfall in the 
area, the Committee were advised of a Parking 
study that was currently taking place in 
Porthcawl as part of its Regeneration and 
Placemaking plans.  The Committee requested 
that they be involved in the development of a 
Strategic Transport Plan for Porthcawl and that 
this be added to the Committee’s FWP. 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities /  
Group Manager 
Planning & 
Development 
Services 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 
26 Sep 
2022 

 
Forward Work 
Programme 
Update 

 
The Committee:  
  
- expressed concern that taxis are only 

permitted to use the one DVSA accredited 
MOT station appointed by BCBC and that if 
the vehicle fails, the fixing work cannot be 
done there so the vehicle has to be booked in 
to another garage to get the fixing work 

 
Scrutiny / 
Licensing 
Committee 

 
ACTIONED – referred to Chair of 
Licensing Committee and 
Bridgend’s Licensing Officer. 
Acknowledgement received that 
a paper would be brought to the 
Licensing Committee on this 
topic. 

P
age 161



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

completed, then rebooked in to the permitted 
MOT station for an additional fee and a further 
test, which can result in taxi’s being off the 
road for longer, higher costs and a significant 
loss of earnings. The garage is also very busy 
with testing of South Wales Police and BCBC 
vehicles. 

- referred to other Local Authorities, e.g. Cardiff 
allowing the use of any DVSA accredited MOT 
station which makes things easier for 
operators and fairer for all DVSA registered 
MOT stations.  

- expressed concern about the potential further 
impact this may be having locally regarding the 
shortness of availability of taxis in the County 
Borough generally and particularly later at 
night.  

- queried how performance / reliability of taxi’s 
was monitored through licence renewals or 
otherwise and how the Authority reviews 
cancellations, late night cancellations, 
availability after hours and what is being done 
to enable improvement and a reliable taxi fleet. 

  
The Committee referred the topic to the 
Licensing Committee for consideration and 
action.  

P
age 162



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
 
14 Nov 
2022 

 
 
Housing 
Position 
Statement 
Report  

 
 

 
That the Committee write to The Group 
Manager Planning and Development Services 
and ask how to ensure better consultation 
between Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) 
and housing developers regarding the types and 
corresponding numbers of accommodation 
being built and the prioritisation for properties for 
RSLs 

 
Scrutiny / Group 
Manager – 
Development  

 
 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 
14 Nov 
2022 

 
Housing 
Position 
Statement 
Report 

 
That the Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) 
provide a written response on their short- and 
medium-term ideas to tackle the housing crisis 
and how to bring forward more opportunities 

 
Scrutiny / Head of 
Partnerships 

 
Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 
 
14 Nov 
2022 

 
 
Housing 
Position 
Statement 
Report  

 
 

 
The Committee further requested information on 
how many veterans/ex-service personnel have 
presented homeless to the Authority and 
requiring accommodation. 

 
Housing Solution 
Manager  

 
ACTIONED: response and 
information circulated 6 
December 2022. 

 
 
14 Nov 
2022 

 
 
Housing 
Position 
Statement 
Report  
 

 
The Committee requested information from 
Development Control regarding previous social 
housing developments and how many social 
housing units had been diminished in return for 
106 monies. 

 
Scrutiny / Head of 
Partnerships 
Services  

 
Information request circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 163



APPENDIX H 

 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
 
14 Nov 
2022 

 
 
Housing 
Position 
Statement 
Report  

 
 

 
The Committee requested that the Registered 
Social Landlords (RSLs) be asked if they could 
possibly provide information about the 
availability of the Physical Adaptation Grant 
(PAG) and the impact it has on housing waiting 
lists for people with disabilities or awaiting 
Disabled Facilities Grants. 

 
Scrutiny / Head of 
Partnerships 
Services 

 
Information request circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

 

P
age 164


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Adroddiad Perfformiad Chwarter 2 2022-23
	4a. Appendix A - Chief Executive Dashboard Q2 2022-23
	4b. Appendix B - Communities Dashboard Q2 2022-23
	4c. Appendix C - EFS Dashboard Q2 2022-23
	4d. Appendix D - Social Services Dashboard Q2 2022-23
	4e. Appendix E - Corporate Risk Register November 2022

	5 Cyflwyno Cynllun Taliad Costau Byw
	6 Ailddatblygu Neuadd y Dref Maesteg
	7 Adroddiad Interim y Panel Ymchwil a Gwerthuso Cyllideb
	9 Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith
	9a. Appendix A - COSC FWP 22-23
	9b. Appendix B - Action Sheet COSC
	9c. Appendix C - SOSC 1 FWP 2022-23
	9d. Appendix D - SOSC 2 FWP 2022-23
	9e. Appendix E - SOSC 3 FWP 2022-23
	9f. Appendix F - Action Sheet SOSC1
	9g. Appendix G - Action Sheet SOSC 2
	9h. Appendix H - Action Sheet SOSC 3


